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P R O C E E D I N G S  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: C a l l  the hearing t o  order. 

:ounsel , could I have the no t ice  read, please. 

MS. BANKS: Pursuant t o  no t ice  issued J u l y  26th, 

2001, t h i s  time and place has been set  f o r  a hearing i n  Docket 

dumber 010098-TP, p e t i t i o n  by F lo r i da  D i g i t a l  Network, I nc . ,  

for  a r b i t r a t i o n  o f  ce r ta in  terms and condi t ions o f  proposed 

interconnection and resale agreement w i t h  Bel lSouth 

Telecommunications, Inc. ,  under the  Telecommunications Act o f  

1996. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. Take appearances. 

MS. WHITE: Nancy White and Pa t r i ck  Turner f o r  

3e l l  South Tel ecommuni c a t i  ons. 

MR. FEIL: Matthew F e i l  f o r  F lo r ida  D i g i t a l  Network. 

MR. SLOAN: Michael Sloan w i t h  Swidler, Be r l i n ,  

Shereff & Friedman f o r  F lo r ida  D i g i t a l  Network. 

MS. BANKS: Fel i c i a  Banks and Jason Fudge on behal f 

a f  PSC S t a f f .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Prel iminary matters. 

MS. BANKS: Yes, Commissioner Deason, there are j u s t  

a couple th ings t h a t  S t a f f  j u s t  want t o  note. Although pa r t i es  

have ind icated t h a t  they are not  a n t i c i p a t i n g  using any 

conf ident ia l  informat ion dur ing the  hearing, S t a f f  would l i k e  

t o  note t h a t  on August 14th, 2001, BellSouth f i l e d  a no t i ce  o f  

i n t e n t  t o  request spec i f ied conf ident ia l  c l a s s i f i c a t i o n  o f  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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3ellSouth's response t o  FDN's Interrogatory Number 57. 

And the one other t h i n g  t h a t  S t a f f  wanted t o  note for 
the record i s  t h a t  on August 14 th ,  FDN filed a notice of 

dithdrawal o f  Issues 3B and 10  i n  this docket. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. I want  t o  take this 

3pportunity t o  commend the parties, especially i n  l i g h t  of 

yesterday, for your efforts i n  trying t o  work together t o  solve 
your differences and t o  bring t o  the Commission those matters 
Mhich are - - obviously cannot be resolved and t o  allow the 
zommission t o  focus on those issues. I'm going t o  keep this 
:ase as a poster child for the concept of eliminating issues 
and focussing on the important issues. 
2xampl e of t h a t ,  so congratul ations. 

I t h i n k  this i s  a prime 

MR. SLOAN: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Any other preliminary 
natters? 

MS. BANKS: T h a t ' s  a l l  t h a t  S ta f f  i s  aware o f  a t  this 
time. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. Do the parties have 
any preliminary matters? 

MR. FEIL: Commissioners, I just wanted t o  mention 
two things. First i s ,  although I indicated a t  the prehearing 
conference I ' d  f i l e  a motion for official notice of various 
orders of the FCC and other s ta te  commissions, Ms. Banks 
informed me t h a t  the Commission i s  sort of moving away from the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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necessity o f  t ha t .  

orders t h a t  we're aware o f  t o  date t h a t  we may be r e f e r r i n g  t o .  

4nd, again, I'll provide them copies o f  the orders i f  the 

par t ies  ask f o r  i t , provide them a copy o f  the  l i s t  I ' m  

r e f e r r i n g  to ,  i f  they ask f o r  i t  as we l l .  

I have provided everybody w i t h  a l i s t  o f  

The second th ing  was, as Ms. Banks pointed out,  we 

withdrew Issues 3B and 10. As a r e s u l t ,  Mr. Kephart was 

t o l d  - - Mr. Kephart i s  a BellSouth witness - - he was t o l d  t h a t  

he d i d  not need t o  be here today, so I j u s t  wanted t o  note t h a t  

f o r  your prehearing order. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very we l l .  We have set  aside 

time f o r  opening statements, f i v e  minutes f o r  each side. And, 

Mr. F e i l ,  t h i s  i s  bas i ca l l y  your p e t i t i o n  f o r  a r b i t r a t i o n ,  I'll 

l e t  you proceed f i r s t .  

MR. FEIL: Thank you. Commissioner, FDN's p e t i t i o n  

as amended included ten-p lus issues. Working w i t h  BellSouth, 

we've resolved some o f  those issues, and we simply withdrew 

others. There's on ly  one issue l e f t  i n  t h i s  proceeding. I t ' s  
i d e n t i f i e d  as Issue Number 1 i n  your prehearing order. We 

t r i e d  t o  resolve t h i s  issue, too, ac tua l l y ,  bu t  unfortunately 

weren't  able t o  do so. That one issue i s  v i t a l l y  important t o  

competit ion i n  the  s ta te  o f  F lo r ida .  The issue i s  r e l a t i v e l y  

simple, but  i t  resonates i n  a tremendous way. And the  issue i s  

t h i s :  Whether o r  not FDN must have an opportuni ty t o  compete 

i n  the DSL market. There i s  no competit ion f o r  DSL i n  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Bel lSouth's t e r r i t o r y  i n  F lo r ida .  There w i l l  be evidence i n  

t h i s  case t h a t  over 99 percent o f  those w i t h  DSL i n  Bel lSouth's 

t e r r i t o r y  receive i t  through BellSouth. The reason i s  because 

BellSouth re jec ts  t h a t  i t  has any ob l i ga t i on  under the Federal 

Telecom Act or Chapter 364 t o  provide resale DSL o r  UNE 

products so CLECs can provide DSL service. 

I ' m  sure you've heard t h i s  s to ry  before, what DSL i s .  

DSL i s  a technology t h a t  permits high-speed access t o  the  

In te rne t  and other services over what's c a l l e d  the  

high-frequency po r t i on  o f  a copper loop. DSL transmission over 

the  high-frequency po r t i on  o f  the loop occurs such t h a t  you can 

have DSL over the same l i n e  t h a t  you have p l a i n  o l d  telephone 

service, or  POT service, on the low-frequency po r t i on  o f  the 

loop. DSL demand i s  growing, and c a r r i e r s  are in te res ted  i n  

prov id ing t h a t  DSL service and packaging i t  w i t h  other 

telecommunications services. 

So w i t h  t h a t  background i n  mind, I wanted t o  s o r t  o f  

put  the  hay down where the  goats can eat i t , as 

Commissioner Gunter used t o  say, and t h a t ' s  through an example. 

L e t ' s  say you have a customer, l e t ' s  c a l l  i t  Shreve's Cloth ing 

Store. I t ' s  a BellSouth customer; he 's  got th ree  l i n e s .  I t ' s  

a small business. Two o f  the  l i n e s  he uses b a s i c a l l y  f o r  voice 

service. The t h i r d  l i n e  he uses f o r  fax, bu t  he a lso has over 

tha t  t h i r d  l i n e  BellSouth DSL service. He wants t o  switch t o  

FDN, and he may want t o  switch because he th inks  he can get a 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

9 

be t te r  r a t e  from FDN or  because he doesn't  l i k e  b i g  business, 

whatever the reason may be. Anyway, because Mr. Shreve or 

Shreve's Clothing Store has BellSouth DSL, he e i t h e r  c a n ' t  make 

the switch, o r  he can make the switch bu t  wi thout DSL service. 

There are three reasons f o r  t h i s .  The f i r s t  i s ,  

BellSouth w i l l  not  permit the customer t o  buy BellSouth Fast 

Access In te rne t  service unless the  customer a1 so purchases 

BellSouth voice service. The second i s  t h a t  Bel lSouth w i l l  no t  

r e s e l l  DSL service t o  FDN o r  any other CLEC. Third,  BellSouth 

does not  s e l l  UNEs t h a t  permit F lo r ida  D i g i t a l  Network t o  

provide i t s  own brand o f  DSL. 

I n  short ,  competit ive c a r r i e r s  l i k e  FDN are out o f  

luck,  and customers do not  have a competit ive choice. This i s  

a problem now, and as demand f o r  DSL increases and i t  moves 

i n t o  res iden t ia l  market, the  problem w i l l  on ly  ge t  bigger. FDN 

submits Bel lSouth's re fusal  t o  make DSL serv ice avai lab le t o  

CLECs i s  ant icompet i t ive,  delays g e t t i n g  DSL t o  the  la rges t  

number o f  customers quick ly ,  and i s  cont rary  t o  s ta te  and 

federal l a w .  

Let  me t a l k  about those three reasons t h a t  I 

mentioned. 

Line Sharing Order f i r s t  establ ished the  high-frequency po r t i on  

o f  the loop must be made avai lab le t o  request ing car r ie rs .  The 

ca r r i e rs  t h a t  pushed the  FCC f o r  t h i s  product, t h i s  l i n e  

sharing product, were known as the DLECs, o r  da ta  LECs. Under 

I n  a l a t e  1999 order, the FCC i n  what's ca l l ed  i t s  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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l i n e  sharing service, the ILEC provides the voice service and 

the DLEC would provide the data service. But the DLECs who 

asked f o r  the l i n e  sharing product had no voice product, had no 

voice service strategy. Their  i n t e r e s t  was on ly  i n  the  

high-speed data po r t i on  o f  the  product, and the  DLECs, as 

you ' re  aware, are r a p i d l y  disappearing. But there i s  nothing 

i n  the Line Sharing Order t h a t  prevents an FDN voice customer 

from purchasing DSL service from BellSouth. 

As a common c a r r i e r ,  BellSouth should be obl igated t o  

provide t h a t  service, and the  customer, Shreve's Cloth ing 

Store, i n  our example shouldn' t  have h i s  DSL shut o f f  simply 

because he converts t o  FDN voice service.  Nothing i n  the  Line 

Sharing Order forecloses FDN from r e s e l l  i n g  BellSouth DSL when 

FDN i s  a voice provider.  So why as t o  the  second reason does 

BellSouth refuse t o  r e s e l l  DSL? 

The Federal Act, Section 251(c)(4) ob l igates ILECs t o  

r e s e l l  telecom services t h a t  the  c a r r i e r  provides a t  r e t a i l .  

BellSouth w i l l  be arguing one or  a combination o f  th ings.  

Bel lSouth combines - - number one - - one o f  the  arguments t h a t  

i t  w i l l  be r a i s i n g  i s ,  BellSouth combines the DSL service w i th  

In te rne t  access service and s e l l s  t he  DSL component on l y  t o  

i t s e l f  o r  t o  ISPs; therefore,  i t ' s  no t  a r e t a i l  service. 

The on ly  t h i n g  BellSouth w i l l  be arguing, o r  may be 

arguing, i s  t h a t  a BellSouth a f f i l i a t e  i s  involved i n  the  

t ransact ion somewhere, and therefore,  Bel lSouth i s  no t  s e l l  i n g  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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DSL at retail. Either way, BellSouth is wrong. BellSouth 
shouldn't be able to avoid the resale obligation by combining a 
telecommunication service it provides at retail with another 
service any more so than by combining a voice service with 
features and arguing that that's not a telecommunication 
service at retail. It's still providing the service at retail. 

Second, to the extent BellSouth argues that there's 
an affiliate involved, it shouldn't be able to avoid the resale 
obligation through involvement of an affiliate any more so than 
it should be permitted to avoid the LD, or long distance, 
prohibition through a separate affiliate. BellSouth should 
have to resell DSL service to FDN. 

The final measure for curing this issue that FDN has 
proposed in this case is the use of UNEs to provide DSL. This 
issue is somewhat complicated, and it's explained at length in 
Mr. Gallagher's testimony. 
introduction to the issue. The classic model for network 
architecture is a copper loop from the customer premise to a 
central office, or CO. That's not BellSouth's network 
architecture in F1 orida. Thei r network consists of thousands 
of intervening remote terminals between the customer premises 
and the CO, and BellSouth has literally thousands of these 
remote terminals in Florida. You can think of them, more or 
less, as mini central offices where copper wire is terminated, 
aggregated, and transported over larger data pipes. And the 

I wanted to give you a brief 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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magnitude o f  the remote terminal arch i tecture i s  such t h a t  

whi le there are fewer than 200 central  o f f i c e s  i n  Bel South's 

t e r r i t o r y  i n  F lor ida,  there are more than 12,000 remote 

terminals where the pipe between the remote terminal  and the 

centra l  o f f i c e  i s  f i b e r ,  not  copper. The problem i s  t h a t  DSL 

only  works over copper f a c i l i t i e s .  So i n  order f o r  a c a r r i e r  

t o  provide DSL i n  the remote terminal a rch i tec tu re  i t  has t o  

place what s cal  l e d  a DSLAM, o r  d i g i t a l  subscriber 1 i n e  access 

mul t ip lexer ,  i n  the remote terminal .  

BellSouth i t s e l f  has a c t i v e l y  been p lac ing  DSLAMs i n  

i t s  remotes and has t o l d  FDN and CLECs t h a t  t o  provide DSL, the  

CLECs must do the same, co l loca te  DSLAMs i n  the  remote 

terminals. BellSouth knows f u l l  wel l  t h a t  t h i s  i s  an 

i m p o s s i b i l i t y  f o r  CLECs, and CLECs are thus impaired i n  

providing the  DSL service and FDN i s  impaired. 

FDN estimates t h a t  i t  could cost  hundreds o f  m i l l i o n s  

i n  nonrecurring and recur r ing  costs and could take years t o  

c o l l  ocate i n  so many Bel 1 South remote terminal s.  Bel 1 South i s  

not denying CLECs the r i g h t  t o  co l loca te  a t  t he  remote 

terminals. Testimony t h a t  they are o f f e r i n g  - -  t h e r e ' s  

testimony t h a t  w i l l  be introduced i n  the  record t h a t  BellSouth 

i s  o f f e r i n g  co l l oca t i on  a t  remote terminals on terms and 

condit ions general ly more favorable than those appl icable t o  

co l loca t ion  a t  COS. 

Now, how do we know t h a t  FDN i s  impaired? Well, you 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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are going t o  hear testimony i n  the record from Mr. Gallagher 

about cost and about imprac t i cab i l i t y .  As a matter o f  f a c t ,  

you w i l l  a l s o  hear testimony t h a t  no CLEC has co l located a t  so 

much as one BellSouth remote terminal a DSLAM, nor has any CLEC 

even applied t o  co l loca te  a t  a DSLAM, and i t ' s  u n l i k e l y  t h a t  

any w i l l .  

BellSouth w i l l  be arguing w i th  regard t o  t h i s  UNE 

issue, unbundled network element issue, the FCC's UNE Remand 

Drder. And i n  tha t  order, the  FCC addresses requirements f o r  

unbundling packet switching which includes the  DSLAM. With 

regard t o  tha t ,  I would l i k e  the  Commission t o  recognize two 

things. One, we bel ieve t h a t  the  UNE Remand Order i s  a product 

o f  a d i f f e r e n t  t ime and a d i f f e r e n t  understanding. The FCC was 

act ing on an est imat ion o f  where i t  thought the  i ndus t r y  was 

going. Given where the  indus t ry  ac tua l l y  developed and the  

circumstances o f  t h i s  case, t he  UNE Remand Order a c t u a l l y  

supports FDN's pos i t ion .  

The second t h i n g  I would l i k e  f o r  you t o  recognize 

wi th  regard t o  the UNE issue i s  t h a t  the Federal Act  and the  

ru les  set  the c r i t e r i a  f o r  t h i s  Commission t o  es tab l i sh  

addi t ional  unbundled network elements. Those requi  rements are 

met i n  t h i s  case as evidenced by the  testimony o f  

Mr. Gal 1 agher . Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. Bel 1South. 

MR. TURNER: Thank you, Commissioner Deason. My name 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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f ive-minute l i m i t  on the  opening. 

to  everything w i th  

l i t t l e  b i t  longer, 

l i t t l e  b i t  longer. 

as qu i ck l y  as poss 

A i  tnesses. 

14 

1South. There i s  a 

I w i l l  do my best t o  respond 

n f i v e  minutes. I t h ink  Mr. F e i l  went a 

and i f  I need it, I w i l l  ask f o r  j u s t  a 

But I w i l l  do everything I can t o  do t h i s  

b le ,  so we can hear t h i s  through the  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: You can take more than f i v e  

ninutes. There's on ly  one issue i n  t h i s  docket. 

MR. TURNER: Thank you, s i r .  I ' m  going t o  address i n  

wder  the  three main po in ts  Mr. Fe i l  ra ised. The f i r s t  i s  

dhether BellSouth w i l l  permit  i t s  Fast Access In te rne t  service 

w e r  a UNE l i n e  tha t  another c a r r i e r  i s  using t o  provide voice 

service. Second, I'll ta lk  about the resa le  arguments, and 

t h i r d ,  I ' m  going t o  t a l k  about the DSLAM t h a t  you heard him 

mention. 

F i r s t ,  a 

I n te rne t  service, 

t ha t  another car r  

end user. And i n  

i n  Docket 98- 147 

t ' s  t rue ,  BellSouth does no t  provide i t s  

Fast Access In te rne t  service,  over a UNE loop 

e r  i s  using t o  provide voice service t o  the 

i t s  Th i rd  Report and Order on reconsiderat ion 

:he FCC said, "Although the  Line Sharing Order 

ob1 igates incumbent LECs t o  make the  high- speed frequency 

po r t i on  o f  the  loop separately avai lab le t o  competing ca r r i e rs  

on loops where incumbent LECs provide the  voice service, i t  

does not requi re  t h a t  they, being incumbent LECs, provide xDSL 
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ce when they, the I L E C ,  are no longer the voice provider." 
s as clear as you can say i t .  

The second issue I ' d  like t o  address i s  resale. And 

i n  doing so, I want t o  distinguish between two separate 
products. One product i s  BellSouth Fast Access Internet 
service. T h a t  i s  an Internet service t h a t  we provide t o  retail 
end users. I t  is  not a telecommunication service. I t ' s  an 
enhanced service or is  a - - has been known i n  the pas t  an 
information service, b u t  i t ' s  an Internet service just like 
FDN.net's Internet service or any other Internet service t h a t  

you can go out  and buy. Because i t  i s  an information service 
and not a telecommunication service, i t  simply is  not subject 
t o  the resale provisions of the Act. The Act only requires the 

services . 
t h a t  is  out  there i s  a federally 
s not Internet service. T h a t  i s  
s used by the Internet service 
service through. I f  you t h i n k  of 

X L  as a pipe, you would t h i n k  of the Internet service as the 
dater flowing through the pipe. BellSouth sells  t h a t  pipe, but  

i t  does not sell t h a t  pipe t o  any end user. BellSouth sel ls  
the pipe t o  Internet services providers. And the Internet 
service providers i n  turn pu t  their water through the pipe and 

sell t h a t  package t o  the end user. 
Now, why i s  t h a t  important? Well, i n  June of this 

resale of telecommunications 
The second product 

tariffed DSL offering. T h a t  

the pipe, the b ig  pipe t h a t  
provider t o  p u t  his Internet 
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year, the D . C .  Circuit affirmed an FCC ruling t h a t  s a i d  this.  
The FCC ruling s a i d ,  i f  you take t h a t  DSL pipe and you sell i t  

directly t o  an end user, tha t ' s  a retail offering, and you have 
t o  resell t h a t ,  but  i f  you take t h a t  pipe and you sell i t  t o  an 
ISP, t h a t  is not a retail offering. T h a t  is  a wholesale 
offering, and t h a t  wholesale offering is  not subject t o  resale. 
And the D.C. Circuit affirmed t h a t  decision. And that 's  w h a t  
de're doing here. We d o n ' t  sell the pipe t o  an end user, and 

tell the end user, you go out  there and f ind  somebody t o  throw 
dater through the pipe for you. We sell the pipe t o  the ISP. 

They p u t  their water through the pipe, and they give i t  t o  the 
and user. So that 's  why this i s  not subject t o  the resale. 
I t ' s  very clear under the recent court orders. 

The third t h i n g  I want t o  address is  the U N E  argument 
that real y bo i l s  down t o  a DSLAM. FDN is  asking - - on Page 13 

)f Mr. Ga lagher's testimony, he says he's asking for a 
roadband  loop. And he explains the difference i n  t h a t  
roadband  loop he's asking for, and the DSL capable loops t h a t  
3ellSouth provides is  t h a t  his broadband loop is  going t o  
include packet switching functionality. That's the addi t iona l  

thing they want as a U N E ,  packet switching functionality. And 

the FCC has ruled on t h a t .  More particularly, w h a t  they really 
vant ,  we t h i n k  we're going t o  show by testimony, and we're 
joing t o  have some diagrams and walk  through this t o  make i t  

2asier t o  understand, bu t  as Mr. Feil said, wha t  they really 
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need i s ,  they need a DSLAM. 

out there,  they need a DSLAM i n  t h a t  remote terminal i n  order 

t o  provide t h i s  high-speed data service they want t o  provide. 

And you know what? When BellSouth wants t o  provide high-speed 

In te rne t  service t o  the same customers served out o f  t h a t  same 

remote terminal ,  BellSouth has t o  put  a DSLAM i n  there. As 

Mr. F e i l  said, BellSouth has been doing t h i s  i n  recent years. 

These DSLAMs, they ' re  not equipment t h a t ' s  been s i t t i n g  i n  the  

ground f o r  the  past 50 years. This i s  new s t u f f .  We've been 

r o l l i n g  t h i s  s t u f f  out i n  the l a s t  three or  four  years, since 

the  Act came out, since CLECs were there,  since DLECs were 

there. And when we want t o  serve our data customers, we've got 

t o  put a DSLAM i n  tha t  remote terminal j u s t  l i k e  we're saying 

they should put a DSLAM i n  the remote terminal .  

I n  those remote terminals t h a t  are 

So l e t ' s  look a t  what you r e a l l y  have t o  look a t .  

This issue i s ,  and they acknowledge t h i s ,  i s  are they impaired 

i n  t h e i r  a b i l i t y  t o  provide t h i s  high-speed service i f  they 

don ' t  have access t o  Bel lSouth's DSLAM? That 's  the  issue. 

Now, the  FCC has ru led  on t h i s .  The FCC i n  i t s  UNE Remand 

Order p l a i n l y  and c l e a r l y  stated a couple o f  th ings,  and w e ' l l  

get through t h i s  i n  the testimony. But the f i r s t  t h i n g  i t  d i d  

i s ,  i t  said a DSLAM - -  we def ine a DSLAM t o  be a pa r t  o f  packet 

switching. And then they came back and sa id i n  the  next couple 

o f  paragraphs, we decl i ne t o  unbundl e packet swi t c h i  ng . 
As M r .  R u s c i l l i  po in ts  out  throughout h i s  testimony, 
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there are p len ty  o f  places i n  t h a t  UNE Remand Order where they 

say, we want t o  provide the f u l l  f unc t i ona l i t y  o f  a loop except 

f o r  DSLAMs. They made i t  very c lear ,  a DSLAM i s  not  a UNE. 

Now, a f t e r  the FCC applied the very same impairment standard 

tha t  FDN i s  asking t h i s  Commission t o  apply and determined t h a t  

these DSLAMs are not UNEs. This Commission i t s e l f  looked a t  

the issue i n  two separate dockets, the I C G  Telecom docket and 

the Intermedia docket. Those are both a r b i t r a t i o n  proceedings 

w i th  BellSouth. And applying the  exact same impairment 

standard the  FCC applied, applying the exact same impairment 

standard t h a t  FDN wants you t o  apply today, t h i s  Commission has 

determined t h a t  t h a t ' s  not a UNE. 

So very b r i e f l y ,  l e t ' s  look and see what FDN would 

have t o  do and whether i t  meets the  impairment standard. As I 

stated before, when BellSouth wants t o  provide DSL service,  

BellSouth has t o  go t o  the  remote terminal t h a t ' s  serving i t s  

customers and determine whether i t  makes sense t o  pu t  a DSLAM 

i n  t h a t  remote terminal .  When i t  does so, i f  the re  are space 

l i m i t a t i o n  issues, BellSouth has t o  resolve those issues, has 

t o  expand the  terminal .  

support a DSLAM, we have got t o  pu t  power i n .  

temperature contro l  issues or  a i r - cond i t i on ing  issues, we've 

got t o  resolve those issues. I f  FDN wants t o  pu t  a DSLAM i n  

the same remote terminal ,  f i r s t  o f  a1 1, i t ' s  got  t o  buy a 

DSLAM. And you ' re  going t o  hear testimony today from FDN's own 

I f  the re ' s  not s u f f i c i e n t  power t o  

I f  the re ' s  
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witness t h a t  says they can buy a DSLAM. You've got several 

vendors out there who w i l l  s e l l  i t  t o  them. They're g e t t i n g  

competit ive bids on them. They can buy the DSLAM. The next 

t h ing  they need i s  co l loca t ion  space. And as M r .  F e i l  t o l d  

you, we make t h a t  co l loca t ion  space avai lable.  

DSLAM on a remote terminal, we do what the FCC says we've got 

t o  do. We expand t h a t  t h i n g  and l e t  them put a DSLAM i n  there 

i f  there 's  not space. I f  there 's  space there, they put  i t  i n  

and there 's  no issue. But i f  there i s  not space, you ' re  going 

t o  hear Mr. Will iams t e s t i f y ,  w e ' l l  add the space. And when we 

do, i t ' s  BellSouth t h a t ' s  going t o  add the space, i t ' s  

BellSouth t h a t ' s  going t o  deal w i t h  the loca l  zoning 

au thor i t ies ,  i t ' s  BellSouth t h a t ' s  going t o  take every step i t  

would have t o  take i f  i t  put i t s  own DSLAM i n  there.  We're 

going t o  a l l  ren t  the space and make avai lab le space f o r  a 

DSLAM . 

I f  we've got a 

Now, once FDN gets the DSLAM i n  the remote terminal ,  

what e lse does i t  need? Well, i t  needs t o  connect the DSLAM t o  

i t s  end user and t o  the central  o f f i c e .  Well, you ' re  going t o  

hear from Mr. Will iams t h a t  we provide UNEs t h a t  get them 

there. We provide subloop elements, a UNE t h a t  w i l l  go from 

the remote terminal t o  the end user premises, and we provide as 

UNEs a f i b e r  f a c i l i t y  that  w i l l  go from the remote terminal 

back t o  the CO. The only  t h i n g  t h a t  we're not  g i v i n g  as a UNE 

t h a t ' s  important i n  t h i s  docket i s  t h a t  DSLAM. And i t ' s  not  a 
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UNE. The FCC says i t ' s  no t  a UNE, and t h e y ' r e  not  impaired i n  

t h e i r  a b i l i t y  t o  do i t , because they can buy a DSLAM and w e ' l l  

work w i t h  them and augment the  space and l e t  them put  t h a t  

DSLAM i n t o  the remote terminal .  Before I end, I j u s t  want t o  

r e i t e r a t e  the standard t h a t  appl ies here. 

standard. The standard i s  not whether i t  would be more 

convenient f o r  FDN i f  i t  could use Bel lSouth's DSLAM than i f  i t  

had t o  put  i t s  own DSLAM i n ,  and the standard i s  not  whether i t  

would be easier f o r  FDN t o  implement i t s  business p lan i f  i t  

could use the BellSouth DSLAM equipment instead o f  pu t t i ng  i n  

i t s  own. The issue i s ,  i s  FDN impaired from p u t t i n g  i n  i t s  own 

DSLAM? And we th ink  the  evidence w i l l  c l e a r l y  show they ' re  

not .  Thank you f o r  your a t ten t ion .  

I t ' s  the impairment 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. I bel ieve we're a t  

t he  po in t  t o  where we can swear i n  witnesses. S t a f f ,  you have 

a number o f  exh ib i ts .  Do you want those i d e n t i f i e d  a t  t h i s  

po in t?  

MS. BANKS: Yes, Commissioner Deason. S t a f f  has 

conferred w i th  par t ies ,  and these are s t i pu la ted  exh ib i ts .  

S t i p  1 i s  selected responses from FDN's f i r s t  s e t  o f  

in te r rogator ies  t o  Bel lSouth, s p e c i f i c a l l y  In te r rogatory  

Numbers 2 through 13 and 20 through 25. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That w i l l  be i d e n t i f i e d  as 

Exh ib i t  1. 

(Exh ib i t  1 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n .  1 
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MS. BANKS: S t i p  2 i s  selected responses from 

BellSouth's f i r s t  set o f  in ter rogator ies t o  FDN, s p e c i f i c a l l y  

In ter rogatory  Numbers 1 through 8. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That w i l l  be i d e n t i f i e d  as 

Exh ib i t  2. 

(Exh ib i t  2 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MS. BANKS: St ipu lated Exh ib i t  3 or  S t i p  3 wou 

be - - i s  selected responses from S t a f f  ' s second set o f  

in ter rogator ies t o  BellSouth, s p e c i f i c a l l y  In ter rogatory  

\umbers 5 through 11. 

d 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That w i l l  be Exh ib i t  Number 3. 

(Exh ib i t  3 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MS. BANKS: S t i p  4 i s  selected responses from S t a f f ' s  

second set o f  in te r rogator ies  t o  FDN, s p e c i f i c a l l y  

Interrogatory Numbers 3 through 8. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That w i l l  be Exh ib i t  4. 

(Exh ib i t  4 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MS. BANKS: And S t i p  5 i s  selected responses from 

S t a f f ' s  second set o f  in te r rogator ies  t o  Bel lSouth, 

spec i f i ca l l y  In ter rogatory  Numbers 52 through 70. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h a t  w i l l  be Exh ib i t  5. 

(Exh ib i t  5 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MS. BANKS: And t h a t ' s  a l l  t h a t  S t a f f  has. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And the re ' s  no object ion t o  

m t e r i n g  these exh ib i t s  i n t o  the record? Hearing no object ion,  
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then Exhib i ts  1 through 5 are admitted. 

(Exhib i ts  1 through 5 admitted i n t o  the record.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I'll ask a l l  witnesses who are 

here t o  please stand and ra ise  your r i g h t  hand. 

(Witnesses c o l l e c t i v e l y  sworn. ) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. Please be seated. 

Mr. F e i l  . 
MR. FEIL: F lor ida D i g i t a l  Network c a l l s  

Michael Gallagher t o  the stand. 

And, Commissioner, whi le  M r .  Gallagher i s  working h i s  

way up, I wanted t o  so r t  o f  c o l l e c t i v e l y  ask the  Commission and 

the par t ies  f o r  a preference question. A good deal o f  the  

testimony, the p r e f i l e d  testimony, per ta ins t o  issues t h a t  have 

since been withdrawn. We could e i t h e r  leave i t  a l l  as i s  i n  

the record, o r  we can walk Mr. Gallagher and the other 

witnesses through i t  t o  get i t  withdrawn or  whatever - - 
whatever the pa r t i es  and the Commission prefers.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Bel 1South. 

MS. WHITE: It would probably be easier j u s t  t o  leave 

i t  a l l  i n  and j u s t  have the Commission take - -  deal w i t h  the  

testimony on Issue 1 when i t  comes t o  the  recommendation and 

the order. 

MS. BANKS: S t a f f  would agree w i t h  Ms. White. 

Leaving i t  a l l  i n  - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I wonder i f  the court  repor te r  
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agrees w i th  t h a t .  

MS. WHITE: Maybe not.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Is t h i s  a problem f o r  the court  

Some o f  i t  reporter? We're going t o  put  a l l  the testimony i n .  

i s  r e a l l y  not necessary, but  - - 
THE COURT REPORTER: No problem. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: No problem, okay. The cour t  

repor ter  agrees, then I agree. 

MR. FEIL: A l l  r i g h t .  Thank you. 

MICHAEL P. GALLAGHER 

das ca l l ed  as a witness on behal f  o f  F lo r ida  D i g i t a l  Network, 

Inc. ,  and, having been du ly  sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fo l lows:  

DIRECT EXAM1 NATION 

3Y MR. FEIL: 

Q Mr. Gallagher, you have been sworn, have you not? 

A Yes. Yes, I have. 

Q Okay. Are you the  - - we l l ,  could you s ta te  your name 

and address f o r  the record, please. 

A Michael Gallagher, F lo r i da  D i g i t a l  Network, 390 North 

)range Avenue, Orlando, F lor ida.  

Q Are you the same Michael P. Gallagher who p r e f i l e d  

f i r e c t  and rebut ta l  testimony i n  t h i s  proceeding? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q Do you have any changes, addi t ions,  o r  correct ions t o  

my o f  your p r e f i l e d  testimony? 
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A No. 
Q Well, i n  your deposition, d id  you n o t  correct one 

math error - -  
A Yes, that ' s  correct, I did. 
Q - -  on Page 37 of your testimony? 
A Yes. 

Q 
A Yes. 
Q I f  you could, p o i n t  us out  t o  the 
A Yes. The math error should be t h  

Do you have t h a t  i n  front o f  you? 

29.95, i t  should be $29 even. 

Q 
A Eleven and 12. 

Q 
A Yes, $20 even. 
Q Twenty dollars. 

And on w h a t  line was t h a t ?  

You s a i d  29.95 should be $20? 

page and line. 
t - -  instead o f  

A 

Q A l l  right. And t h a t  same number, $29, goes on Line 
I t  should be 49 minus 20.95 equals 29 even. 

11 and Line 12? 

A Yes. 

Q Did you have any other corrections or updates or 
anyth ing  else regarding your prefiled testimony, either direct 
or rebuttal? 

A No. 

Q You had attached t o  your prefiled direct and rebuttal 
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testimony several exh ib i ts ,  only, by my account, one o f  which 

per ta ins t o  an outstanding issue, and t h a t  i s  e x h i b i t  labeled 

MPG-1;  i s  t h a t  correct? 

A That 's  correct .  

MR. FEIL: Commissioners, I would ask t h a t  you 

i d e n t i f y  M P G - 1  or  give i t  the next assigned e x h i b i t  number, 

which I bel ieve i s  6. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That w i l l  be 6, yes. 

(Exhib i t  6 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MR. FEIL: Commissioners, a t  l eas t  w i t h  regard t o  the 

exh ib i ts ,  we probably could e a s i l y  throw out the  excess on 

those, so - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON : I agree. 

MR. FEIL: A l l  r i g h t .  With tha t ,  Commissioner, I 

yl~ould ask t h a t  Mr. Gallagher's p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  and p r e f i l e d  

rebut ta l  testimony be inser ted i n t o  the record as though read. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without object ion,  I show then 

tha t  the p r e f i l e d  d i r e c t  and rebut ta l  testimony o f  

ditness Gallagher i s  inser ted i n t o  the record. 
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Q. Please state your name and address. 

A. My name is Michael P. Gallagher. My business address is 390 North 

Orange Avenue, Suite 390, Orlando, Florida, 32801. 

Q. Who do you work for? 

A. I am Chief Executive Officer of Florida Digital Network, Inc. (“FDN”). 

Q. What are your responsibilities as CEO of FDN? 

A. As CEO of FDN, I am ultimately responsible to the shareholders for all 

aspects of FDN’s operations and performance. On a management level, 

FDN’s President & Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and 

General Counsel report directly to me; FDN’s Engineering & Operations, 

Customer Service, and Sales Vice Presidents report to the President & COO, 

who is also in charge of FDN’s Marketing and IS functions. I am involved in 

the day-to-day business dealings of the company and the decision-making on 

everything from marketing and sales strategies, product development, 

network architecture and deployment, financing, human resources, customer 

care, regulatory changes, etc. 

Q. Please describe your education and your work experience in the 

telecommunications sector. 

A. I received a B.S. Degree in Mathematics with a minor in Physics from 

Rollins College. 

Prior to co-founding FDN in 1998, I served as Regional Vice 

President for Brooks Fiber Communications where I had overall 

responsibility for operations, engineering, finance and sales in the State of 
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Texas. Brooks Fiber Communications merged into WorldCom on January 

3 1, 1998. Prior to holding the VP position at Brooks, I was president of 

Metro Access Networks (MAN), a second-generation CLEC in Texas 

founded in 1993. At MAN, I developed all business strategies, designed 

network architecture, secured contracts with the company’s original customer 

base, and had overall responsibility for operations and performance. MAN 

merged into Brooks Fiber in March 1997. Prior to MAN, I worked for 

Intennedia Communications and Williams Telecommunications Group 

(WilTel) as sales representative securing contracts with large commercial 

customers. 

Q. Have you previously testified in a regulatory proceeding before a 

state utility commission, the FCC or a hearing officer? 

A. No. 

Q. What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding? 

A. I will address the interconnection agreement issues FDN could not 

resolve with BellSouth and which FDN raised in its Arbitration Petition. 

Q. Please briefly describe FDN’s operations. 

A. FDN is a facilities-based Florida CLEC. FDN is also an IXC, a data 

services provider (both dial-up and dedicated), and, through an affiliate, FDN 

offers ISP and other Internet services. FDN was founded in 1998 with the 

mission of offering packaged services (local, long distance and Internet) to 
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small- and medium-sized businesses. FDN launched operations in Orlando in 

April 1999 and expanded to Fort Lauderdale in May 1999 and to Jacksonville 

in June 1999. A second round of expansion in West Palm Beach, Miami and 

the Tampa Bay area was completed in the first quarter of 2000. 

FDN owns and operates Class 5 Nortel DMS-500 central office 

switches in Orlando, Tampa, Jacksonville, and Ft. Lauderdale. FDN’s 

switches are connected by fiber optic cable owned and operated by FDN to 

nearby incumbent local exchange carrier (or “ILEC”) tandem switches. FDN 

leases collocation cages or has virtual collocation space in over 100 ILEC 

wire centers. Remote switching equipment is installed at these collocation 

sites and from these sites FDN accesses ILEC UNE loops. Connectivity from 

the collocation sites to the central ILEC tandem switch is via T-1 circuits 

leased from the ILEC. FDN relies upon its rights under the federal 

Telecommunications Act of 1996 (the “Act”) to obtain “last mile” access to 

Florida consumers through the purchase of unbundled network elements 

(UNEs) from ILECs such as BellSouth. 

FDN uses BellSouth’s TAG gateway for electronic ordering. Using 

systems and software FDN developed on its own, FDN transmits virtually all 

of its local service requests (“LSRs”) to Bell electronically with minimal 

manual intervention. The vast majority of FDN’s LSRs to BellSouth are for 

2 wire voice grade UNE loops. Based on information from BellSouth, FDN 

believes that FDN is by far the largest procurer of UNE voice-grade loops in 

Florida and that FDN has installed more UNE loops than all other CLECs in 
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Florida combined. Through relief sought in this proceeding, FDN intends to 

expand its use of BellSouth UNEs for the provision of competitive local 

voice and data services to both business and residential users in the State of 

Florida. 

ISSUE 1. 

I. INTRODUCTION 

Q. 

A. 

What is the purpose of FDN’s high-speed data proposal? 

FDN seeks the ability to offer its customers a combination of circuit- 

switched voice services, such as local dial tone, and packet-switched high- 

speed data services, such as Digital Subscriber Line (DSL) services. FDN is 

able to provide DSL to some end-users in Florida by collocating its own DSL 

multiplexers (DSLAMs) in BellSouth’s central offices. However, FDN is 

precluded from providing high-speed data service where BellSouth has 

deployed Digital Loop Carrier (DLC) facilities. Except in the territory served 

by SBC Communications, Inc., CLECs are generally precluded from offering 

DSL service where DLCs are deployed. The severity of this limitation on 

competition is felt nowhere more than Florida, as more than 60% of all 

BellSouth access lines in Florida pass through DLCs according to BellSouth. 

In FDN’s experience in its initial Florida markets, FDN believes the 

percentage of DLCs approaches 70%. BellSouth does not offer any resale or 

UNE products that would enable CLECs to provide high-speed data service 

to consumers who are served by DLC loops where the CLEC is the voice 

provider. The purpose of my testimony is to offer the factual basis required 
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for the Florida Commission to order BellSouth to offer UNE and resale 

products, in accordance with applicable law, that will be essential for FDN to 

offer high-speed data services on an ubiquitous basis in Florida over the same 

customer loops that it uses to provide its voice services. This issue is of 

paramount importance for FDN to be able to launch a facilities-based 

competitive local voice option for residential subscribers. Florida is almost 

completely without facilities based local voice competition for residential 

subscribers at this time. 

Q. What is DSL? 

A. DSL is a technology initially developed to enable high-speed data 

transmission over traditional copper loop facilities. DSL modems placed on 

each end of a copper loop transmit information at rates far exceeding those 

typically achieved by traditional “dial-up” modems, allowing consumers to 

utilize the growing number of bandwidth intensive applications and to 

maximize efficiencies and productivity. To provide a viable DSL 

transmission service, the loop between the customer and the DSLAM must 

typically be shorter than 18,000 feet, free of bridged tap, load coils and 

repeaters, and free from interference caused by nearby fiber-based 

telecommunications. 

Q. 

its voice service on a ubiquitous basis in Florida? 

A. FDN is collocated in more than half of BellSouth’s central 

offices in the state of Florida, and is able to offer voice services to 100% of 

Is FDN able to offer high-speed data services in conjunction with 

No. 
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the consumers served by these offices. However, FDN is unable to provide 

DSL service to approximately 70% of these end-users because of the 

presence of BellSouth DLCs. 

Q. What are DLCs? 

A. The DLC performs an analog to digital conversion that aggregates 

telecommunications from the individual customer subloops to a shared 

transmission facility bound for the central office. Deployment of DLCs and 

successor technologies will ultimately save billions of dollars annually in 

maintenance and switching costs. In the past, and still today throughout most 

of the country, the vast majority of last mile loops consist of “home run” 

copper facilities between the customer and the central office. However, in 

the past quarter-century, as Florida’s population grew explosively, BellSouth 

deployed a tremendous number of DLCs at remote terminals (RTs) in its 

distribution network. Attached hereto as Exhibit - (MPG-1) is a diagram 

comparing traditional copper network architecture with DLC deployment. 

Q. 

service? 

A. DSL cannot be transmitted through a DLC unless it is first 

multiplexed for digital transmission to the central office. Therefore, the 

carrier must locate at the remote terminal a DSLAM, or, in the case of Next 

Generation Digital Loop Carriers (“NGDLCs”), DSL-capable line cards that 

perform DSLAM functionality. For reasons I will explain below, unlike 

BellSouth, FDN and other CLECs cannot collocate DSLAMs or line cards at 

Why do BellSouth’s DLCs preclude FDN from offering DSL 

6 



3 2  

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

remote terminals. Therefore, BellSouth today is the only carrier in Florida 

able to offer DSL service where its DLCs are deployed. 

Q.  

in the territory served by SBC? 

A. SBC offers a wholesale UNE-priced broadband loop product that 

includes transmission from the customer to the remote terminal, DSLAh4 

functionality at the RT, and transmission to the central office, where CLECs 

pick up the traffic from SBC’s packet switch. Verizon is developing a 

similar product. As I will explain in more detail below, FDN seeks a similar 

UNE from BellSouth, tailored to the technical specifications of BellSouth’s 

Florida network. 

Q. 

DSL only on non-DLC loops? 

A. It would be very difficult as demand for DSL increases. In most 

Florida central offices, more so than in most of the rest of the nation, FDN 

will not be able to succeed in the voice or data market if it is limited to 

providing DSL service only to end-users who can be served from the central 

office. As I stated previously, more than 60% of BellSouth’s Florida access 

lines pass through DLCs and cannot be served from the central office. Of the 

remaining 30-40% of the end-user base, many cannot receive central office 

based DSL due to excessive loop lengths, the presence of bridged taps, load 

coils or repeaters, or other factors. With such a high percentage of the DSL 

market closed to central-office-only strategies, CLECs will not be able to 

Why can CLECs provide high-speed data service over DLC loops 

Can FDN sustain long-term viability if it is limited to providing 
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compete. Furthermore, if BellSouth is the only carrier that can provide DSL 

to a substantial percentage of consumers, it can leverage its market power to 

suppress competition for voice services, as I have indicated above. 

Therefore, an exclusive central office strategy will not only fail in the DSL 

market, but it could also fail in the voice services market as well. My point is 

well illustrated by the failure of many exclusive central-office based CLEC 

strategies, even where the rate of DLCs is much lower than Florida. Of the 

three major national DSL CLECs, NorthPoint has already dissolved in 

bankruptcy and Covad and Rhythms are in serious financial peril and could 

be bankrupt during the course of this year. 

Q. 

data services? 

A. A large and growing number of residential and business customers are 

seeking carriers that can satisfy all of their telecommunications needs, 

including voice and high-speed data services. These customers want to be 

able to obtain these services through a single point of contact and on a single 

bill. If FDN is unable to offer high-speed data services, it will not only lose 

opportunities in the data market, but it will also be unable to remain 

competitive in the voice local exchange and interexchange markets in 

Florida. 

Q. 

urgent? 

Why it is important for FDN to be able to offer both voice and 

Is FDN’s objective to provide high-speed data service in Florida 
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A. Absolutely. It is well established that early entry and early name 

recognition are crucial to success in markets for new technologies and new 

services. BellSouth understands this as well, as it is aggressively deploying 

DSL in Florida today even as it denies competitors the resale and UNE DSL 

products that CLECs need to compete. With each day that passes, FDN falls 

further behind BellSouth in the high-speed data market, and the probability of 

losing its existing and prospective voice customers grows. In Florida alone, 

BellSouth by the end of April 2001 had 133,015 high-speed data subscribers 

in the State of Florida, 43,291 of which were added in the first quarter 2001. 

Florida customers represent nearly one-half of BellSouth’s DSL lines region- 

wide, and approximately one-half of its first quarter growth. Therefore, 

FDN’s efforts to obtain the resale and UNE products for a bundled DSL and 

voice offering are extremely urgent and are of utmost importance to FDN’s 

short-term and long-term viability in the state. 

Q. Does FDN’s inability to offer voice and high-speed data on the 

same telephone line impair its ability to offer local exchange voice 

services in Florida? 

A. Yes. First, as I mentioned, FDN’s inability to offer high-speed data to 

most customers impairs its ability to sell voice services to customers looking 

for a bundled service offering from a single carrier. Second, FDN is impaired 

in its ability to sell local exchange voice services by BellSouth’s unnecessary 

and anticompetitive practice of leveraging its control of the DSL market in 

Florida to injure competitors in the voice market. To illustrate, if a 
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prospective FDN customer today is obtaining both voice and data services 

from BellSouth, they are not able to migrate their local exchange voice 

service to FDN’s facilities-based voice service without having BellSouth 

disconnect their data service, even though BellSouth easily has the capability 

to continue to provide data service on the line. Because FDN is unable in 

most cases to offer DSL service to the customer on the same telephone line, 

the customer is likely to lose interest in obtaining voice telephone services 

fkom FDN, even when FDN is able to offer superior pricing and service. 

BellSouth’s ability to manipulate its market power to injure competitors will 

only increase as competitive DSL providers continue to disappear. 

Q. 

consumers? 

A. In markets where only one or only a few providers are available, these 

providers have fewer incentives to provide quality service or competitive 

rates to their customers. As BellSouth has solidified its growing control over 

the DSL market in Florida, it recently raised its retail DSL prices in the state 

and discontinued some of its competitive promotions. If competitors are 

denied meaningful access to BellSouth’s last mile connections to end-users, 

price increases could be expected to continue. 

Q. In this arbitration, is FDN requesting the same relief sought by 

MCI WorldCom in Docket No. 000649-TP that BellSouth be required to 

provide xDSL service to FDN customers? 

How does the lack of competitive DSL providers affect Florida 

10 
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A. No. FDN is not in this arbitration seeking to require BellSouth to 

provide retail xDSL or ISP sewices to consumers who are also FDN 

customers. Instead, FDN proposes to purchase wholesale access to 

BellSouth’s unbundled network elements pursuant to Section 25 1 of the Act. 

BellSouth would not be required to have end-user relationships, such as 

billing or customer service, with FDN’s customers. Nor would BellSouth be 

required to connect the customers from the central office to an ISP’s point of 

presence, or to provide Intemet service itself; instead, as with other UNEs, 

FDN would access the loop via its collocated facilities in BellSouth’s central 

offices. Therefore, the decision in the MCI WorldCom arbitration in Docket 

No. 000649-TP regarding BellSouth’s obligation to provide xDSL service is 

not relevant in this arbitration. 

11. BELLSOUTH SHOULD BE REQUIRED TO OFFER 

UNBUNDLED BROADBAND LOOPS AS A UNE 

Q. To enable FDN to provide bundled voice and high-speed data 

service products where DLCs are deployed, does FDN require access to 

facilities that are different from the UNEs offered in other BellSouth 

Florida interconnection agreements? 

A. Yes. At the time that the current national list of UNEs was 

established in the FCC’s UNE Remand Order in 1999, the FCC formalized as 

UNEs only the network elements needed for local exchange and DSL service 

in an ILEC network in which the predominant last mile connections are home 
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run copper loops. BellSouth’s existing network in Florida is very different 

from the FCC’s conceived model, with more far more fiber and DLCs. Due 

to the differences between BellSouth’s DLC-dominated Florida network and 

other ILECs’ copper-based distribution systems, it is necessary to establish 

additional UNEs and/or apply the FCC’s standard to unbundle packet 

switching in order to ensure that CLECs can provide ubiquitous xDSL 

service in Florida using UNEs. 

Q. 

A. Yes. Section 251(d)(3) of the Act explicitly authorizes state 

commissions to establish additional unbundling obligations. When the FCC 

established the basic list of UNEs that must be unbundled by all ILECs, the 

FCC emphasized that “section 25 l(d)(3) grants state commissions the 

authority to impose additional obligations upon incumbent LECs beyond 

those imposed by the national list.”’ The Line Sharing Order, which sought 

to promote unbundled CLEC access to DSL, further encouraged state 

commissions “to impose additional, pro-competitive requirements consistent 

with the national framework established in this order.”2 

Q. 

data services in BellSouth’s territory in Florida? 

A. Where BellSouth has deployed Digital Loop Carrier facilities, FDN 

requires access to unbundled DSL-capable transmission facilities between the 

Can the Florida Commission establish new UNEs? 

What new UNEs are necessary to enable FDN to offer high-speed 

1 Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996, CC 
Docket No. 96-98, Third Report and Order, 15 FCC Rcd. 3696, 7 154 (1999) (“UNE Remand 
Order ”). 
2 Deployment of Wireline Services Offering Advanced Telecommunications Capability, CC Docket 
No. 98-147, Third Report and Order, 14 FCC Rcd. 20912, at 7 159 (1999) (“Line Sharing Order”). 
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customer’s Network Interface Device and the BellSouth distribution frame in 

its central offices, including all attached electronics that perform DSL 

multiplexing and splitting functionalities. I will describe these facilities as 

“broadband loops.” FDN seeks the ability to obtain both whole loops for a 

combined voice and data service and the high-frequency portion thereof for 

data- only service. 

Q. 

classified as a UNE under the UNE Remand Order? 

A. Under my description, broadband loops include the packet switching 

and splitter functionalities that are performed by BellSouth’s equipment 

located at a remote terminal. The traditional UNE loop does not include the 

DSLAM. 

Q. Why would the network elements necessary to provide high-speed 

data service over DLC loops be different from the definition of a non- 

DLC loop? 

A. As I stated above, FDN is not able to offer xDSL service over DLC 

loops using only the existing UNEs. In the UNE Remand Order, the FCC 

determined that CLECs could place their own DSLAMs in ILEC central 

offices on the same terms and conditions that the ILEC located its own 

DSLAM, and that they were therefore not impaired by a lack of unbundled 

access to ILEC DSLAMs in the central office. As I will explain in more 

detail below, CLECs are not able to self-provision or otherwise obtain 

DSLAM functionality at ILEC remote terminals on an equivalent basis. 

How does this facility differ from the DSL-capable loop that is 
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Even in rare cases where such provisioning may be technically feasible, the 

option is financially impossible for FDN and other CLECs. Therefore, as I 

will explain below, CLECs would be impaired if DSLAM functionality is not 

included as part of the broadband loop UNE. 

Q. Is there a regulatory precedent for requiring incumbents to 

provide a platform of UNEs that comprise DSL transmission over loops 

with fiber feeder at prices based on forward-looking, economic cost? 

A. Yes. In a proceeding relating to the SBC-Ameritech merger, the FCC 

required SBC to offer to CLECs a “Broadband Offering,” which the FCC 

described as a “combination of network elements provided as a wholesale 

as~angement.”~ The Broadband Offering must be offered, alone and in 

combination with a voice offering, at rates, terms, and conditions that are 

just, reasonable, and nondiscriminatory and priced in accordance with the 

TELRIC methodology applicable to unbundled network  element^.^ SBC’s 

Broadband Service, which is available in SBC’s thirteen-state region today, is 

functionally equivalent to the broadband loop requested by FDN in this 

arbitration. Therefore, FDN is seeking from BellSouth what SBC already 

offers to CLECs in its thirteen-state region. 

Q. Have any regulators classified broadband loops as a UNE? 

~ ~ ~ 

3 Ameritech Corp., Transferor and SBC Communications, Inc., Transferee, For Consent to Transfer 
Control of Corporations Holding Commission Licenses and Lines Pursuant to Sections 2 14 and 
3 10(d) of the Communications Act and Parts 5, 22, 24, 25, 63, 90, 95, and 101 of the Commission’s 
Rules, CC Docket No. 98-141, ASD File No. 99-49, Second Memorandum Opinion and Order, FCC 
00-336 (rel. September 8,2000) (“Project Pronto Order”), at 7 30. 

4 Project Pronto Order at 7 6 (footnote omitted). 
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A. Yes. The FCC described the offering as a combination of network 

elements and required that it be priced according to the TELRIC cost 

methodology used to price UNEs.’ The Illinois Commerce Commission 

recently created the broadband loop with packet switching functionality as a 

new UNE.6 Numerous other state commissions are now considering the issue. 

Although the issue is also pending in an FCC proceeding, the FCC has 

indicated that it expects that issues related to access to DLC loops will be 

addressed in state arbitration proceedings. 

Q. Have any ILECs other than SBC made plans to offer a similar 

combination of network elements to provide wholesale DSL capability? 

A. Yes. Verizon has developed a draft proposal for a product that is 

functionally equivalent of SBC’s Broadband Offering and the broadband 

UNE loop proposed by FDN in this case, called its Packet Access at Remote 

Terminal Service (PARTS), 

Q. Is CLEC access to DLC-served customers less urgent in BellSouth 

territory than in SBC and Verizon’s regions? 

5 The FCC did not formally classify the offering as a UNE because it has reserved that issue to a 
pending generic case that will be applicable to all ILECs. See Deployment of Wireline Services 
Offering Advanced Telecommunications Capability, CC Docket 98-147, CC Docket 96-98, Order on 
Reconsideration and Second Further Notice of Proposed Rulemaking in CC Docket No. 98-147 and 
Fifth Further Notice ofproposed Rulemaking in CC Docket 96-98, FCC 00-297, at 17 81-83, 103-12, 
119-28 (rel. Aug. 10, 2000). 

6 See Arbitration Decision on Rehearing, In the Matter of Petition for  Arbitration Pursuant to Section 
252(b) of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 to Establish an Amendment fo r  Line Sharing to the 
Interconnection Agreement with Illinois Bell Telephone Company d/b/a Ameritech Illinois, and for  an 
Expedited Arbitration Award on Certain Core Issues, et al., Illinois Commerce Commission, Docket 
Nos. 00-03 12 and 00-03 13 (Illinois Commerce Commission, Feb. 15,2001) (“Illinois Pronto 
Arbitration Order”); see also In the Matter of Illinois Bell Company Proposed Implementation of 
High Frequency Portion of Loop (HFPL)/Line Sharing Services, Illinois Commerce Commission, 
Docket No. 00-0393, Order (Ill. Commerce Commission Mar. 14,2001. 
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A. Absolutely not. In fact, this issue is more urgent in Florida because of 

BellSouth’s massive deployment of DLCs in the state. SBC offered its 

broadband service in conjunction with its rollout of DSL-capable DLC loops, 

and Verizon has stated that it has not yet provided DSL over DLC loops. By 

contrast, BellSouth has already provisioned a tremendous number of DSL 

lines over DLC loops in Florida. In the absence of a broadband loop UNE, a 

higher percentage of Florida end-users are deprived of competitive choice of 

DSL and voice providers than would be occurring in SBC and Verizon 

territory. 

Q. 

whether to create any new UNEs? 

A. FCC Rule 51.317 prescribes the legal standard to be used by state 

commissions when creating new UNES.~ When prospective UNEs implicate 

specified proprietary rights of the ILECs, a state must find that access to that 

element is “necessary.” When no proprietary rights are implicated, the state 

need only find that CLECs would be “impaired” without access to the 

element. Under FCC rules, a network element is considered to be proprietary 

only if the ILEC demonstrates that it has invested resources to develop 

proprietary information or functionalities that are protected by patent, 

copyright or trade secret law.8 The discrete elements such as line sharing, 

packet switching, and fiber functionality that comprise the unbundled access 

that are sought here have been previously deemed non-proprietary by the 

What standard must the Florida Commission employ in deciding 

7 47 C.F.R. 5 51.3 17. 

8 See 47 C.F.R. 5 5 1.3 17(a). 
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FCC.’ Therefore, in this arbitration, none of FDN’s proposals would 

implicate BellSouth’s proprietary rights. For these reasons, the Florida 

Commission should use the “impair” standard to determine whether any new 

UNEs should be created. 

Q. 

new UNEs? 

A. When evaluating whether to unbundle a network element under the 

“impair” standard, federal regulations require unbundling if lack of access to 

the network element impairs a carrier’s ability to provide the services it seeks 

to offer. “A requesting carrier’s ability to provide service is ‘impaired’ if, 

taking into consideration the availability of alternative elements outside the 

ILEC’ s network, including self-provisioning by a requesting carrier or 

acquiring an altemative from a third-party supplier, lack of access to that 

element materially diminishes a requesting carrier’s ability to provide the 

services it seeks to offer.”” The FCC rules establish that the “totality of 

circumstances” must be considered to determine whether an alternative to the 

ILEC’s network is available in such a manner that a requesting carrier can 

realistically be expected to actually provide services using the alternative.” 

When determining whether to require additional unbundling, FCC Rule 

5 1.3 17(b) requires that the Commission consider the cost, timeliness, quality, 

ubiquity, and impact on network operations that may be associated with any 

How is the “impair” standard used by state commissions to create 

9 See UNE Remand Order at T[ 180 & 305; Line Sharing Order at 7 28. 

10 47 C.F.R. 5 5 1.3 17(b). 

11 UNE Remand Order at 7 62. 

17 



4 3  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

alternatives to unbundling. In addition, other factors such as promotion of 

the rapid introduction of competition; facilities-based competition, 

investment, and innovation; or certainty to requesting carriers regarding the 

availability of the element may also be considered by the Commission.'2 

Q. If broadband loops were not available as a UNE, are there any 

viable alternatives available to FDN to provide high-speed data service 

where BellSouth has deployed DLCs? 

A. 

today to customers served by DLC loops in Florida. 

Q. What options do you believe that BellSouth may assert as 

justifications for withholding UNE designation of broadband loops? 

A. I am aware that ILECs have alleged that at least three alternatives are 

available to CLECs -- CLEC collocation of DSLAMs at the remote terminal, 

the use of all-copper loops, and construction of their own distribution 

network. None of these options offer viable options for FDN or other 

CLECs. If left only with these options, FDN would be not only impaired but 

prevented from being able to offer DSL service to a growing majority of 

Florida consumers, and, as a result, would be impaired in its ability to offer 

voice local exchange services as well. 

Q. 

by DLCs by collocating DSLAMs at BellSouth's remote terminals? 

A. No. The cost of providing ubiquitous service throughout the state of 

Florida by collocating DSLAMs at remote terminals would be staggeringly 

No. If viable alternatives were available, FDN would be selling DSL 

Could FDN provide ubiquitous DSL service to end-users served 

12 See 47 C.F.R. 5 5 1.3 17(c). 
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expensive, and well beyond the capability of FDN or other CLECs. FDN 

invested millions of dollars and much of its human and technical resources to 

collocate equipment in 100 of BellSouth’s 196 central offices in the state of 

Florida. By contrast, BellSouth has more than 12,000 remote terminals in the 

state of Florida. Collocation on this scale is financially impossible for FDN 

and would be tantamount to duplication of a significant portion of 

BellSouth’s monopoly-built last mile distribution network. In any case, 

collocation even at single remote terminals is precluded by numerous other 

factors. As evidence of this reality, according to BellSouth’s discovery 

responses in this case, no CLEC has collocated, or even requested to 

collocate, at a BellSouth remote terminal in the entire state of Florida. 

Q. 

terminals? 

A. First, in most cases, even if BellSouth permitted FDN to collocate a 

DSLAM inside the remote terminal, no fiber feeder will be available to 

transport the telecommunications back to FDN’s collocation site in the 

central office. BellSouth has repeatedly maintained that dark fiber will in 

most cases not be available to CLECs at these locations. In most or all cases, 

no dark fiber would be available from any third parties, as third parties would 

have had little reason to invest in fiber between two locations controlled and 

highly regulated by BellSouth. Therefore, in most cases, FDN could only use 

a remotely-collocated DSLAM if it were to construct its own fiber-optic 

What factors preclude CLEC collocation at individual remote 
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3 Q. Could FDN construct its own fiber-optic transmission between 

4 BellSouth’s remote terminals and central offices for the purpose of 

5 providing DSL service through remotely-collocated DSLAMs? 

6 A. No. Such an endeavor would be prohibitively costly and time- 

7 consuming. The FCC noted that “the costs associated with self-provisioning 

8 or purchasing alternative elements from third-party suppliers are relevant to 

9 [a] determination of whether the element is a practical and economical 

10 alternative to the incumbent LEC’s unbundled network elen~ent.”’~ The cost 

11 of constructing new fiber facilities would be incredibly expensive, and 

12 completely unaffordable, to FDN or to a third-party supplier. Such 

13 construction would require FDN to incur tremendous costs to secure rights- 

14 of-way, dig up the path of the fiber, and install equipment. These costs 

15 would not justify the comparatively limited revenues that could be realized 

16 from high-speed data services to the limited number of end-users served by a 

17 single remote terminal. 

18 

19 for its DSL connectivity? 

20 

21 
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transport between the remote terminal and FDN’s facilities, such as those it 

has collocated at BellSouth’s central office. 

Q. How would these costs compare to the costs borne by BellSouth 

A. BellSouth has already years ago secured rights-of-way and incurred 

most of the costs of placing fiber. Unlike FDN, BellSouth would not be 

required to place new fiber in order to carry new traffic. When BellSouth 

informs CLECs that no dark fiber is available, that does not mean that no 

13 UNE Remand Order at 7 72. 
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fiber is available for BellSouth’s use. ILECs typically reserve a substantial 

amount of fiber capacity between their remote terminals and central offices. 

Therefore, BellSouth would not have needed to place new fiber facilities to 

add DSLAMs and DSL to its remote terminals. Furthermore, even if its 

bandwidth were exhausted between an RT and central office, BellSouth can 

upgrade its bandwidth by changing the electronics on the ends of its lit fiber 

to secure additional bandwidth for its DSL. This option, which BellSouth 

will not provide to CLECs, is tremendously cheaper than installation of new 

fiber. 

Q. 

DSLAMs at BellSouth’s DLCs? 

A. No. In many cases, collocation may not be physically possible, and in 

all or nearly all cases, it would be prohibitively expensive and time 

consuming for FDN. 

Q. Why would CLEC DSLAM collocation at BellSouth remote 

terminals be physically impossible in some circumstances? 

A. The vast majority of BellSouth’s 12,000-plus remote terminals in 

Florida are cabinets, which are much smaller than other typical RT structures, 

such as huts or controlled environmental vaults. Many DLCs therefore are 

housed in structures that are too small to support additional collocation of 

DSLAMs and necessary supporting infrastructure by several CLECs, or 

perhaps even by a single CLEC. DSLAMs require power and climate control 

infrastructure that likely is often not available at a remote terminal. Addition 

Even if dark fiber was available, would FDN be able to collocate 
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of this additional infrastructure would require even more space, which may 

not be available. 

Q. Why would collocation of a DSLAM at BellSouth remote 

terminals be prohibitively expensive and time-consuming for FDN? 

A. DSLAM power and temperature control requirements exceed the 

standards of many remote terminals. CLECs would incur tremendous 

expense and delays in arranging for sufficient power capacity and 

infrastructure. In addition, as I noted above, if space within the RT were 

unavailable, FDN would be required to build an external structure to house its 

facilities, which would require substantial time and expense, including, but 

not limited to, securing acquisition of new land and/or establishment of new 

rights-of-way and all other approvals from local authorities necessary to 

construct FDN’s own remote terminals. Remote terminals are often located in 

residential neighborhoods and are subject to increasing scrutiny. 

Neighborhoods now quiet about the presence of a single remote terminal may 

well object to plans by numerous CLECs each to place their own remote 

terminals. FDN, which does not have long-standing relationships with local 

authorities, could experience significant delays or expenses in securing such 

permission, if not outright rejection. On top of these expenses, BellSouth 

might seek to charge FDN for cross-connection facilities to its remote 

terminal. Taken together, ubiquitous collocation of DSLAMs at BellSouth 

remote terminals would cost FDN millions of dollars and would require years 

of difficult, if not impossible, efforts. 
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Q. 

at a remote terminal for the purpose of offering DSL? 

A. No. DSLAMs are very often too expensive to justify at a remote 

terminal due to the smaller number of customers that are served by an RT. 

Also, the FCC has determined that, in applying the cost factor of the 

impairment test, the state commission should consider the economies of scale 

enjoyed by incumbents as a result of their ubiquitous  network^.'^ Unlike at a 

central office, the level of concentration present at a remote terminal is often 

as low as a hundred or a few hundred lines in total. At least in their early 

years of operations, CLECs cannot realistically hope to obtain a “take rate” of 

more than a small, single digit percentage of the total possible market for 

DSL service. BellSouth is able to garner a higher take rate, at least initially, 

because of its greater name recognition and established relationships with 

existing customers. Therefore, the cost of establishing a DSLAM collocation 

arrangement and fiber connectivity at each remote terminal may be so 

prohibitive as to never make economic sense given the few customers that 

any given CLEC might serve from an individual remote location. Indeed, if 

collocation of a stand-alone DSLAM at the remote terminal were the only 

available “option”, DSL competition in markets served by DLCs might never 

develop. 

Q. 

Could FDN cost-justify these high DSLAM collocation expenses 

Would CLECs be able to collocate DSLAMs at BellSouth remote 

terminals on the same 

own DSL operations? 

terms and conditions afforded by BellSouth to its 

14 UNE Remand Order at 1 84. 

23 



4 9  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

A. No. First, as I mentioned before, BellSouth has indicated that it will 

not provide the lit fiber to CLECs that BellSouth’s DSL utilizes for transport 

to the central office. Second, CLECs will be severely disadvantaged 

wherever BellSouth deploys Next Generation Digital Loop Carrier 

(“NGDLC”) systems, because BellSouth will be able to use digital line cards 

rather than DSLAMs at the remote terminal. These line cards, which perform 

the role of the DSLAM in NGDLC architecture, are small pieces of electronic 

equipment that that are plugged directly into the channel bank assembly of 

the Digital Loop Carrier.” Line cards are significantly smaller and cheaper 

and are more effective even than the smallest commercial DSLAM. I 

understand from BellSouth’s statements in other proceedings that it has 

opposed collocation by CLECs of line cards at BellSouth NGDLCs. 

Therefore, BellSouth would deny the ability of CLECs to place DSLAM 

functionality at the remote terminal on the same terms and conditions that it 

affords to its own operations. 

Q. You testified that it would be prohibitively time-consuming for 

FDN to collocate stand-alone DSLAMs and connect to lit fiber at 

BellSouth remote terminals. At what point does the resulting delay to 

FDN’s deployment constitute an impairment of FDN’s ability to provide 

high-speed data service? 

A. Even if FDN had sufficient funding to collocate remote DSLAMs and 

construct or obtain lit fiber to the central office, the process in my estimation 

would require well more than one year before FDN could start to provide 

15 See. e.g... Pronto Order at TI 16. 

24 



5 0  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

service, and perhaps much longer. Construction of new external remote 

facilities or placement of new fiber could require time-consuming public 

approval processes. Furthermore, it is my understanding that in one of the 

few instances where a CLEC attempted to collocate a DSLAM at an ILEC 

remote terminal, cross-connection and construction issues remained 

unresolved more than one year after the initial collocation request was made. 

The FCC has held that “delays caused by the unavailability of unbundled 

network elements that exceed six months to one year may, taken together 

with other factors, materially diminish the ability of competitive LECs to 

provide the services that they seek to offer.’’16 FDN and the investors on 

which it relies place a valuable premium on speed to market, which is critical 

in the telecommunications market, especially for new advanced services. 

The FCC observed the importance of speed to market, noting that “incumbent 

LECs can take advantage of delays caused by the unavailability of unbundled 

network elements by using their unique access to most customers to gain a 

foothold in new markets, and, in markets where services may be offered 

pursuant to long term-contracts (e.g., DSL and other advanced data services), 

to ‘lock-up’ customers in advance of competitive entry.”17 Moreover, delays 

in the introduction of competitive services caused by the unavailability of 

unbundled elements would give BellSouth valuable time to entrench itself 

with existing customers.’* If forced to endure delays of additional months or 

16 UNE Remand Order at 7 89. 

17 UNE Remand Order at 7 9 1. 

18 See UNE Remand Order at 7 93. 
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years to build new remote structures, collocate DSLAMs, obtain cross- 

connections and deploy lit fiber, all while BellSouth adds thousands of new 

DSL customers in Florida every month, FDN will suffer serious competitive 

injuries. Delays increase the risk that FDN will fall irreparably behind 

BellSouth in the high-speed data market, and further enable BellSouth to use 

its growing control of the Florida DSL market to injure FDN’s position in the 

voice services market. 

Q. Would it be possible for FDN to offer DSL on a ubiquitous basis 

over home run copper loops that do not pass through the BellSouth’s 

DLCs? 

A. No. In the first instance, many DLCs are deployed at locations where 

copper loops are longer than 18,000 feet, and are therefore too long to carry 

DSL signals. Even where home run copper loops are DSL-capable, the 

quality of the DSL transmissions would be inferior to DLC loops and 

therefore would not be competitive in the consumer market. The FCC 

concluded that “the quality of alternative network elements available to the 

competitive LEC is relevant to a determination of whether a requesting 

carrier’s ability to provide service is impaired” and that “a material 

degradation in service quality associated with using an alternative element 

will materially diminish a competitor’s ability to effectively provide 

ser~ ice .” ’~  Second, in many BellSouth serving areas, no copper facilities 

remain available for DSL. 

19 UNE Remand Order at 7 96. 

26 



5 2  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

Q. 

served by BellSouth DLC facilities? 

A. No. FDN cannot replicate BellSouth’s facilities in order to sell DSL. 

Even if FDN had at its disposal the billions of dollars that ILECs are 

spending on the deployment of DLC loop facilities, it would cost FDN 

billions on top of that amount to produce a functionally equivalent last mile 

distribution network to carry FDN’s own telecommunications. BellSouth’s 

DLC facilities utilize BellSouth’s existing copper distribution network, 

existing rights-of-way, and existing remote terminal facilities. Furthermore, 

construction of a new distribution network would require several years at a 

minimum. Therefore, this is clearly not a realistic option for FDN. Further, I 

believe that competitive voice service to residential users would be 

accelerated, as competitors to Bellsouth would have access to both parts of 

the competitive “bundle” of voice and data. 

Q. 

DLCs from a third-party provider? 

A. No. I am not aware of any third-party provider that could and would 

provide the last mile distribution facilities necessary for high-speed data 

services to FDN or other CLECs on a ubiquitous basis throughout BellSouth 

territory, or even in a small fraction of that territory. Any third party would 

face the same obstacles that prevent FDN from constructing its own last mile 

distribution network. Given FDN’s interest in obtaining such access, I 

Could FDN self-provision DSL transport to end-users who are 

Can FDN obtain DSL transport to end-users served by BellSouth 
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believe to a near certainty that I would be aware if a viable, ubiquitous third- 

party provider were available in Florida. 

Q. 

introduction of competition for high-speed data services in Florida? 

A. Yes. I agree with the FCC’s finding in the Project Pronto Order that 

the availability of a broadband offering would promote the rapid introduction 

of competition.*’ FDN would plan to obtain this service as soon as possible 

and would be able to offer DSL soon thereafter. The availability of a 

broadband UNE loop would have a far more immediate and profound effect 

on DSL competition in Florida than it had in SBC’s region due to the higher 

percentage of BellSouth DLCs deployed in the state. 

Q. 

packet switching functionality? 

A. Yes. 

Q. 

switching must be unbundled? 

A. Except for the “impair” standard I described above, the FCC has not 

issued a generally applicable test to determine whether packet switching 

should be unbundled. However, in the 1999 UNE Remand Order, the FCC 

created a four-part test setting forth one set of circumstances where packet 

switching clearly must be unbundled. ILECs have argued that a state 

commission may order unbundling of packet switching only when this test is 

satisfied; however, nothing in the Order suggests that packet switching may 

Would the availability of a broadband UNE promote the rapid 

Would the broadband UNE loop that you have proposed include 

Has the FCC established a test used to determine whether packet 

20 Project Pronto Order at 77 23, 30. 
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not be unbundled in other circumstances. Once a state commission finds that 

a CLEC would be impaired without access to unbundled packet switching, it 

can and should order such unbundling without literal application of the UNE 

Remand test. 

Q. 

from the UNE Remand Order? 

A. The test set forth in the UNE Remand Order requires ILECs to 

unbundle packet switching when (1) the ILEC has installed DLC systems; (2) 

there are no spare copper loops that are capable of supporting the xDSL 

services the CLEC seeks to offer; (3) requesting CLECs are not allowed or 

able to collocate DSLAMs at ILEC remote terminals on the same terms and 

conditions that apply to the ILEC’s own DSLAM; and (4) the ILEC has 

deployed packet switching for its own use.21 

Q. Are these four conditions met for the purposes of this arbitration? 

A. Yes. BellSouth has indisputably installed DLC systems, and likely 

has the highest percentage of DLCs deployed of any large ILEC in the 

country. Second, in the vast majority of cases where BellSouth has deployed 

DLCs, there are no xDSL-capable copper loops available that FDN can use to 

provide high-speed data service. FDN and other CLECs have requested such 

loops through BellSouth’s ordering system and received notice that no copper 

loop is available. My response to the third part of the test varies based on 

whether BellSouth has deployed NGDLC systems. Where NGDLCs are 

deployed, BellSouth’s DSLAM functionality is performed through line cards 

Could you please state the packet switching unbundling standard 

21 UNERemandOrder, a t l 3 1 3 ; 4 7  C.F.R. 51.319(~)(3). 
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plugged into the channel bank of the NGDLC. BellSouth will not allow 

CLECs to collocate their own line cards at the NGDLC. Where traditional 

DLCs are deployed, although BellSouth nominally allows CLECs to 

collocate stand-alone DSLAMs at the remote terminal, such collocation is 

subject to untenable terms and conditions, for the reasons I explained above. 

These reasons include, but are not limited to, the fact that BellSouth refuses 

to allow CLECs to connect the DSLAMs to the lit fiber that is used to carry 

BellSouth’s high-speed data service to the central office. Because dark fiber 

is often not available, a CLEC DSLAM would be stranded at the remote 

terminal. Therefore, whether BellSouth deploys DLCs or NGDLCs, CLECs 

are denied collocation of DSLAM functionality on the same terms and 

conditions applicable to BellSouth’s DSLAM functionality. Finally, it should 

be beyond dispute that BellSouth has deployed packet switching functionality 

for its own DSL services. Therefore, the FCC’s four-part test is satisfied, and 

BellSouth must be ordered to offer unbundled packet switching where it has 

deployed DLCs. 

Q. Should unbundled packet switching be made available generally 

or only where the Commission conducts a remote terminal by remote 

terminal unbundling analysis? 

A. Because these conditions are satisfied in the vast majority, if not all, 

of BellSouth’s DLC deployments, a general unbundling requirement is 

warranted. Otherwise, BellSouth will be able to effectively prevent CLECs 

from obtaining service in a timely and affordable manner by delaying entry 
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over protracted and expensive litigation addressing each one of BellSouth’s 

hundreds or thousands of DLC sites. 

Q. Have any state commissions found that ILECs are required to 

unbundle packet switching at DLCs generally using the FCC’s four-part 

standard? 

A. Yes. The Illinois Commerce Commission found that the test had been 

satisfied in ordering Ameritech to unbundle broadband loops.22 In addition, 

the New York Public Service Commission declined to make this 

determination only because Verizon was not yet currently deploying packet 

switching for its own use or for the use of an affiliate. The New York 

Commission held that, were Verizon to deploy packet switching for its own 

use or to its affiliate, it would have to offer it to all  competitor^.^^ The facts 

of the New York case were materially different than here because of the far 

more advanced stage of BellSouth’s DSL deployment over DLCs and 

ongoing utilization of packet switching for DLC loops in Florida. Had the 

Florida facts been before the New York Commission, a general unbundling 

of packet switching clearly would have been warranted. 

Q. Is the Florida Commission required to apply a four-part test 

established in the FCC’s UNE Remand Order for unbundling of packet 

switching if before it can designate broadband loops as UNEs? 

22 Illinois Pronto Arbitration Order ai 3 1. 

23 Proceeding on the Motion of the Commission to Examine Issues Concerning the Provision of 
Digital Subscriber Line Services, Case 00-C-0 127, Opinion and Order Concerning Verizon’s 
Wholesale Provision of DSL Capabilities Opinion No. 00-12 (N.Y. P.S.C. October 31, 2000). 
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A. No. As I stated previously, the Florida Commission can and should 

order unbundling of packet switching if it finds that CLECs would be 

impaired without such access, pursuant to the terms of FCC Rule 51.317. 

The four-part test from the UNE Remand OYder is only one of many routes 

that the Commission could take to find such impairment. Above all, the 

Commission should consider that the fundamental purpose of the FCC test is 

clearly to enable CLECs to offer high-speed data service where the ILEC has 

deployed Digital Loop Carriers. If FDN had such access, it would be 

providing high-speed data over these loops today. BellSouth’s contrived 

arguments that the UNE Remand Order precludes the unbundling of packet 

switching fails when viewed in the context of the purpose of the FCC’s order 

and the reality today that CLECs lack meaningful access to DLC loops. 

Therefore, the BellSouth should be required to unbundle packet-switched 

broadband loops in Florida. 

111. BELLSOUTH IS REQUIRED BY SECTION 251(C)(4) OF THE 

FEDERAL ACT TO OFFER ITS HIGH-SPEED DATA SERVICE FOR 

RESALE 

Q. Should BellSouth be required to offer wholesale high-speed data 

service to FDN for resale pursuant to Section 251(c)(4) of the 

Telecommunications Act of 1996? 

A. Yes. BellSouth and its affiliates are required to offer, on a discounted 

wholesale basis, all of their retail telecommunications services, including 

xDSL and other high-speed data services, pursuant to the resale obligations 
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applicable to incumbent local exchange carriers under Section 25 l(c)(4) of 

the Federal Act. While resale is not FDN’s preferred means of access, and, 

under FCC Orders, is not a substitute for UNE access,24 the Act does require 

BellSouth to offer it, and BellSouth should be required to provide FDN such 

access in this case. 

Q. 

under the terms of Section 251(c)(4)? 

A. No. BellSouth’s only wholesale high-speed data service in Florida is 

its voluntary, market-rate offer to Internet Service Providers (ISPs). 

BellSouth offers this service only for telephone lines on which BellSouth is 

the local exchange carrier. Therefore, this service is not a long-term option 

for FDN, which seeks to combine high-speed data services on the same line 

as its facilities-based local exchange service. Furthermore, since BellSouth 

considers the service to be voluntary, there is no guarantee that it will 

continue to be made available at rates, terms and conditions that would allow 

a competitor to compete with BellSouth’s retail service. 

Q. If a resold DSL product were available pursuant to Section 

251(c)(4), could BellSouth refuse to resell DSL to CLECs for use on lines 

where it is not the local exchange carrier? 

A. No. An ILEC cannot impose unreasonable or discriminatory 

limitations on resale services provided under Section 25 l(c)(4). 

Q. 

data service? 

Does BellSouth offer for resale its high-speed data services today 

What retail products does BellSouth offer to provide high-speed 

24 See UNE Remand Order at 7 67. 
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A. To the best of my knowledge, BellSouth’s consumer high-speed data 

service is sold as BellSouth Fast Access Internet Service. FDN seeks to be 

able to resell the telecommunications portion of this service, which, 

depending on BellSouth’s deployment, could be provided either over DSL, 

fiber-fed DLC, or all-fiber loops. I will refer to the telecommunications 

portion of this service as BellSouth’s retail DSL service, but for the purposes 

of this testimony I intend to include with this term any technology BellSouth 

uses to provide consumer high-speed data services. BellSouth offers other 

higher-capacity high-speed data services, such as T-1 service, but these 

services are not a subject of this arbitration. 

Q. 

under Section 251(c)(4)? 

A. BellSouth claims that its DSL services are exempt from the resale 

obligations of Section 25 1 (c)(4) of the Telecommunications Act, which 

applies to retail telecommunications services. As I understand its position, 

BellSouth maintains that its local exchange carrier entity does not sell retail 

DSL, but instead sells DSL only to Internet Service Providers (ISPs). This 

position is based upon the FCC’s 1999 decision that sales of DSL to ISPs are 

wholesale services that are exempt from resale obligations under Section 

25 1 (~)(4) . ’~ However, the BellSouth group of companies, taken together, is 

the largest retail DSL provider in Florida. BellSouth does sell retail DSL 

through an ISP that it owns and controls. BellSouth’s ISP obtains DSL from 

On what basis has BellSouth refused to offer resold DSL service 

25 Deployment of Wireline Services Offering Advanced Telecommunications Capability, CC Docket 
98-147, Second Report and Order, FCC 99-330 (rel. November 9, 1999) ( “ W E  Remand Order”). 
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BellSouth’s local exchange company. BellSouth promotes and sells its 

telephone and DSL services using the same advertisements, customer service 

and sales agents, and Internet sites, including www.BellSouth.com. 

Revenues from DSL sales and telecommunications services are reported 

together and accrue for the benefit of the same BellSouth shareholders. If 

BellSouth were permitted to avoid its Section 25 1 obligations by selling all of 

its telecommunications service on a wholesale basis to other affiliates, it 

would render the unbundling and resale obligations of the Federal Act 

meaningless. Therefore, retail sales of telecommunications services by any 

BellSouth affiliate should be attributed to the local exchange carrier operation 

for the purposes of Section 25 1. 

Q. Have any courts interpreted an ILEC’s resale obligations where 

retail services are sold by an affiliate of the ILEC rather than by the 

ILEC itself? 

A. Yes. In ASCENT v. FCC,26 decided in January 2001, the United 

States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia held that retail sales of 

advanced telecommunications services by ILEC affiliates are subject to the 

resale obligations of the Act. The court found that an ILEC may not “sideslip 

0 25 1 (c)’s requirements by simply offering telecommunications services 

through a wholly owned affiliate.” Although the case involved a regulation 

pertaining only to SBC, the logic of the decision applies equally to BellSouth. 

Therefore, the FCC’s ISP exemption cannot be read to exempt BellSouth 

26 Association of Communications Enterprises v. FCC, 235 F.3d 662, (D.C. Cir. January 9, 
200 l)(“ASCENT”). 
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from its obligation to resell the retail telecommunications service that is 

provided by any BellSouth affiliate. 

Q. Have any states taken steps to require an ILEC to make available 

for resale the retail DSL products of separate ISP affiliates? 

A. Yes. On May 7 ,  2001, the Connecticut Department of Utility Control 

(DPUC) issued a draft decision that would require the state’s largest 

incumbent, Southern New England Telephone Company (SNET), to resell 

any telecommunications service, including DSL, that is sold by its ISP 

affiliate and any other affiliates. The draft decision rejected arguments by 

SNET that are virtually identical to those offered by BellSouth. As the DPUC 

noted, ‘‘[tlhe ASCENT Decision clearly holds that ‘an ILEC [may not be 

permitted] to avoid 8 251(c) obligations as applied to advanced services by 

setting up a wholly owned affiliate to offer those services.’ [SNET’s] 

repeated claim that this holding has no application to the services it offers 

ignores that decision’s plain language.”27 

Q. Is FDN asking that BellSouth be required to resell both the 

telecommunications and enhanced services that are sold together by 

BellSouth’s ISP? 

A. No. Section 251 applies only to telecommunications services, and 

that is all that FDN is seeking to resell. However, BellSouth cannot refuse to 

separate its telecommunications service from its enhanced services for the 

purpose of denying resale. FCC bundling rules require BellSouth to offer its 

27 Petition of DSLnet Communications, LLC Regarding Section 25 l(c) Obligations of the Southem 
New England Telephone Company, Docket 01-01-17, Draft Decision at 9 (Conn. D.P.U.C. May 7, 
2001) (internal citations omitted). 
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telecommunications services separately from any enhanced services, even if 

it only sells them as a bundled product.28 

Q. If BellSouth only offers a bundled DSL and ISP product to the 

public, how should the resale rate under Section 251(c)(4) be calculated? 

A. BellSouth’s current bundled ADSL/Intemet Service rate, according to 

its Internet web site, is $49.95, which includes DSL transport and unlimited 

access Internet service. When unlimited Intemet service is ordered separately 

from BellSouth, the cost is $20.95. Therefore, in the absence of any 

Commission-approved cost study allocating costs between the DSL and 

Intemet service, the DSL transport service should be attributed to have a 
% 29.00 

retail rate of M. The existing resale discount rates established by the 

Florida Commission would be applied to the $%)A25 rate. BellSouth would 
a z4,oo 

be free to avail itself of any procedures available under this Commission’s 

rules and prior decisions to seek modifications to the discount rates or to seek 

the establishment of a specific rate applicable to DSL. 

IV. FDN’S REQUEST IS NOT INCONSISTENT WITH PRIOR 

COMMISSION DECISIONS 

Q. Prior arbitration decisions in Florida have rejected arguments 

that BellSouth should be required to provide splitters to CLECs. Is 

FDN’s request inconsistent with those decisions? 

28 Policy and Rules Conceming the Interstate, Interexchange Marketplace, CC Docket 96-61; 1998 
Biennial Regulatory Review - Review of Customer Premises Equipment and Enhanced Services 
Unbundling Rules in the Interexchange, Exchange Access and Local Exchange Markets, CC Docket 
98-183, Report and Order, FCC 01-98 (rel. March 30,2001), at 1 3 9 .  
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A. No. FDN recognizes that the Commission has previously decided not 

to require BellSouth to offer unbundled splitters to CLECs in the central 

office. The fact that FDN’s proposed broadband UNE loop includes splitter 

functionality at the remote terminal is not inconsistent with these prior 

findings. In the central office environment, there is no dispute that CLECs 

are able to collocate equipment, and in these prior cases, CLECs sought 

unbundled splitters for reasons other than complete infeasibility. At remote 

terminals, as I have explained previously, CLECs cannot realistically 

collocate DSLAMs. For the same reasons, CLECs cannot collocate splitters 

at RTs. In addition, unlike the central office that may have multiple 

DSLAMs, it would be nonsensical to have multiple splitters all lined up to 

connect to a single (BellSouth) DSLAM. 

Furthermore, in NGDLC systems, the splitter is an inseparable part of 

the same line card equipment that performs DSLAM functionality. Unlike 

most current central office deployments, where the splitter is a separate item 

of equipment, inclusion of splitter functionality requires no additional burden 

on BellSouth. I am not aware of any technically feasible means of 

performing splitter functionality in NGDLC loops other than by the line card. 

The fact that the splitter fbnctionality is included does not alter the 

Commission’s overall impairment analysis for broadband loops. 

Q. 

did not endorse the ILECs’ refusal to sell DSL service? 

Why do you believe that the Line Sharing Reconsideration Order 
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A. The FCC did not find that ILECs may lawfully refuse to provide DSL 

service on lines on which it is not the retail voice carrier. On the contrary, 

the FCC determined only that AT&T’s request was beyond the scope of a 

reconsideration order, which, for procedural reasons, was limited to 

consideration of the ILECs’ obligation to provide access to line sharing to 

data CLECs who would provide DSL service. The FCC specifically noted 

that it did not rule on the merits of AT&T’s argument, instead noting that any 

party aggrieved by an ILECs refusal to provide service could file a petition 

alleging that the ILECs practice constitutes an unreasonable practice in 

violation of the common carrier obligations to provide service to the public 

on a nondiscriminatory basis, pursuant to Section 201 of the Communications 

Act of 1934. 

Q. Has FDN considered pursuing a complaint at the FCC based on 

Section 201 to require ILECs to sell DSL service to requesting consumers 

who subscribe to CLEC voice services? 

A. Not at this time. As I stated before, FDN is not seeking a requirement 

that BellSouth provide retail xDSL service to FDN’s local exchange 

customers. Instead, FDN is seeking access only to the resale and UNE 

products that it is entitled to under Section 25 1 (c) of the Telecommunications 

Act of 1996 so that it may provide its own retail DSL service. However, if 

FDN later decided to pursue a different strategy, I would consider filing a 

Section 201 complaint at the FCC. BellSouth can offer no reasonable 

justification for its policy, which clearly appears designed to leverage its 
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market power in the high-speed data market as an anticompetitive tool to 

injure its competitors in the voice services market. Because competitive 

providers of DSL have been unable to offer DSL service where DLCs are 

present, there have always been fewer competitive options in BellSouth 

territory in Florida to the extremely high percentage of such loops. Now, 

with numerous competitive DSL providers folding or downsizing even in 

markets where copper loops were more readily available, if FDN does not 

obtain the relief requested in this case, there is a very real possibility that 

BellSouth will in the foreseeable future be the only remaining DSL provider 

in its incumbent region in Florida. Therefore, BellSouth’s ability to exert 

unreasonable and unlawful anticompetitive pressures on the voice services 

market will continue to increase. For these reasons, BellSouth’s refusal to 

offer xDSL service to Florida consumers who purchase facilities-based voice 

service from CLECs is unreasonable and unlawful. 

ISSUE 2 -- SETTLED 

ISSUES 3A & 3B. 

Q. Issues Nos. 3A and 3B concern trouble ticket closure and charges. 

Please describe FDN’s position on Issues Nos. 3A and 3B. 

A. FDN experiences a significant number of trouble conditions for loss of 

dial tone or other service problems that FDN believes are attributable to 

BellSouth’s service or facilities. Accordingly, FDN has a keen interest in 

BellSouth’s disposition of trouble tickets and how FDN might be charged 

for trouble tickets. FDN does not dispute BellSouth’s request to charge 
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FDN for trouble tickets where BellSouth is not responsible for the 

trouble. However, FDN has experienced problems with BellSouth’s 

closing trouble tickets without notifying FDN and closing tickets as “No 

Trouble Found” (or “NTF”) when problems persist, forcing FDN to 

attempt to reopen the ticket or open a new ticket. Also, in FDN’s 

experience, a significant number of BellSouth trouble tickets are closed as 

NTF when FDN believes there was a legitimate trouble with the line. 

When calling in a trouble ticket to BellSouth, FDN will conduct its 

own trouble isolation evaluation or line diagnostics test. Typically, an 

FDN representative will conduct a tip-to-ring capacitance test on the line 

the customer reported a problem with. If FDN believes the source of the 

trouble is with FDN’s network, then the matter is referred to FDN’s 

Operations & Engineering Group. If FDN believes BellSouth may be the 

source of the problem, FDN will call in a trouble ticket to BellSouth. 

With respect to Issue No. 3A, FDN’s position is simply that BellSouth 

should notify FDN prior to closing a ticket and should refrain from 

closing a ticket if FDN cannot confirm that the trouble has been resolved. 

In the past FDN’s representatives were told by BellSouth that BellSouth 

would not notify FDN for closing trouble tickets on SL-1 loops. It is my 

understanding that this practice recently changed and FDN 

representatives are now getting calls from BellSouth field technicians 

upon closing trouble tickets for SL- 1 loops. Therefore, BellSouth should 

not object to confirming the new practice in the interconnection 
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agreement such that FDN will be notified of the disposition of all trouble 

tickets. 

A related problem is the situation where FDN places a trouble ticket 

with BellSouth and BellSouth closes the ticket though the end user 

continues to experience the problem condition after the BellSouth 

technician worked the ticket. 

Thus far, BellSouth’s answer to this sort of problem has been a 

proposal for joint acceptance testing that must be completed within 15 

minutes for FDN to avoid additional charge. FDN opposes paying 

BellSouth an additional “time” charge when FDN’s own remedies for 

appointments that BellSouth delays or misses are problematic or 

nonexistent. Nonetheless, FDN can accept BellSouth’s joint acceptance 

testing proposal if BellSouth agrees to terms to the effect that: (1) 

BellSouth will contact FDN at the time a trouble is workeddisposed on 

all loops, (2) FDN may conduct its portion ofjoint acceptance testing 

remotely and will not be required to field dispatch within 15 minutes, (3) 

FDN will not be charged for acceptance testing if the trouble is not 

resolved at the time of the test, and (4) FDN’s acceptance testing permits 

closure of the ticket if the problem is cleared but does not constitute 

acceptance of BellSouth’s stated disposition of the ticket. 

With respect to Issue No. 3B, FDN’s maintains that BellSouth should 

not charge FDN for NTF trouble tickets if FDN can show there was a 

trouble on BellSouth’s end. 
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As indicated above, FDN regularly experiences a significant number 

of no dial tone conditions which FDN believes are attributable to 

BellSouth. Attached hereto as Exhibit (MPG-2) is a list of no-dial- 

tone tickets since January 2001 in cases where FDN believes the problem 

was attributable to BellSouth. FDN has pursued arbitrating issues relative 

to trouble tickets in this case because FDN has been very concerned with 

the number of these tickets, their causes and disposition. Attached hereto 

as Exhibit (MPG-3) are notes taken from FDN’s ordering and 

tracking system reflecting a few examples of trouble ticket information 

and FDN line diagnostic results. FDN believes the line diagnostics taken 

before and after these tickets reflect BellSouth’s having pulled F2 pair in 

the field or F1 pair in the office, leaving FDN customers without dial 

tone. In looking at the trouble tickets and based on experience, these 

pulled jumper situations are not isolated cases. FDN has been anxious for 

BellSouth to eliminate the root causes of no-dial-tone conditions that are 

caused by BellSouth. Since BellSouth has seemed unwilling to help FDN 

and was unwilling to address prevention in this case, such as through 

tagging FDN lines to prevent them from being pulled, FDN asserts that it 

must have better rights on issues of ticket disposition. 

A number of the tickets listed on Exhibit - (MPG- 2) were disposed 

as NTF. However, FDN believes BellSouth has closed tickets as NTF 

even though the tickets should not have been closed as NTF. Attached 

hereto as Exhibit (MPG-4) are notes taken from FDN’s ordering and 
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tracking system reflecting a few examples of trouble tickets BellSouth 

closed as NTF but which FDN believes should not have been NTF. FDN 

believes that the tip-to-ring capacitance results taken before and after the 

disposition of these tickets show that a repaidchange was made to the 

line, yet the tickets were closed as NTF. In some cases, it appears that a 

circuit was open in the BellSouth office or that a loop was changed from 

straight copper to a DLC design, but an NTF was reported. 

FDN seeks assurance of proper billing for trouble tickets. FDN’s 

position is that it should not be charged for tickets closed as NTF where 

results show the trouble was resolved when BellSouth worked the ticket. 

ISSUES 4A & 4B. 

Q. Issues Nos. 4A and 4B concern move orders. Please describe FDN’s 

position on Issues Nos. 4A and 4B. 

A. When an FDN customer changes locations from one address to another, 

BellSouth must execute a “move order” for FDN. This involves 

BellSouth’s disconnecting service to the customer’s first location, 

BellSouth’s provisioning a new UNE loop in the second location and 

transferring the same customer telephone number to the new loop. In 

most cases, BellSouth does not establish the new UNE loop in the second 

location in an acceptable time frame, that is, at parity with the interval in 

which BellSouth provisions moves for its own retail customers. If the 

customer has already moved and BellSouth has missed the required due 

date, the customer can be left without phone service. 
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BellSouth can generally move its retail customers’ service from one 

location to another in three business days. BellSouth takes well in excess 

of a three-business-day interval to provision move orders for FDN 

customers. To avoid its customers being without service, FDN has 

ordered and paid for retail service from the BellSouth business office and 

then call forwards traffic from the UNE loop in the old location to the 

Bell-provided retail line. FDN maintains that if BellSouth cannot meet 

the required due date for an FDN move order, FDN should receive retail 

BellSouth service to the new customer location at no cost until the move 

order is executed. Attached hereto as Exhibit (MPG-5) is a 

schedule of 20 or so examples of FDN move orders submitted to 

BellSouth. The information on the left of the schedule shows the dates 

on which FDN ordered and BellSouth installed retail lines to the new 

location for FDN’s moving customers. According to the schedule, there 

is just a three-business-day interval for turning up the retail service more 

than 90% of the time. The information on the right of the schedule 

shows when FDN submitted a move order (via a LSR) and the date that 

the move order was executed. According to the schedule, sometimes it 

takes more than a month to execute the move order, and, in most cases, 

there is at least a two-week interval. 

FDN does not believe that the Commission should refuse to rule on its 

request just because BellSouth thinks the issue should be addressed in 

the permanent performance measures docket. The parties should be 
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entitled to present for arbitration any open issue, and the Commission 

should resolve any open issue. This issue on move orders is in dispute 

and should be arbitrated. 

The interconnection agreement negotiated up to this point includes a 

number of cost allocation or recovery mechanisms for fault or cost- 

causing behavior. For example, for line troubles caused by BellSouth, 

FDN does not have to pay for the trouble ticket and may be entitled to a 

credit. If BellSouth’s TAG gateway is inoperable other than for 

scheduled maintenance, FDN does not have to pay the manual order 

charge. In some circumstances, BellSouth has the right to charge FDN 

for removal of collocated equipment or investigation of improper 

conduct in collocation space. The negotiated agreement addresses at 

length liability limitations and indemnification. Cost allocation or 

recovery mechanisms for fault and cost-causing activity exists in the 

negotiated agreement and should be balanced in favor of both parties. In 

the case of this move order issue, FDN asserts that BellSouth’s failure to 

properly perform causes FDN to incur a finite cost that FDN should not 

have to incur to serve its customers. 

BellSouth’s position in the Commission’s permanent performance 

measure docket has been that the PSC has no authority to impose a self- 

executing remedy plan on BellSouth, especially where BellSouth has not 

been granted 27 1 relief. Further, the Performance Measurement 

Attachment to the draft interconnection agreement only becomes 
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effective if and when BellSouth receives section 271 relief. After 

appeals, a final decision in the permanent performance measure case and 

in BellSouth’s 271 case could take more than another year. Under the 

interconnection agreement negotiated thus far, if BellSouth does not get 

271 relief, BellSouth’s liability for not meeting the required due date for 

move orders (or failure to meet service obligations generally) would be 

no greater than “an amount equal to the proportionate charge for the 

service provided pursuant to [the interconnection agreement] for the 

period during which the service was affected.” In other words, it appears 

FDN may be entitled to a few dollars off a UNE rate it would otherwise 

pay even though this does not bear a direct relationship to the cost FDN 

will incur to continue providing its moving customers with service - an 

available and finite cost. 

Whether BellSouth is granted 271 relief or not, and regardless of 

possible compensation of some kind pursuant to a Commission 

performance measure plan, FDN’s requested approach for BellSouth’s 

failure to meet reasonable dates for move orders is preferred because it is 

fair, reasonable and bears a direct a relationship to the finite cost incurred 

as a result of BellSouth’s conduct. FDN would still bear the full cost of 

the UNE loop for one customer location before, during and after the 

move. Needless to say, if BellSouth can execute move orders for FDN 

as required, at parity with what BellSouth provides its own retail 

customers, then BellSouth has nothing to worry about. 

47 



7 3  
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

ISSUE 5 - WITHDRAWN BY FDN. 

ISSUE 6 - WITHDRAWN BY FDN. 

ISSUE 7 -WITHDRAWN BY FDN. 

ISSUES 8A & 8B. 

Q. Issues Nos. 8A and 8B concern FDN’s request for an FDN-funded 

and dedicated frame attendant. Please describe FDN’s position on 

these issues. 

A. As I indicated earlier when addressing Issues 4A and 4B, FDN believes 

that it should be allowed to arbitrate any open issue. I would make the 

same points here against BellSouth’s permanent performance measure 

argument as I made earlier relative to Issues 4A and 4B. 

In FDN’s view, this issue is about insuring fair, reasonable and 

nondiscriminatory service. In FDN’s experience, BellSouth takes an 

average of at least seven days to provision a voice loop. FDN orders over 

700 lines from BellSouth a week. Prior to January this year, BellSouth 

would not begin working FDN orders until after 1O:OO a.m. each day. 

This often made it difficult for BellSouth and FDN to complete all orders 

as scheduled. When a “bad cut” occurs, due to defective cable pair in the 

field or the CO or other issues, problem solving is absolutely critical 

because FDN is cutting over a “live’’ business customer who cannot be 

left without dial tone. FDN regularly experiences problems with 

BellSouth’s inability to resolve troubles on bad cuts as quickly as the 

circumstances require. Included with my testimony as Exhibit - (MPG- 
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6) is a schedule of some recent bad cuts, The schedule shows the cut 

date, resolution date, and comment information for the bad cuts. This 

schedule shows BellSouth does not address bad cut repairs immediately. 

Customers are left without dial tone as a result, and, more often than not, 

these customers blame FDN for their plight. Although a few bad cuts can 

be expected, when bad cuts do occur, it is imperative that they be 

addressed immediately. 

During the week of January 15,2001 , KPMG was observing 

BellSouth’s cutovers of FDN orders as part of KPMG’s OSS evaluation. 

During that week, BellSouth began processing FDN orders early in the 

moming, were finished with all scheduled orders early in the day, and bad 

cuts were nonexistent. The overall service provided FDN the week of 

KPMG’s observation was a departure from FDN’s prior experience and 

showed that BellSouth is capable of providing good service when it 

chooses. 

FDN is entitled to service at parity with what BellSouth provides 

itself. To insure that FDN receives such service and to improve 

scheduling and bad cut resolution, FDN should have the option of a 

dedicated frame attendant to execute only FDN orderdservices. 

To insure that it receives adequate service without penalty to 

BellSouth, FDN proposes to pay the salary, benefits, and costs for a 

BellSouth employee charged with working only FDN orders or, at least, 

FDN orders on a priority basis. The individual will be a BellSouth 
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employee; only the focus of hidher duties and responsibilities will be 

with FDN matters. If FDN is allowed a frame-attendant, the labor 

component of service charges assessed FDN would have to be removed to 

avoid double charging for labor. In theory, the overall cost to FDN 

should not be higher when FDN pays a composite labor charge for a 

dedicated attendant versus when FDN pays on a cumulative basis the 

labor component (for the same labor) incorporated into the service 

charges. And there is no extra cost or penalty to BellSouth. 

ISSUE NO. 9 -- SETTLED 

ISSUE 10. 

Q. Issue No. 10 concerns a third ordering option. Please describe 

FDN’s position on Issue No. 10. 

A. When FDN first started operating in Florida, it submitted SL-1 

orders for voice grade UNE loops. BellSouth would issue a firm 

order confirmation (FOC) with a due date. FDN would then 

schedule the due date with the customer, but more than 50% of the 

time, BellSouth could not install service by the provided FOC due 

date because the loop was served through a DLC rather than by 

continuous copper from the central office. BellSouth would then 

require FDN to clarify the order, canceling the original due date of 

the FOC. So FDN would then submit an SL-2 order, await a new 

FOC and reschedule for a later date with the inconvenienced 

customer, significantly delaying the ordering and provisioning 
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process. Because FDN had no reasonable means to access 

BellSouth’s network information to make advanced determination 

of the presence of DLCs, FDN turned to submitting orders for the 

more expensive SL-2 service ($80 v. $140 non-recurring charges) 

in order to avoid delays and associated scheduling problems. 

FDN has sought a third ordering option whereby FDN would 

simply submit an order for a UNE voice-grade loop and BellSouth 

would make the determination of whether the order should be 

processed as an SL-1 or SL-2 before issuing an FOC, and charge 

FDN for the SL-1 or SL-2 as appropriate. 

BellSouth’s response to FDN’s request has been that 

BellSouth now offers loop make up (or “LMU”) information FDN 

can access prior to issuing LSRs to BellSouth. FDN has leamed 

more about LMU over the course of continued negotiations during 

this case. FDN is willing to explore LMU database access as a 

compromise for resolving FDN’s ordering issue. However, 

access, whether mechanized or manual, comes at an additional 

charge, and FDN must incur start-up and recurring costs for the 

systems to make LMU queries. 

Thus, absent the third order option which FDN favors, FDN 

has three choices. First, order all SL-1s and accept the associated 

lack of reliable scheduling and provisioning. Second, continue 

ordering all higher cost SL-2s to insure better scheduling and 

7 6  
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provisioning reliability. Or, third, incur additional cost to access 

the LMU information and order SL- 1 s or SL-2s as the LMU 

information dictates. However, these choices sidestep the core 

question: Why should FDN bear additional risk or burden 

associated with simple ordering in the first place? 

FDN does not instruct BellSouth how to execute the order or 

engineer voice service any more so that a retail customer would 

when ordering voice service. I do not believe BellSouth tells 

retail customers that BellSouth will have to set a later due date for 

service and the customer will have to submit a new service request 

solely due to BellSouth’s own network design. 

There is no reason why BellSouth should not bear the burden 

of examining its own network configuration and design to process 

a CLEC order for voice service. FDN should be able to simply 

order a voice-grade UNE loop (with order coordination and time- 

specific cutover options) and have BellSouth figure out how to get 

the job done on its own network by an FOC’s due date. 

FDN is not asking that it be relieved of paying charges for SL-2 loops 

where those charges should apply. This is an ordering issue, not a 

provisioning issue. FDN is even willing to agree that BellSouth be 

allowed some additional time to issue an FOC under its proposed third 

order option if BellSouth can reliably meet the due dates. FDN’s position 

is simply that FDN should not have to guess at BellSouth’s network 
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configuration for voice orders to be completed or pay for network 

information. BellSouth, not FDN, should have the burden of knowing its 

own network. 

Q. Does that conclude your direct testimony? 

A. Yes .  
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Q. Please state your name and address. 

A. My name is Michael P. Gallagher. My business address is 390 North 

Orange Avenue, Suite 390, Orlando, Florida, 32801. 

Q. What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony? 

A. I will respond to some of the arguments of BellSouth witnesses Williams 

and Kephart concerning issues still in contention in this case. 

Q. Did you also provide direct testimony in this case? 

A. Yes. 

ISSUENO. 1 

Q. 

#1 is that “FDN wants the Commission to order BellSouth to provide 

BellSouth’s ADSL service to FDN’s end user over the same UNE loop 

that FDN is using to provider voice service to that end user.” Is Mr. 

Williams’ description an accurate characterization of FDN’s position? 

A. 

FDN’s request. As I explained in my direct testimony, FDN seeks the 

provision of wholesale UNE and resale products with which FDN can 

provide retail xDSL service. 

Q. Given Mr. Williams’ restrictive view of FDN’s request, do the 

legal arguments in his testimony overcome those in support of FDN’s 

request? 

A. No. The FCC and South Carolina decisions relied upon by Mr. 

Williams do not relate to FDN’s request for wholesale UNE and resale 

Mr. Williams of BellSouth testified that FDN’s position on Issue 

No. BellSouth has apparently misread or unduly limited the scope of 
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products, as those cases address only an ILEC’s providing retail xDSL 

service on lines where it is not the voice carrier. Moreover, as I explained in 

my direct testimony, the FCC’s decision in the Line Sharing Reconsideration 

Order does not have any bearing on BellSouth’s obligation to provide access 

to UNEs and resale products under Section 251. (Gallagher Direct at 10-1 1, 

38-40.) The FCC’s Line Sharing Reconsideration Order did not address the 

merits of the underlying issue; rather, it stated that reviewing the issue of 

ILEC-provided retail xDSL service over ALEC UNE voice loops was outside 

the permissible scope of reconsideration because it was not an issue in the 

final order being reconsidered. 

Several of the “business reasons” offered by Mr. Williams as 

justification for BellSouth’s refusal to provide xDSL service on ALEC- 

served voice lines are likewise irrelevant to FDN’s request for wholesale 

UNE and resell products, as they are based upon scenarios in which 

BellSouth would provide retail services on an FDN UNE loop. 

Q. 

justification for BellSouth’s refusal to provide the wholesale service that 

FDN is entitled to under the Act, Mr. Williams further states that “the 

systems BellSouth uses to provide its ADSL service do not currently 

accommodate providing ADSL service over such a loop.’’ Is this 

adequate grounds for denying FDN’s request? 

A. No. When the Telecommunications Act of 1996 was adopted, the 

ILECs did not have in place many of the systems that would ultimately be 

In addition to the “business reasons” that Mr. Williams cites as 
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necessary to support the UNEs, interconnection, collocation and resale 

requirements of the new Act. These systems were developed in response to 

the obligations imposed by the Act, and as directed by state and federal 

regulatory proceedings such as this one. The requirements of applicable law, 

regulations, and arbitrated interconnection agreements should drive the 

development of these support systems, not the other way around. 

Q. 

BellSouth’s policy is his statement that BellSouth’s databases do not 

include loop qualification information for FDN’s UNE loops, such that 

BellSouth cannot determine whether such loops are qualified for DSL. 

Do you agree with his assessment? 

A. 

provided by BellSouth. BellSouth is in the best position to determine 

whether these loops are DSL-qualified, and if they are not, whether other 

DSL-qualified loops would be available. FDN does not at this time have the 

ability to obtain all of the necessary information to determine whether these 

loops are DSL-qualified. Other Regional Bell Operating Companies are 

modifying their databases to enable DSL qualification to be performed based 

upon circuit identification numbers in addition to telephone numbers. 

BellSouth should make such changes as are necessary to enable it to provide 

the UNEs and resale products as required by Section 25 1 of the Act. 

One “business reason’’ cited by Mr. Williams a justification for 

No. FDN uses unbundled loops that are owned, controlled, and 
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Q. Did BellSouth offer any testimony that undermines FDN’s 

request that BellSouth be required to make available for resale a 

wholesale high-speed data service pursuant to Section 251 (c)(4)? 

A. No. In fact, the testimony of Mr. Williams demonstrates conclusively 

that BellSouth must offer resold high-speed data service pursuant to Section 

25 1 (c)(4). On page 5, lines, 22-24 of his testimony, Mr. Williams 

acknowledges that BellSouth offers “retail xDSL service.” 

Q. Have any legal developments since your direct testimony 

materially affected your position that BellSouth’s high-speed data 

service is subject to the resale obligations of Section 251(c)(4) of the Act? 

A. No. On June 26,2001, the United States Court of Appeals for the 

District of Columbia denied a petition for review of the FCC’s Advanced 

Services Second Report and Order that defined ILEC sales of high-speed data 

service to Internet Service Providers as a wholesale offering that is not 

subject to Section 25 1 (c)(4).l However, this decision never comes into play 

in the scenario I described in my direct testimony, where BellSouth sells its 

own retail DSL through a BellSouth-owned ISP affiliate, because BellSouth’s 

ISP affiliate is treated as part of BellSouth’s ILEC operation for the purposes 

of Section 25 1, and not as a separate affiliate.2 The recent court decision in 

no way addressed instances in which an ILEC provides retail high-speed data 

1 Assn. of Comm. Enterprises v. FCC, Docket No. 00-1144 slip op. (D.C. Cir. June 26, 2001) 
(ASCENT Il), denying petition for review of Deployment of Wireline Services Offering Advanced 
Telecommunications Capability, CC Docket No. 98-147, Second Report and Order (November 9, 
1999). Despite identical names, this decision is not related to Assn. of Comm. Enterprises v. FCC, 
235 F.3d 662 (D.C. Cir. January 9,2001). 
2 See Gallagher Direct Testimony at 32-37, citing Assn. of Comm. Enterprises v. FCC, 235 F.3d 662 
(D.C. Cir. January 9,2001) (“ASCENT’). 
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service through its own ISP affiliate and has no bearing on FDN’s request in 

this arbitration. 

Q. Have any State commissions found that the “ISP exemption’’ 

created by the FCC’s Second Report and Order is not relevant to an 

ILEC’s obligation to resell the high-speed data it provides through its 

own ISP? 

A. 

(IURC) ruled that Ameritech must offer for resale a wholesale discount on 

the DSL service it provides through its own ISP affiliate. The IURC found 

that if the FCC’s ISP exemption in the Second Report “were the only 

authority guiding the Commission’s decision, Ameritech’s position might 

prevail.” However, the IURC held that the DC Circuit’s January 9,2001, 

ASCENT decision required that sales of DSL by an ILEC ISP were not 

eligible for the exemption under the Second Report, as the retail services of 

all ILEC affiliates were to be considered collectively as products of the ILEC. 

The Commission held that “the Second Report . . . do[es] not change that 

fact,” and that “notwithstanding the definition of “at retail” found in the 

Second Report,” Ameritech could not avoid its DSL resale obligations “by 

setting up a wholly owned affiliate to offer those services.” Ameritech was 

therefore required to make available a resale high-speed data service offering 

in the manner requested by FDN in this proceeding. 

Yes. On June 27,2001, the Indiana Utility Regulatory Commission 

If the Second Report had no bearing on the decision to require 

Ameritech to resell its high-speed data service in Indiana, the D.C. Circuit’s 
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affirmation of the Second Report likewise has no bearing on BellSouth’s 

obligation to resell its high-speed data services in Florida. 

ISSUES 3A & 3B 

Q. In Mr. Kephart’s direct testimony on page 7, beginning at line 7, he 

states “FDN is asking the Commission to assume that any trouble that 

clears while a trouble ticket is open was the result of a problem in 

BellSouth’s network. . . .” Is that what FDN is asking in this case? 

A. 

about the underlying cause of a given trouble ticket. 

No. FDN is not asking the Commission to make any assumptions 

The principles FDN seeks to be incorporated into the interconnection 

agreement are spelled out in my direct testimony. In Mr. Kephart’s direct 

testimony, he agrees FDN will be notified before closing all trouble tickets, 

he agrees to terms for cooperative testing, and he agrees FDN will not be 

charged for continued cooperative testing and dispatch where a trouble is on 

BellSouth’s network. Thus, there appears to be agreement in principle as to 

the intent behind Issue No. 3A. FDN’s position on Issue No. 3B is not that 

FDN should benefit from an assumption that all cleared/corrected no-trouble- 

found tickets are BellSouth’s fault. Rather, FDN simply asks that the 

interconnection agreement establish the basis for FDN’s not being charged 

where FDN can prove through remote diagnostic test results or otherwise that 

trouble tickets closed as no-trouble-founds should not have been. Beginning 

at page 7, line 14 of his testimony, Mr. Kephart accepts the concept that FDN 

should not be charged “where FDN can show that the trouble reported 

6 



8 5  

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

stemmed from BellSouth’s network.” FDN maintains that it can make that 

showing through its remote line diagnostic test results. Further, FDN can 

make that showing where FDN proves there was dial tone at FDN facilities at 

the CO but not at the customer’s demarcation point. The interconnection 

agreement should accept these testing methods as proof and as sufficient 

basis for FDN not to be charged unless BellSouth can otherwise prove that 

FDN or the end-user caused the trouble. Attached as Exhibit - MPG-7 is a 

copy of language reflecting FDN’s proposal recently submitted to BellSouth. 

ISSUE 10 

Q. On page 15, starting at line 4, Mr. Kephart states that “FDN is in 

essence asking BellSouth to determine which loop type is needed rather 

than FDN making that determination for itself.” Should FDN have the 

burden of determining whether BellSouth must design a circuit or not 

prior to ordering a voice-grade loop? 

A. No. FDN should be able to simply order a voice-grade loop. It is unfair 

for BellSouth, with over 60% of its access lines served through remote DLCs 

and therefore likely in need of design work, to require FDN to follow what 

amounts to a pre-qualification process (similar to complex DSL ordering) for 

every UNE voice-grade loop just to avoid delay in service delivery and 

additional charges. 

FDN does not seek to dictate to BellSouth how BellSouth should 

provision a voice loop. FDN seeks the ability to simply order all voice-grade 

loops the same way, on reasonable terms, without delays that jeopardize 
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parity, and with coordination options. FDN should not have to go through a 

pre-qualification process to achieve its desired results. BellSouth designed 

and built its network and stores its network information. BellSouth fashioned 

its SL-1 and SL-2 voice-grade loop types in apparent recognition of its DLC- 

dominated network architecture. 

BellSouth witness Kephart suggests FDN make a manual or 

mechanized loop make-up (“LMU”) query of BellSouth prior to ordering a 

voice loop so FDN could know which type of voice loop to order. In other 

words, BellSouth would require FDN to prequalify voice loops. BellSouth’s 

LFACS database and LMU process are clearly geared toward xDSL ordering, 

not voice loop ordering. A UNE voice-grade loop is unlike an xDSL-capable 

loop where prequalification may be necessary because the ordering CLEC or 

DLEC may desire to review loop architecture or order specific facilities or 

services for the loop to make it functional with the CLEC/DLEC technology 

and equipment. There are no such peculiarities for a voice-grade loop that 

should necessitate ordering prequalification of the sort BellSouth promotes. 

No other ILEC with which FDN does business differentiates voice loop types 

as BellSouth does or insists on a prequalification look-up as a means for the 

CLEC to know what type of voice loop it should order. FDN simply orders a 

voice-grade loop from those ILECs. Voice service is not advanced service 

and should not be treated as such when it comes to ordering and 

prequali fication. 
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FDN’s arbitration petition was filed in January 2001. It is not clear 

from Mr. Kephart’s testimony when BellSouth made its LMU data available 

electronically to all CLECs. In any case, Mr. Kephart acknowledges the 

LFACS database may not have IDLC information available for all loops and 

that a manual query may be necessary. BellSouth’s standard interval and 

costs for manual queries are wholly impractical for voice service ordering. 

BellSouth previously informed FDN that the standard turnaround for a 

manual look-up is seven business days. By its May 25,2001, final order on 

BellSouth UNEs in Docket No. 990649-TP, the FPSC set a manual look-up 

rate, without facility reservation, of $43.10. Prior to that Order, BellSouth 

sought $134 per manual LMU query, without facility reservation. There is 

no way that a seven-business-day interval just to figure out what loop type to 

order and a non-recurring charge of about $1.50 less than the non-recurring 

charge for the SL-1 loop itself will work from a practical or economic 

standpoint for ordering voice service. 

On a mechanized basis, BellSouth sought to charge $1.08 per query 

before the FPSC’s May UNE Order, which approved a $.6757 per query 

charge. Although FDN has discussed a mechanized LFACS - LMU option 

with BellSouth as a means for addressing efficient voice loop ordering, FDN 

does not know when the LFACS database will have the necessary 

information and when it won’t. The bottom line, however, is that no CLEC 

should have to go through a prequalification process to know which 
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BellSouth-created voice loop type to order. CLECs should be able to simply 

order a voice-grade loop. 

BellSouth currently offers coordination options for SL- 1 loops that 

were not available at acceptable prices before the Commission’s May UNE 

Order. FDN requests that those same options be available for its proposed 

generic voice-grade loop type. 

Q. Does that conclude your rebuttal testimony? 

A. Yes. 
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BY MR. FEIL: 
Q 

testimonies? 
Mr. Gallagher, do you have a summary of your 

A Yes, I do. 
Q 

Commission. 
Could you please provide the summary to the 

A Yes. Good morning, Commissioners. As I said, I'm 
Mike Gallagher, CEO of FDN; I appreciate the time here today. 
We're based down in Orlando. That's my hometown. Florida is 
where I've been in the competitive local exchange business for 
most of my career. It's been a great business up until about a 
year ago. I founded FDN to serve the small to medium customers 
that were bypassed by the first wave of ALECs that hit the 
State that were interested in connecting larger companies and 
providing local competitive service to larger companies. 

Our plan from the beginning was to serve the small to 
medium businesses, widely disbursed, and possibly even 
residential customers. Our strategy employs the UNE loop 
Dffering where we built our own switches. We have four 
classified switches, built our own fiber. We have several 
hundred miles o f  fiber, built our own collocations out. We 
have roughly a hundred col 1 ocations bui 1 t out. We've spent 
about $60 million on our network, but the last mile or the last 
zouple hundred feet we buy from BellSouth as a UNE. 
really the only economically feasible way to provide 

It's 
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competitive service t o  small customers. 
We're unique i n  t h a t  we're the largest procurer of 

UNEs i n  the State. We've been t o l d  t h a t  by BellSouth, our 
BellSouth account team. We currently serve about 60,000 lines 
and 20,000 customers t o  give you a ratio of roughly three lines 
per customer, so just ,  you know, t o  show we are - - we do serve 
the small customers. Now t h a t  the U N E  loops have been lowered 
i n  price recently, we intend t o  plan t o  go i n t o  the residential 
market, so we're looking a t  t h a t  pending a positive outcome of 

this matter. 
Most people t h i n k  of the telephone network as an 

exchange bui lding and a copper loop t h a t  runs right t o  the 
customer. In the state of Florida we're different. The simple 
model works i n  a l o t  of the rest of the country, but  here, 
Florida i s  uniquely different. I f  I may draw just a quick 
pi cture. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: You need t o  have a microphone 
close by so the court reporter can hear. 

THE WITNESS: Just real briefly, I ' l l  draw the simple 
diagram where we have a central office, and we have copper 
running directly t o  the customer. Florida, however, had a late 
population growth happening i n  the '70s and '$Os, as I'm sure 
you-all are aware, where we just boomed. In t h a t  case t h a t  
coincided w i t h  a different architecture for the local loop. 

The telephone companies a t  the time - -  when a developer bought 
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a, you know, burnt  out orange grove out here and made houses 

and businesses out f u r the r  away, there was the technology 

avai lab le t o  run the  long route on f i b e r  o r  some so r t  o f  other 

TDM long-haul piece here, and then put  a remote terminal i n  

where copper was then employed from there out. And t h i s  i s  

r e a l l y  what the  s ta te  o f  F lo r i da ' s  arch i tecture looks l i k e  a 

l o t  more so. 

You know, t h i s  i s  a t yp i ca l  northern town, you know, 

maybe, and t h i s  i s  a fast-growing l a t e  i n  the '70s and '80s 

southern town. So I can do my voice business f i n e  through t h i s  

arch i tecture because the  telecom l a w  says t h a t  even i f  the re ' s  

remotes out there and common t ranspor t ,  I can buy a UNE loop 

f o r  my col locat ion.  

and I can get a UNE loop through t h i s  shared t ranspor t  out  t o  

the  customer. It works, l i k e  I said, on about 60,000 o f  those 

l i nes .  But i f  I want t o  put a DSLAM, which i s  what you need t o  

provide DSL, i t  also needs continuous copper, and I put  a DSLAM 

i n  here, i t  won't work f o r  90 percent o f  the subscribers i n  

BellSouth t e r r i t o r y .  Roughly 90 percent are served behind 

remotes. So I could get about 10 percent o f  the market share, 

and, you know, I r e a l l y  t h ink  t h a t ' s  a b i g  reason why you ' re  

seeing a l l  these DLECs, you know, going bankrupt and out  o f  

business, among other th ings. But we could not do tha t .  

I ' v e  b u i l t  a co l l oca t i on  out i n  here, FDN, 

Now, BellSouth places t h e i r  DSLAM out a t  the  remote. 

They are t e l l i n g  me t h a t  I can place a DSLAM out a t  the  remote. 
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There's 12,000 remotes. There's 12,000 remotes out there. 

What I need i s  the a b i l i t y  t o  have a UNE loop t h a t  goes j u s t  

1 i ke my voice loop, but  i t  goes as a - - instead o f  low 

frequency here, I need high frequency, and instead o f  common 

d i g i t a l  t ranspor t  here, I need packets t h a t  go back. And I'll 

be able t o  do the same t h i n g  t h a t  I do w i t h  my voice except 

t o  

t o  

I'll be able t o  do i t  as data.  And t h a t ' s  very important 

understand. And t h a t ' s  k ind  o f  the  drawing I j u s t  wanted 

drawn. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Gallagher, how i s  a l l  

t h a t  - -  could you leave t h a t  f o r  j u s t  a minute? 

THE WITNESS: Sure. 

f 

COMMISSIONER JABER: How i s  a l l  o f  t h a t  d i f f e r e n t  

from the Line Sharing Order requirements? 

THE WITNESS: Line sharing was pushed by the DLECs, 

which you could see the I'D" stands f o r  dead now since 

NorthPoint i s  bankrupt. Rhythms i s  bankrupt and shut t ing  o f f ,  

and Covad i s  f i l i n g  f o r  bankruptcy. They d idn ' t  have a voice 

strategy. We have a voice s t ra tegy and a data strategy. We 

t h i n k  you need both t o  survive i n  t h i s  new world. Where we've 

had a voice on t h i s  customer l i n e  and they order t h i s  BellSouth 

DSL, o r  when they have BellSouth DSL and BellSouth voice, when 

they order our voice, i t  shuts o f f  t he  DSL. So 90 percent, 

t heo re t i ca l l y ,  o f  our po ten t ia l  market we c a n ' t  s e l l  even our 

voice t o  i t  i f  they a l l  take DSL. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

93 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. So the d i f fe rence i n  

;ethnology i s  w i t h  the DSL technology, i t ' s  your pos i t i on  you 

lave t o  have a DSLAM t o  make t h a t  technology work f o r  

lnternet - - 
THE WITNESS: Correct. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: - - o r  data services. 

THE WITNESS: Right .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: With the Line Sharing Order and 

;he requirements there, t h a t  required ILECs t o  provide a loop 

;hat could be s p l i t  between data and - - 
THE WITNESS: Exact ly.  And t h a t  works f i n e  i f  you ' re  

i n  Worcester, Massachusetts, o r  Richmond, V i rg in ia ,  o r  

something l i k e  tha t ,  where we have common copper and I ' m  a DLEC 

md I ' m  s i t t i n g  i n  here and then the  phone company has the 

low-frequency voice and l i n e  sharing says, okay, you've got t o  

s p l i t  t h a t  i n  here so t h a t  t he  DLEC can put high frequency on 

there from my co l loca t ion  cage here. And i f  I have continuous 

zopper t h a t  runs t o  most places, t h a t  works great. But t h a t ' s  

dhy I want t o  make sure t h a t  you -a l l  understand t h i s  i s  not  a 

federal issue. The Federal Act  i n  t h e i r  Line Sharing Order, 

they said t h a t  they - -  we l l ,  sa id  up t o  30 percent o f  the  loop 

de expect could have remotes. They had no idea what they were 

t a l k i n g  about when i t  comes t o  F lor ida.  They weren't  t a l k i n g  

about F lo r ida .  They were making a guess, and, you know, i t ' s  

j u s t  d i f f e r e n t  down here. I t ' s  a d i f f e r e n t  deal. 
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So j u s t  - - the proof i s  i n  the pudding. O f  134,000 

DSL subscribers i n  Bel lSouth's foo tp r in t ,  133,000 o f  them are 

served by BellSouth, and the  other thousand are served by a 

c a r r i e r  t ha t ,  you know, may not even be here i n  a month o r  two. 

So, you know, there i s  no competit ion f o r  DSL service i n  

Bel lSouth's foo tp r in t .  You know, t h a t ' s  j u s t  undeniable. 

Ninety-nine percent t o  me i s ,  you know, monopolist ic market 

share. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Those 1,000 customers who are 

served by competing ca r r i e rs ,  are they competing ca r r i e rs  tha t  

lave i n s t a l l e d  a DSLAM i n  the  remote o f f i c e ?  

THE WITNESS: No, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : How are they being served? 

THE WITNESS: They are serving, l i k e ,  the  10 percent 

i f  the  copper t h a t  - -  we l l ,  o f  t h i s  a rch i tec tu re  o f  t h i s  CO, 

there i s  a sma l l  amount o f  home run copper. There s a small 

jmount. So they w i l l  be s i t t i n g  i n  there, and they w i l l  serve 

it t h a t  way. And, you know, t h a t  j u s t  i s n ' t  a sustainable 

narket, we bel ieve. So we bel ieve we're impaired. 

I ' v e  run the  math. A t  12,000 remotes times the  

ISLAM, the cost o f  the  DSLAM, I run tha t ,  I run the  12,000 

-emotes plus,  you know, the  back-haul cost t h a t  gets me back t o  

:he centra l  o f f i c e ,  I run t h a t  against my revenue, and I can 

lever make a buck. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: What i s  the  cost o f  the DSLAM? 
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THE WITNESS: We estimate tha t  i t  would cost 

approximately $52,000 t o  i n s t a l l  a DSLAM a t  a remote. 

cost more, i t  could cost less,  but  t h a t ' s  what we use i n  our 

model. 

It could 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : And how many customers could 

be served w i th  DSL o f f  o f  a s ing le  DSLAM? 

THE WITNESS: For our model t h a t  was 48 customers, 

but you can add addi t ional  cards and blades i n  the DSLAM f o r  

more. We would be guessing on our take rates.  That 's the  key 

f o r  us. We don ' t  r e a l l y  have the  capt ive market t o  s e l l  i n t o .  

We would have t o  make an est imat ion as t o  how much, and t h a t  

goes i n t o  our business model. And tha t ,  we bel ieve, from the  

get-go - - I 've been r a i s i n g  money f o r  several years now, and I 

know I couldn ' t  ra i se  t h a t  money. The ra tes  o f  re tu rn  a r e n ' t  

there. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Under a t y p i c a l  arch i tecture 

here i n  F lor ida,  how many customers are served from a remote 

terminal? 

THE WITNESS: There can be as small as - -  as l i t t l e  

as a hundred and as much as a thousand. We've made an 

est imat ion o f  about 500, as an average, l i n e s ,  and depending on 

the  r e s i  ( s i c )  business mix t h a t  could be, you know, anywhere 

from 50 t o  several hundred customers. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Assume t h a t  there are 500 

customers served from a given remote terminal and j u s t  f o r  the  
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sake o f  argument say t h a t  h a l f  o f  those wish t o  have DSL 

service, 250 customers out o f  the 500, how many DSLAMs would 

BellSouth have t o  put  i n  t o  meet tha t  demand? One or  more than 

one? 

THE WITNESS: Well, a 250-port DSLAM i s  probably - -  
t hey ' re  probably out there.  That 's  a dense DSLAM. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That 's  one o f  the  bigger - - 
THE WITNESS: That would be a bigger one, yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But Bel lSouth could - - i f  t h a t  

was t h e i r  market pro ject ions and t h i s  i s  what they f e l t  they 

needed, they could get one DSLAM t o  serve 250 customers? 

THE WITNESS: I ' m  not  completely - -  I ' v e  never looked 

a t  one tha t  b ig .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That would be on the  la rger  

end? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: When you go t o  an area, your 

model looks a t  serving, d i d  you say, 40 - -  how many customers 

from one DSLAM? 

THE WITNESS: Well, the DSLAM t h a t  we pr iced  out i s  

48 por ts ,  but  you can add addi t ional  por ts  t o  it. 

i f  i t  could get up t o  250, but we made a guess. And t h a t  was 

j u s t  simply on a - -  i f  we have 500 l i n e s  i n  a remote, we th ink  

a t  best we'd do a 10 percent, you know, take. And t h a t  would 

mean we'd need about 50 por ts ,  so t h a t ' s  where we get the 48 

I don ' t  know 
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number. 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: What are the readily available 

sizes of DSLAMs? There's 48. Is there a 96-port DSLAM? 
THE WITNESS: Yes, there are. And it depends on - - 

you buy the chassis and the common equipment and the ATM 
backplane to it, and then you just put in cards for how many 
customers you think you're going to get. There's 12-port 
cards; there's 24-port cards; there may even be 48-port cards. 
And you just drop those in on "XI' dollars per card. And if 
you're buying a whole bunch of them, you can buy those, you 
know, you can buy those fairly cheap. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So your cost to serve per 
customer goes down with the number of customers you serve? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. The magnitude of the 
collocation process is also something that impairs me. I have 
collocated a hundred Bell COS. I know the pain that goes along 
with it. It's an arduous 
process. I 'd have to collocate 12,000 remotes. Just - - if you 
do the $3,000 is the application fee, that's $36 million right 
there. It's a long time that goes by between when you put your 
collo app (sic) in and when you get your response back from 
Bell. There's a whole lot of stuff that goes on when they are 
preparing the space. We've sort of have had to manage that 
process very closely, and, you know, I've heard so far that 
they are going to make it easier, but based on my experience, I 

I've personally been involved in it. 
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j u s t  don ' t  bel ieve t h a t  t h a t  w i l l  be t h a t  easy t o  do t h a t .  

Even i f  I decided t o  begin the process o f  doing it, 

though, I ' m  s t i l l  impaired because I w i l l  never catch up. I'll 

never be ubiquitous. I'll never be able t o  have the mass 

market. They are going t o  be a t  about 4,000 DSLAMs i n  these 

remotes or  roughly a t h i r d  o f  the way through by the  end o f  

t h i s  year, they 've estimated. And t h a t ' s  taken several years 

t o  go f o r  them t o  do tha t .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: You mentioned an app l ica t ion  

fee. What was t h a t  number again? 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s  approximately $3,000. I n  a 

central  o f f i c e ,  i t ' s  around t h a t  number. And I bel ieve - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: This i s  a co l loca t ion  

app l ica t ion  fee? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That same fee would apply t o  

the  col located DSLAM i n  a remote terminal? 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s  my understanding t h a t  i t  would. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: For each co l loca t ion  f o r  each 

remote terminal ? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Does BellSouth have a DSLAM i n  

every remote termi nal ? 

THE WITNESS: No, s i r .  I t ' s  our understanding t h a t  

t hey ' re  up t o  about 3,700 o f  t h e i r  12,000 and pro jec t  t o  be a t  
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about 4,000 by the  end o f  t he  year. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Does t h a t  mean the customers 

i n  those other locat ions where there are no DSLAMs located 

don ' t  have DSL service options? 

THE WITNESS: Probably, yes, unless they have one o f  

these home run copper loops t h a t  goes - -  i f  they ' re  lucky 

enough t o  be - -  
COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Unless they ' re  p a r t  o f  t ha t  

10 percent t h a t  connects d i r e c t l y  t o  the home o f f i c e .  

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r ,  l i k e  an o l d  neighborhood tha t  

might be close t o  downtown t h a t  was b u i l t ,  you know, r i g h t  next 

t o  the centra l  o f f i c e .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let me ask a question; i t  may 

be s i l l y .  Have you entered i n t o  any negot iat ions w i th  

BellSouth as they expand these DSLAMs and say, we wish t o  

provide service in these t e r r i t o r i e s  tha t  are served from these 

remote terminals,  and you don ' t  have a DSLAM there ye t ,  we're 

w i l l i n g  t o  pay " X "  percentage o f  the  cost o f  p u t t i n g  i n  your 

DSLAM i f  you l e t  us use i t  t o  serve our customers? 

THE WITNESS: We have not had any o f  those 

discussions , no. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Because you fee l  1 i ke i t  would 

be u n f r u i t f u l ,  o r  because i t ' s  j u s t  a concept you haven't 

considered? 

THE WITNESS: Both. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: I mean, see, the reason I asked 

the question i s  t ha t  you ' re  t a l k i n g  about a massive deployment 

o f  cap i ta l .  Capital i s  not cheap. 

THE WITNESS: Right. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I t ' s  not cheap f o r  you; i t ' s  

not  cheap f o r  BellSouth. 

the maximum number o f  customers out there who wish t o  have i t  

as qu ick l y  as possible, i f  you share the cost, i t  may be the  

most economic way and perhaps the  quickest way t o  do it, and 

you may do i t  i n  a cooperative manner such t h a t  customers 

bene f i t .  Does tha t  sound unreasonable? 

I f  we want t o  provide DSL service t o  

THE WITNESS: No, i t  does not sound unreasonable, 

except f o r  the  f a c t  t h a t  i f  I ' m  BellSouth, I know I ' m  going t o  

get a p r e t t y  much enough take r a t e  and re tu rn ,  and re tu rn  my 

investment ra ther  qu ick ly .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: They have no incent ive  t o  do 

it. 

THE WITNESS: I don ' t  t h ink  they 'd  have an incent ive  

t o  do tha t .  And I don ' t ,  you know, have - -  t hey ' re  already - -  
a l l  those customers behind those remotes are probably already 

t h e i r  voice customers. So they can - -  you know, they've got 

so r t  o f  a pond they can shoot i n t o ,  and I ' d  be coming i n  - - o r  

maybe I ' d  be a t  a 10 percent market share I could get out o f  

tha t ,  maybe more, maybe less.  So my business model i s  a l o t  

more var iab le on tha t  revenue l i n e  and on t h a t  take r a t e  l i n e .  
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COMMISSIONER JABER: But assuming we address the 

incent ive issue, o r  t h a t  you ' re  j u s t  incor rec t  w i t h  respect t o  

your pos i t i on  on the incent ive  issue, there i s n ' t  anything 

technology-wise t h a t  prevents you -a l l  from sharing t h a t  DSLAM 

i n  each remote terminal ; r i g h t ?  

THE WITNESS: No, I don ' t  t h ink  so. The other piece 

you need t o  th ink  about i s ,  t he re ' s  the remote, then the re ' s  

back-haul t o  get you back t o  the CO. They have t h e i r  own f i b e r  

t h a t ' s  been out there f o r  years. That 's a key piece o f  t h i s .  

You know, don ' t  be as focussed on the DSLAM i t s e l f .  The 

transmission, we estimate, can cost about a thousand do l l a rs  t o  

get from the remote back t o  the CO, times ten, twelve thousand, 

t h a t ' s  a m i l l i o n  bucks a month i n  overhead r i g h t  there. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I thought i n  the  opening 

statement - -  I know i t ' s  not  evidence, and w e ' l l  get  t o  i t  when 

we hear the BellSouth witnesses, but I understood tha t  

BellSouth ind icated t h a t  they recognized t h a t  they had a 

requirement t o  bas i ca l l y  provide tha t  type o f  t ranspor t  t o  you 

i f  you had a DSLAM co l located a t  t h e i r  RT. 

THE WITNESS: Right. And we buy those UNEs r i g h t  now 

between our central  o f f i ces .  We buy a UNE DS-3 from BellSouth. 

We pay about 1,500 bucks a month fo r  it. We buy them a l l  day 

long. So I s t i l l  run t h a t  math, and I ' m  s t i l l  way underwater 

economically unless something happens on a, you know, cost o f  

cap i ta l  o r  higher take ra te .  
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: And $1 , 500 per what? 

THE WITNESS: Per DS-3, which i s  a h igh capacity - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: I s  t h a t  more capaci ty than you 

ieed t o  serve the number o f  customers you would s ign up from 

me RT? 

THE WITNESS: It would depend on what type o f  

Zustomers. I f  we were s e l l i n g  SDSL customers o r  we were buying 

3 higher chunk o f ,  you know, dedicated bandwidth, you've got t o  

.eserve t h a t  f o r  them. 

-es ident ia l ,  you know, and you can s o r t  o f  engineer i t  t o  be 

you don ' t  need as much bandwidth, you could get by w i th  

i o t e n t i a l l y  less.  

I f  you ' re  j u s t  going t o  s e l l  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. So I guess, what are you 

Laking issue wi th ,  t h a t  you're having t o  buy more capacity than 

jou need, o r  the  p r i c e  i s  j u s t  too high? 

THE WITNESS: Well, they j u s t  jump on t h e i r  f i b e r  

ietwork. I t ' s  already s i t t i n g  there. They don ' t  have t o  do 

mything. They j u s t  jump on a SONET transmission system, g ive 

:hemselves an OC3 feeder, a DS-3 feeder, a T - 1  feed t h a t ' s  

;i tti ng out feeding those remotes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. But i t ' s  t h e i r  network. 

THE WITNESS: Right. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I mean, they have i n s t a l l e d  it. 

rhey have paid f o r  it, and they use i t  the  way we wish. What 

lo  you - -  how do you th ink  t h a t  you are being impaired? 
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THE WITNESS: Because t h a t  network was b u i l t  w i t h  a 

capt ive customer base when they could guarantee how much re tu rn  

they were going t o  get on it, and there was not a t  r i s k  

cap i ta l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, I guess my question i s ,  

are you tak ing  issue w i th  the TELRIC p r i c e  which applies t o  

tha t  t ransport? 

THE WITNESS: We1 1, possibly.  I mean, I haven't - - I 
know t h a t  t he re ' s  new UNE ra tes coming out f o r  those DS-3s. We 

need t o  evaluate and see. Maybe we can do i t  a t  less  cost ,  and 

also, i t  would depend on how we engineer it, what type o f  

customers are we expecting t o  get, how much bandwidth do we 

need. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I know we're s t i l l  i n  the  

summary o f  the testimony, Mr. Chair, and I apologize f o r  t ha t ,  

but I want t o  make sure I understand the  technology. 

could, take t h a t  drawing and draw me the  DSL technology. 

I f  you 

I 

want t o  see what i t  looks l i k e .  

THE WITNESS: Okay. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: The DSL - -  the DS-3 i s  a loop; 

r i g h t ?  And t h a t ' s  the loop t h a t ' s  necessary - - i t  s p a r t  o f  

what we would c a l l  DSL; correct? 

THE WITNESS: Sure. Sor t  o f .  A DSLAM so r t  o f  - -  you 

can th ink  o f  i t  as two par ts .  There's an ATM side, 

asynchronous t rans fe r  mode, which i s  the  "A" - - we l l ,  i t ' s  not  
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the "A" i n  the DSLAM, but  i t ' s  the way a l l  these - -  the 

high-frequency c i r c u i t s  a re  groomed and made i n t o  packets. 

So here's so r t  o f  the side o f  the DSLAM tha t  has the 

customer subscriber cards i n  it, and these could be 12, 24, 48 

por t ,  whatever. That connects the copper, and t h a t ' s  pu t t i ng  a 

high-frequency tone on the l i n e ,  higher than the  voice 

frequency because i t  can r i d e  - -  the voice and data can r i de .  

So t h a t ' s  pu t t i ng  a high-frequency c a r r i e r  wave tha t  can car ry  

maybe up t o  a megabit and a h a l f .  So out here we have a 

s p l i t t e r .  The low frequency goes t o  the  telephone i n  the  case 

o f  a res iden t ia l  DSL. It could be HDSL where the re ' s  no voice 

services - - o r  SDSL. And then you would have some s o r t  o f  

modem t h a t  gives you a connection t o  your computer. Back here, 

these c i r c u i t s  are a l l  aggregated and packetized, and these 

DSLAMs on the  back o f  them have several the in ter faces.  They 

are a l l  ATM - -  
COMMISSIONER JABER: What i s  i t  you are c a l l i n g  the 

DSLAM? What p a r t  o f  t h a t  drawing - -  
THE WITNESS: This whole th ing  i s  a DSLAM. This 

whole th ing .  These c i r c u i t s  can be as slow as T -1 .  They can 

be a T-3 .  They can be OC3, op t i ca l  c a r r i e r  3, op t i ca l  c a r r i e r  

12, and maybe even some versions o f  e l e c t r i c a l  STS1, STS3s. 

And i f  I ' m  s i t t i n g  here i n  a remote and I ' v e  got some 

transmission system - -  l e t ' s  j u s t  say I ' m  B e l l .  I ' m  s i t t i n g  

ins ide  t h i s  remote terminal .  I ' v e  got a d i g i t a l  loop c a r r i e r  
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s i t t i n g  here t h a t ' s  - -  you know, t h i s  copper comes i n ,  and i t ' s  

punched down on some s o r t  o f  b lock where we both have access t o  

the same copper. Before I put  t h i s  DSLAM i n  here, I ' m  

prov id ing d i a l  tone t o  t h i s  customer. 

transmission system somehow w i t h  T - 1  from my d i g i t a l  loop 

c a r r i e r ,  and t h i s  th ing  goes on back t o  the CO. 

another remote. It might go t o ,  you know, Ryder Truck o r  some 

b i g  corporate customer. You know, i t ' s  t h e i r  f i b e r  network, I 

don ' t  know where i t  goes. 

I jump onto t h i s  

It might go t o  

So t h i s  i s  the BST f i b e r  t h a t ' s ,  you know, been 

bought and pa id  f o r  there. They are j u s t  simply going t o  jump 

from t h i s  ATM r i g h t  over i n t o  t h i s  transmission system and r i d e  

on t h a t  f i b e r  somehow. These ATM switches a lso even have 

opt ics.  So they could - -  ra ther  than even get on the 

transmission system, i f  the re ' s  a f i b e r  cable here t h a t ' s  got 

some spare f i be rs  i n  it, you can j u s t  p lug those guys r i g h t  

back i n t o  t h i s  ATM, and i t  produces the l i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. So the  conf igurat ion o f  

the DSLAM al lows you t o  do more o r  less depending on what's 

coming out  o f  the DSLAM. 

THE WITNESS: That 's  r i g h t ,  you oversubscribe. I f  

you have 100 customers here, you don ' t  put  100 times the  amount 

o f  bandwidth here. You engineer i t  t o  oversubscribe. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: So then my question i s ,  i f  the 

4LECs put  the  DSLAM there and conf igure i t  the  way they want, 
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joesn ' t  t h a t  provide more f l e x i b i l i t y  f o r  the ALEC? And p r i ce  

iotwithstanding, but  i f  - - 
THE WITNESS: Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: - - you have more f l e x i b i l i t y  by 

) lac ing your own DSLAM. 

THE WITNESS: Pr ice notwithstanding and co l loca t ion  

appl icat ion process notwithstanding. 

)e s i t t i n g  there; i t ' s  a l l  f u l l  up. I ' v e  got t o  now go over 

and get a piece o f  land. I ' v e  got t o  condemn it, o r  I ' v e  got 

to use my common c a r r i e r  t o  go i n  the c i t y  r i g h t  away and say, 

Dour a pad, you know, pu t  one o f  these th ings i n .  

Dower. They are going t o  have power i n  here. 

Dreakers over t o ,  you know, some power. I ' m  going t o  need 

cable t o  run i n t o  t h i s  MDF. That i s  a b i g  job. That 's  a b i g  

job t o  do t h a t  i n  addi t ion.  It wouldn't be a b i g  job i f  there 

,vas only  a couple hundred o f  them, but the magnitude here i s  

wortnous. 

I mean, t h i s  t h i n g  might 

I need 

I ' m  going t o  run 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: What i s  the greatest  number o f  

customers you serve i n  any s ing le - - out o f  any s ing le  remote 

termi nal ? 

THE WITNESS: You know, we don ' t  serve any customers 

out o f  remotes now, so I don ' t  t h ink  I ' m  q u a l i f i e d  t o  answer 

tha t .  We estimate how many - - we j u s t  d iv ide  Bel 1South's t o t a l  

l i n e s ,  you know, i n t o  t h e i r  remote, so we estimate, you know, 

that  the re ' s  roughly, you know, 500 l i n e s  out. 
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COMMISSIONER PALECKI: So you don ' t  even know what 

remote terminals your signal goes through? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  I don ' t  know where they are. 

I don ' t  know exact ly  how they correspond t o  addresses. We've 

looked i n t o  t h i s .  We've rea l i zed  tha t  we've got  t o  t i e  the 

remote not necessari ly t o  a geography bu t  a lso t o  the address, 

because then we can, you know, mark it, you know, so r t  o f  

su rg i ca l l y  a f t e r  those guys - - 
COMMISSIONER PALECKI : As a marketing strategy, could 

you i d e n t i f y  - -  you t e s t i f i e d  e a r l i e r  t h a t  these remote 

terminal s t yp i ca l  l y  serve between 100 and 1,000 customers. 

Could you i d e n t i f y  those remote terminals t h a t  serve a greater 

number o f  customers, a thousand or  so, and ta rge t  those remote 

terminals f o r  your own DSLAM rather  than seeking t o  serve a 

Bel 1 South? 

It would seem, i f  the  DSLAM can serve 48 customers 

w t  o f  1,000 BellSouth customers, i t  would be p rac t i ca l  t o  

bel ieve t h a t  you could market DSL t o  t h a t  many. 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s  my b e l i e f  from j u s t  a pure 

m i n e s s  perspective t h a t  they have already gone t o  the 

largest.  They have already h i t  those, and they 've  got a fair y 

lecent penetrat ion i n  those remotes. So we might be the second 

me i n  there,  and t h a t  impacts our revenue pro ject ions,  the  

narket share, but t h a t  - -  
COMMISSIONER JABER: I wish someone would rea l i ze  - -  
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THE WITNESS: I f  t h a t  was a green - -  I ' m  sorry? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I wish someone would rea l  i z e  

tha t  there 's  a huge market i n  some o f  the  most r u r a l  areas. 

THE WITNESS: There i s ,  there i s .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: That area i s  going t o  grow. You 

i d e n t i f i e d  yourse l f  t h a t  F lo r ida  i s  amazingly la rge  w i t h  

respect t o  development and growth, and i f  we have developed i n  

the busiest  areas, t h a t  on ly  leaves one major place f o r  f u tu re  

development . 
THE WITNESS: That 's  r i g h t ,  and a lso res iden t ia l .  

There's no rea l  CLEC - -  f ac i l i t i es -based  CLEC. Now, I ' m  not  

t a l k i n g  about UNE-P o r  resale,  but  t he re ' s  nobody doing these 

UNE loops f o r  res i s  ( s i c ) ,  and t h a t ' s  what we want t o  do. But 

i f  we are prov id ing res iden t ia l  d i a l  tone t o  somebody and 

they ' re  doing the  d i a l - u p  modem, t h a t  works great,  but  as soon 
as they decide they want DSL, and they i nev i tab l y  are going t o  

get BellSouth DSL, i t  won't work. And t h a t ' s  what we need 

immediate r e l i e f  on r i g h t  now. 

We've been doing t h i s  f o r  two years. We're running 

out o f  customers t o  s e l l  t o  who don ' t  have BellSouth DSL, 

because when we switch them over t o  our voice, BellSouth 

chooses t o  shut o f f  t h a t  DSL and say, sorry.  And the  

customers, they don ' t  know. You know, we're t a l k i n g  about the  

concept o f  BellSouth doesn't  sel t o  r e t a i l ,  they wholesale t o  

the ISPs  o r  themselves. Customers don ' t  know tha t .  They th ink  
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they are  buying i t  from BellSouth. 

and i t  says BellSouth. I t ' s  marketed BellSouth. You know, 

they th ink  i t ' s  a l l  bundled together w i t h  the phone company. 

It comes i n  on t h e i r  b i l l  

COMMISSIONER JABER: I ' m  going t o  ask you one f i n a l  

question, and we should get back t o  the  procedure. How qu ick l y  

could you penetrate the  res ident ia l  market i f  we ru led  i n  favor 

o f  your pos i t i on  on t h i s  issue? You sa id  t h a t  - -  you've 

i d e n t i f i e d  you ' re  ta rge t i ng  smal l  businesses now, and you've 

been r e l a t i v e l y  successful, and your next course o f  ac t ion  

would be the res iden t ia l  consumer f o r  DSL. How qu ick l y  could 

tha t  happen? 

THE WITNESS: I don ' t  know how successful we would 

be, but I do have peers t h a t  have s ta r ted  companies l i k e  ours 

i n  other par ts  o f  the  country and i n  the  m id -A t lan t i c  area, 

s p e c i f i c a l l y  Richmond. My one colleague up there was able t o  

get 10 percent market share res iden t ia l ,  you know, w i t h i n  h i s  

f i r s t  18 months o f  operation. So I ' d  fee l  p r e t t y  exc i ted about 

market share. 

t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  i f  

you cannot provide 

going a f t e r  and ge t t i ng  some good res ident ia  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Now, you ' ve 

a po ten t ia l  customer has BellSouth DSL, t h a t  

them w i th  voice service.  

THE WITNESS: No, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: What i f  one o f  your customers 

wants DSL service? Do they have any op t ion  other than 

Bel 1 South? 
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THE WITNESS: I don ' t  be l ieve so a t  t h i s  t ime, no. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: So you would lose t h a t  

customer i f  they wanted t o  hook up wi th  DSL? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r ,  and t h a t  happens every day. 

And I take escalat ion c a l l s  from customers who have switched t o  

us. Their  DSL shuts o f f .  They are out o f  business, you know, 

and they want me t o  do something about it. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : So the  probl em i s twofold. 

You're l o s i n g  e x i s t i n g  customers, any e x i s t i n g  customer t h a t  

dants DSL i s  gone, and any customer you want t o  ta rge t  t h a t  has 

ISL, you have no po ten t ia l  t o  capture t h a t  customer. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  That 's  the  one b i g  issue 

that we're here. The second issue t h a t  we're asking f o r  i s ,  

the same way we buy the voice UNE, we're asking f o r  some s o r t  

i f  resale o r  DSL UNE. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: But the resale you ' re  t a l k i n g  

ibout i s  on ly  where Bel lSouth already provides DSL service; 

Zorrect? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Not where there i s  not DSL 

ierv ice a1 ready connected t o  the  customer. 

THE WITNESS: Right. I - -  
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Another question and w e ' l l  l e t  

IOU get back t o  your summary i n  j u s t  a moment. 

THE WITNESS: No, no. Go ahead. 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: In your opin ion ,  t o  get 
meaningful penetration in to  the residential market, must you 

package your services and market t o  customers who are going t o  
be subscribing t o  both d a t a  and voice, or do you t h i n k  there's 
any market out there just for voice residential? 

THE WITNESS: I t h i n k  t h a t  there's a good market for 
just voice, bu t  I t h i n k  I would be irresponsible t o  go i n t o  
this t h i n k i n g  t h a t  the DSL percentages is  not going t o  go up 

over time, and then I would eventually lose my customer base I 

bought. 

sustainable business i f  I d i d n ' t  have a DSL strategy. 
I couldn't represent t o  investors t h a t  I have a 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So even i f  you got significant 
penetration i n  the residential market, would the growth of DSL 

or d a t a  services and customers' desires you feel like t h a t  even 
w i t h  t h a t  significant penetration, you would then lose 
customers who decided t o  change? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r ,  exactly. 
When I say "change," t o  add - -  COMMISSIONER DEASON: 

THE WITNESS: DSL. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: - - DSL service. 
THE WITNESS: Yes. w2 t h i n k  we could have a nice 

bundle of d i a l  -up  and local and add some features i n  and long 

distance and do really good, but  as soon as they wanted DSL, 

we'd be i n  trouble. 
So just i n  summary, I've gone on a while here, and I 
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appreciate the t ime.  We s ta r ted  w i th  ten  issues, we dropped 

nine o f  them. Over the two years o f  working together, we 

bel ieve i n  working s t u f f  out w i th  BellSouth. We t r y  t o  work i t  

out a t  the  f i e l d  l eve l ,  a t  the CO l eve l ,  you know, i n  the  

engineering l eve l ,  a t  the  legal  l eve l ,  but  t h i s  i s  j u s t  one 

tha t  j u s t  i s ,  you know, i t ' s  r e a l l y  paramount important f o r  us, 

and i t ' s  qu ick ly  becoming a l i f e  or death matter f o r  FDN. We 

th ink  we're a rea l  player here i n  F lor ida.  We've got the  r i g h t  

strategy. We j u s t  have a unique circumstance t h a t  we need 

help. So t h a t ' s  a l l  I had t o  say. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Gal  1 agher, overa l l  , your 

zxperiences w i th  BellSouth have been good, haven't they? 

THE WITNESS: I would say yes. We bel ieve i n  

zooperation. L ike I said, we t r y  t o  keep out  o f  y o u - a l l ' s  

zhamber's here and work i t  out and usua l ly  we can. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: How i s  i t  you communicate w i t h  

your s t a f f  about how t h e y ' l l  communicate w i t h  BellSouth? 

THE WITNESS: I ' v e  t y p i c a l l y  found t h a t  when my s t a f f  

j i ves  me a bad r e s u l t ,  i t s  easy t o  blame somebody else,  but  i f  

you look inward, you know, you usua l ly  f i n d  tha t ,  we1 1, we may 

lave, you know, done something wrong ourselves. And so a l o t  

i f  the  times i t ' s  ourselves. And when we do i d e n t i f y  i t , we 

; t r i p  away a l l  o f  the par ts  where FDN messed up, you get a very 

Zlear p i c tu re .  And once you have t h a t  c lear  p i c tu re ,  you go t o  

3ellSouth w i th  i t  and say, hey, you guys are tak ing  - -  you 
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know, you ' re  throwing a l l  our SL ls  i n t o  PF status the day 

before, you know, the cutover. We need you t o  f i x  t h i s .  They 

are ge t t i ng  be t te r  a t  i t. They are g e t t i n g  b e t t e r .  So i f  you 

come t o  them w i th  a very spec i f i c ,  then you can work w i t h  them. 

But i f  i t ' s ,  you know, I d o n ' t  l i k e  you, you d o n ' t  l i k e  me, you 

d id  t h i s  t o  me, you know, on a very generic basis,  you don ' t  

get anywhere. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Do your employees take advantage 

o f  the t r a i n i n g  brochures and the  t r a i n i n g  classes t h a t  

BellSouth o f f e r s  f o r  - -  I ' v e  forgotten what i t ' s  ca l led,  bu t  

f o r  the  ALEC customer, basical  ly? 

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  know s p e c i f i c a l l y .  I know they 

go t o  Birmingham and A t l a n t a  f o r  t ra in ing on the  TAG gateway, 

f o r  example, or  f o r  deal ing w i t h  the CSR people. We've been 

t o l d  by them t h a t  we're the  l a rges t  provider o f  these UNE 

loops. Nobody i s  even close. You know, there i s  nobody even 

close. So I appreciate your time, and t h a t ' s  a l l  I had t o  say 

on my opening remarks. 

MR. FEIL: I d o n ' t  know i f  t h a t  was the  longest 

summary i n  the h i s t o r y  o f  t he  PSC o r  not,  bu t  anyway, I suppose 

we tender the witness f o r  cross now. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Bel 1South. 

MR. TURNER: Thank you, Commissioner Deason. 

CROSS EXAM1 NATION 

BY MR. TURNER: 
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Q M r .  Gallagher, good morning, I ' m  Pa t r i ck  Turner. We 

met a couple o f  weeks ago a t  your deposi t ion,  I bel ieve. And 

l e t  me s t a r t  by j u s t  b r i e f l y  doing some housekeeping about the 

deposit ion. I received from your counsel an e r ra ta  sheet i n  

which you made a few minor changes t o  your deposi t ion 

testimony. Aside from those changes on t h a t  e r ra ta  sheet, I 

take i t  t h a t  everything e lse i n  your deposi t ion testimony i s  

correct? 

A Yes, except I ' d  l i k e  t o  subs t i t u te  proper grammar f o r  

a l l  the times I said y o u - a l l .  

Q You-al l  i s  proper grammar, M r .  Gallagher. So we can 

agree then t h a t  w i t h  the exception o f  the  e r ra ta  sheet, i f  I 

were t o  ask the  same deposit ion questions today, your answers 

would be the same; r i g h t ?  

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Mr. Gallagher, before we get t o  f a r  i n t o  t h i s ,  there 

was one th ing  you sa id i n  your summary - -  several and I ' m  going 

t o  h i t  them as we go. But one th ing  I want t o  h i t  up f ron t ,  I 

bel ieve I understood you t o  say t h a t  t he  app l ica t ion  fee f o r  

co l loca t ion  a t  a remote terminal would be $3,000. Did I hear 

your understanding cor rec t ly?  

A Yes, t h a t ' s  my understanding. 

Q Mr. Gallagher, do you have a copy o f  what has been 

entered as S t a f f  Exh ib i t  Number 5? 

MR. FEIL: I'll hand i t  t o  him. 
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Q Actual ly ,  I th ink  i t ' s  j u s t  Exh ib i t  Number 5. 

S t i pu la t i on  5.  I bel ieve your counsel has handed you a 

it. Go w i th  me, i f  you w i l l ,  t o  Item Number 58, please 

A I see it. 

Q Now, there BellSouth was asked t o  i d e n t i f y  a1 

recur r ing  and nonrecurring costs and charges associated 

115 

I t ' s  

copy o f  

w i t h  

CLEC co l loca t ion  o f  a DSLAM a t  a remote terminal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Would you read f o r  us the  app l ica t ion  fee t h a t ' s  

there under the  nonrecurring cost? 

A "$615.61. " 

Q And you've never - -  FDN has never ac tua l l y  submitted 

3 col  1 ocat i  on appl i c a t i  on regardi ng a remote terminal ; r i  ght? 

A No, we have not.  

Q So you have no experience t o  i nd i ca te  tha t  t h a t  

6615.61 number i s  wrong; correct? 

A Correct. 

MR. TURNER: Commissioner Deason, i f  I may, I have 

two exh ib i t s  t h a t  are diagrams. With your permission, I ' d  l i k e  

to pass both o f  them out, so we can save the  t ime i n  passing 

them out, and then once everybody has copies, w e ' l l  s t a r t  going 

zhrough them, i f  t h a t ' s  okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Sure. Do you wish t o  have 

;hese i dent i  f ied? 

MR. TURNER: Yes, s i r .  I t h i n k  once the witness gets 
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t i n  h i s  hand we can - -  they are a l i t t l e  b i t  d i f f e r e n t .  We 

:an go through and mark them f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  a t  t h a t  po in t ,  

f t h a t ' s  okay. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: That w i l l  be f i ne .  We w i l l  

i den t i f y  the  e x h i b i t  which has the  DSLAM w i t h i n  the  centra l  

i f f i c e  as Exh ib i t  7 and the e x h i b i t  which has the  DSLAM i n  the 

'emote terminal as Exh ib i t  8. 

(Exhib i ts  7 and 8 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

MR. TURNER: Thank you. 

3Y MR. TURNER: 

Q Mr. Gallagher, i f  you would, what I ' d  l i k e  t o  do now 

i s  j u s t  general ly walk through w i t h  these diagrams i n  basic 

terms what i t  takes t o  provide both voice and data service t o  a 

single customer over a s ing le  loop. And i f  we could, l e t ' s  

s t a r t  w i t h  Exh ib i t  Number 7. And as Commissioner Deason j u s t  

ioted, t h a t ' s  the one tha t  has the  DSLAM and the  co l l oca t i on  

i n  f r o n t  o f  you? space a t  the  centra l  o f f i c e .  Do you have t h a t  

A Yes, I do. 

Q Now, l e t ' s  go through it. I ' m  going 

through how t h i s  i s  drawn out,  and w e ' l l  s t a r t  

t o  wa lk  you 

t a l  k ing  about 

it. Over t o  the  f a r  r i g h t  o f  t he  page, we havL an end user 

represented by t h a t  telephone; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And then we have a copper f a c i l i t y  running from the 

end user premises t o  a remote terminal t h a t  serves the end 
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lser; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q A t  the  remote terminal ,  i t ' s  hooked t o  another copper 

f a c i l i t y  i n  t h i s  instance t h a t  runs back t o  the  centra l  o f f i c e ;  

" ight? 

A Yes. 

Q And a t  the centra l  o f f i c e  i n  the CLEC co l l oca t i on  

space, we have drawn a DSLAM; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And FDN does, i n  fac t ,  have some DSLAM equipment 

col located i n  centra l  o f f i ces  i n  Bel lSouth's centra l  o f f i ces  i n  

F lor ida;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Now, j u s t  t o  make t h i s  a l i t t l e  easier,  l e t ' s  

3ssume t h a t  t he  DSLAM i n  t h i s  cent ra l  o f f i c e  has a s p l i t t e r  

integrated i n t o  the  DSLAM, okay? And, i n  f a c t ,  a l o t  o f  DSLAMs 

j o  have in tegra ted  s p l i t t e r s ,  don ' t  they? 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. And assume w i th  me, i t ' s  not  drawn here, but 

j us t  assume w i t h  me tha t  the DSLAM i s  going t o  be connected by 

transport f a c i  1 i t i e s  back t o  a packet switch somewhere e l  se on 

FDN ' s network, okay? 

A Yes. 

Q And t h a t ' s ,  i n  f a c t ,  what happens i n  some centra l  

o f f i ces  i n  F lo r ida ;  r i g h t ?  
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A Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  L e t ' s  look a t  what happens t o  provide 

lo ice and data over t h i s  s ing le  loop t o  the end user. And t o  

i l l u s t r a t e  tha t ,  assume t h a t  the end user i s  t a l k i n g  on the 

Zelephone w i th  a f r i end  wh i le  a t  the same time he 's  su r f i ng  the 

[n ternet ,  okay? 

A Yes. 

Q I n  tha t  case, the  voice t r a f f i c  i s  going t o  be 

transported along the lower frequency po r t i on  o f  t h i s  copper 

loop; r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q And simultaneously t h a t  data t r a f f i c  t h a t ' s  going 

lack and f o r t h  through the  In te rne t ,  i t ' s  going t o  be 

transported on the higher frequency po r t i on  o f  t h a t  same loop; 

Oight? 

A Correct. 

Q I n  my diagram, the  voice and the data are going t o  be 

t rave l i ng  along together s o r t  o f  l i k e  on a highway u n t i l  they 

h i t  t he  DSLAM t h a t ' s  co l located a t  the centra l  o f f i c e ;  r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q And once i t  h i t s  the  DSLAM, t ha t  s p l i t t e r  i s  going t o  

peel o f f  the voice from the  data; r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q And the voice i s  going t o  be sent from t h i s  DSLAM t o  

the c i r c u i t  switch, and i t ' s  going t o  go, get completed j u s t  
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l i k e  any other voice c a l l  ; r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q The data, once i t ' s  s p l i t  o f f ,  the  DSLAM i s  going t o  

3acketize the data; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And then i t ' s  going t o  send t h a t  data back t o  your 

3acket switch; r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q And from there,  i t ' s  going t o  be sent through and 

terminated j u s t  1 i ke any other packet switching type c a l l  ; 

pi ght? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, i n  t h i s  case here, you had drawn, and i t ' s  s t i l l  

there, on t h i s  diagram you have on the poster board t h a t  you 

vere working o f f  o f ,  the b lue diagram, t h a t ' s ,  i n  e f f e c t ,  the  

same th ing  as what we're t a l k i n g  about i n  Exh ib i t  Number 7; 

* igh t?  That 's  an a l l  copper loop t o  the  end user; r i g h t ?  

A Yes, s i r .  

Q And there you don ' t  have t o  co l loca te .  FDN does not 

have t o  co l locate a DSLAM a t  t h a t  remote terminal  i n  order t o  

provide both voice and data t o  tha t  end user; r i g h t ?  

A 

Q 

I f  the loop length i s  adequate, yes. 

That 's  a good po in t .  I f  you get above 18,000 fee t ,  

we're going t o  have problems; r i g h t ?  

A Right, o r  i f  the re ' s  cable p a i r  exhaust. 
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Q And t h a t  i s  a technological funct ion;  r i g h t ?  I n  

other words, i f  you had longer than an 18,000-foot loop, both 

BellSouth, FDN, and anyone e lse i s  going t o  have problems 

providing voice and data over t h a t  same loop t o  one customer; 

r i g h t ?  

A Well, we would have more problems than you because I 

would bel ieve eventual ly you would pu t  a DSLAM i n  out there,  

and you would shorten your loop length. 

Q Okay. So you are saying t h a t  we could work around 

it. L e t ' s  assume t h e y ' l l  work around, though. 

A Okay. 

Q L e t ' s  assume t h a t  we have a loop length o f  

30,000 fee t ,  f o r  instance. 

A Okay. 

Q BellSouth i s  going t o  have a problem providing voice 

and data t o  t h a t  end user over tha t  same loop; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q 

A Right. 

Q 

And FDN i s  going t o  have the  same problem; r i g h t ?  

And t h a t ' s  j u s t  a funct ion o f  today's technology; 

correct? 

A Yes. 

Q 

d id ,  I want you t o  correct  me, but  dur ing your summary, you 

said, I bel ieve, t h a t  90 percent o f  the access l i nes ,  BellSouth 

I may have misheard you dur ing your summary, and i f  I 
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access l i nes ,  i n  F lo r i da  are served by remotes; r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q 

them - -  l e t  me say i t  t h i s  way. Did you mean t o  imply t h a t  

only 10 percent o f  the  access l i n e s  i n  F lo r i da  are served by 

cont nuous copper l i k e  we've diagramed here i n  Number 7? 

Did you mean t o  imply there t h a t  90 percent o f  

A Ninety percent o f  the customers based on the data 

tha t ,  you know, we've got from y o u - a l l ,  90 percent are served 

by e i the r  a f i b e r  o r  copper fed remote. So I th ink  i t  was 

60 percent by f i b e r  fed, and then i t  would be, the other 

30 percent would be copper fed. So i n  the  case o f  a copper fed 

remote, you are using T -ca r r i e r  o r  something on t h a t  copper 

you ' re  feeding i t  wi th .  

Q Okay. So I want t o  make sure I c l a r i f y  there. Am I 

understanding you t o  say t h a t  based on Bel  1South's discovery, 

t h i s  a l l  copper ex i s t s  about 30 percent o f  the  t ime i n  

Bel 1 South ' s network? 

A Yes. But t h i s  diagram, there would be more copper 

going from the remote t o  the end user than there i s  copper 

going from the  remote back t o  the DSLAM. 

Q Okay. But i n  an a l l  copper scenario l i k e  we have i n  

Number 7 here, we've already acknowledged t h a t  FDN does not 

have t o  put a DSLAM a t  t h a t  remote terminal t o  serve t h a t  

customer w i th  DSL service;  r i g h t ?  

A I f  we could get - -  the important piece o f  copper i s  
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the one t h a t  goes from tha t  DSLAM t o  the remote. That 's  where 

you -a l l  t y p i c a l l y  come back and say, we're out o f  copper, on 

tha t  piece. The piece from the remote out,  obviously, t h a t ' s  

there. But i t ' s  a cable exhaust issue t y p i c a l l y  on a remote 

fed - - copper fed remote. 

Q I t ' s  a cable exhaust issue, not a DSLAMhonDSLAM 

issue; r i g h t ?  

A Yes, s i r .  

Q 

r i g h t ?  

And we're here today on the DSLAMhonDSLAM issue; 

A Right. 

Q Now, l e t ' s  go t o  - -  
COMMISSIONER JABER: I ' m  sorry ,  Mr. Turner. May I 

in te r rup t  f o r  j u s t  a minute? 

MR. TURNER: Sure. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: They come back and t e l l  you they 

are out o f  copper? 

THE WITNESS: Correct. Because - -  what you have here 

i s  a remote t h a t ' s ,  you know, put  i n  out  a t  some f a r  end place. 

They d i d n ' t  - -  f o r  whatever reason, they d i d n ' t  run copper from 

tha t  remote back t o  the  CO. They put a b ig ,  you know, several 

hundred count copper cable, and ins ide  t h a t  cable, t hey ' re  

running, l i k e ,  a T -ca r r i e r ,  a d i g i t a l  c a r r i e r ,  t h a t  they can 

put a bunch o f  capacity on, so then t h a t  cable goes t o  the 

remote. The remote might be serving, you know, hundreds and 
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hundreds of l i nes ,  so there might be, you know, 500 o r  a 

thousand l i n e s  feeding the remote but  only a hundred o r  200 

ng back t o  the CO. And they ' re  using - -  on tha t  

using time d i v i s i o n  mult iplexed, TDM, d i g i t a l  

i f  you t ry  t o  push DSL though tha t ,  i t  doesn't  

need a pure copper - -  you have t o  request, I need 

conductor on t h i s  route.  

COMMISSIONER JABER: And fo rg ive  my ignorance on 

th i s .  That 's  not something t h a t ' s  constant ly avai lab le? 

THE WITNESS: You know, because o f  t he  way t h a t  l o  P 
i s  constructed, we've t y p i c a l l y  - -  our experience has been, you 

go through t h i s  th ing  ca l l ed  a loop makeup request, and i t ' s  

been tha t ,  you know, i t ' s  j u s t  not  avai lab le there.  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: But d i d n ' t  you say t h a t  t h i s  

3ure copper scenario, which i s  depicted on Exh ib i t  Number 7,  

2x is ts  approximately 30 percent o f  the time on Bel lSouth's 

ietwork? 

THE WITNESS: T h i r t y  percent o f  the t ime you are 

deal ing w i t h  a customer who's behind a copper fed remote. 

Again, our est imat ion i n  doing business, we'd say 60 percent o f  

them are behind f i b e r  fed remotes, 30 percent are behind f i b e r  

fed remotes, and 10 percent you can get a copper shot s t ra igh t  

through. 

not.  

I don ' t  know i f  they are going through a remote o r  

It j u s t  - - you know, you can get a copper - - 
COMMISSIONER PALECKI: And those are the 10 percent 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

124 

t h a t  are connected d i r e c t l y  t o  the central  o f f i c e ?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: So you have t h a t  10 percent 

p lus the 30 percent you could serve now using your e x i s t i n g  

DSLAM i n  the co l l oca t i on  space? 

THE WITNESS: I f  there was copper avai lab le,  yes, i f  

there was copper avai lab le from t h a t  DSLAM t o  t h a t  remote. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: And i f  the  end user i s  located 

18,000 fee t  o r  less  from the  central  o f f i c e .  

THE WITNESS: That 's  r i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: You sa id i f  there i s  copper 

avai 1 ab1 e. 

THE WITNESS: Right. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: What percentage o f  the time i s  

there copper avai lable? How much does t h a t  c u t  down on the 

3er cent age? 

THE WITNESS: I don ' t  know the exact percentages. I 

j o n ' t  know. I t ' s  been enough t h a t  we have p r e t t y  much, because 

nle've had t o  t u r n  down customers enough, we have gone away from 

3ven t r y i n g  t o  ask f o r  i t  anymore. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : But you ' r e  sayi ng i t  I s 

something less than the  10 percent p lus the  30 percent. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Your scenario where you can 

j c t u a l l y  serve without prov id ing a DSLAM i n  a remote terminal 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

125 

i s  something less than 40 percent o f  - -  
THE WITNESS: Yes, yes, I would say t h a t .  I would 

say t h a t  t h i s  Exh ib i t  7 drawing t o  be more accurate, you know, 

would depict  a bunch o f ,  you know, copper coming out o f  t h a t  

remote serving subscribers, and then copper - - i t ' s  not a 

one-for-one copper cable going back t o  t h a t  DSLAM. 

end i n  some manner. 

I t ' s  one t o  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : So sometimes i t  works, 

sometimes i t  doesn ' t . 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But t h a t ' s  j u s t  - -  I mean, 

t h a t ' s  e f f i c i e n t  engineering o f  a network. You wouldn't  want a 

one-to-one r a t i o .  I mean, i t  would i n e f f i c i e n t ;  correct? 

THE WITNESS: Right. 

BY MR. TURNER: 

Q Mr. Gallagher, j u s t  t o  explore t h a t  one step fu r ther .  

Assume w i t h  me t h a t  you have t h a t  s i t u a t i o n  t h a t  you've j u s t  

described t o  the Commissioners where you don ' t  have an 

avai lab le copper f a c i l i t y  going back t o  the DSLAM from the 

remote terminal .  

A Uh-huh. 

Q Resolving t h a t  issue i s  a matter o f  simply p u t t i n g  i n  

another copper f a c i l i t y  from the remote terminal t o  the DSLAM. 

I t ' s  not  an issue o f  p u t t i n g  a DSLAM a t  the remote terminal ; 

r i g h t ?  
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A 

Q Sure. The issue there i s ,  does BellSouth put  i n  

another - -  some more copper f a c i l i t i e s  from the  remote terminal 

back t o  your DSLAM; r i g h t ?  

I ' m  sorry,  could you ask t h a t  question again? 

A 

Q Okay. L e t ' s  go now t o  E x h i b i t  Number 8, and as we 

Or f i n d  some t h a t  may be avai lab le.  

d i d  the f i r s t  t ime, do you have t h a t  i n  f r o n t  o f  you, 

Mr . Gal 1 agher? 

A Yes. 

Q As we did th, f i r s t  t ime, l e t ' s  j u s t  w a l k  through 

what's depicted on i t , and w e ' l l  go from here. End user on the 

r ight -hand side o f  t he  page; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And we have a copper f a c i l i t y  going from the end user 

t o  the remote terminal ;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q L e t ' s  sk ip  the  remote terminal f o r  r i g h t  now and look 

a t  what's going from the  co l loca t ion  space i n  the  centra l  

o f f i c e  t o  the remote terminal .  Now, i n  Exh ib i t  Number 7 t h a t  

was a copper f a c i l i t y ;  r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q 

r i g h t ?  

And i n  E x h i b i t  Number 8 t h a t ' s  a f i b e r  f a c i l i t y ;  

A Right. 

Q And when you have t h i s  type o f  a rch i tec tu re  where you 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

127 

have copper from the end user t o  the  remote terminal and f i b e r  

from the  remote terminal back t o  the  centra l  o f f i c e ,  i n  order 

t o  provide voice and data t o  tha t  end user over the same loop, 

somebody has got t o  put a DSLAM i n  t h a t  remote terminal ;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And y o u ' l l  see, for tunate ly ,  we have put a green 

DSLAM i n  the remote terminal on Exh ib i t  Number 8; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q 

now, l e t ' s  j u s t  wa lk  through l i k e  we d i d  before technologica l ly  

a t  a high leve l  what happens when t h i s  end user on the  r i g h t  

side o f  the page i s  receiv ing voice and data over the same 

l i n e ,  okay? 

Okay. Now, wi thout regard t o  who the  c a r r i e r  i s  f o r  

A Yes. 

Q And again, he 's  t a l k i n g  on the  telephone whi le  a t  the  

same t ime su r f i ng  the In te rne t ,  okay? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, both - -  again, the voice i s  going t o  go over the  

low-frequency po r t i on  o f  the loop t o  the  DSLAM i n  the remote 

terminal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And the  data i s  going t o  go over the  high-frequency 

por t ion  o f  the  same copper loop t o  the  DSLAM i n  the remote 

terminal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 
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Q And again, l e t ' s  assume t h a t  the DSLAM i n  the remote 

terminal has a s p l i t t e r  in tegrated j u s t  t o  make l i f e  simple, 

okay? So what's going t o  happen i s ,  the s p l i t t e r  i s  going t o  

peel the voice from the data; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q The voice w i l l  then be transported by t h a t  f i b e r  

f a c i l i t y  back t o  the co l l oca t i on  spot; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And from there, i t  w i l l  be sent t o  the  c i r c u i t  switch 

network, and i t  w i l l  be handled j u s t  1 i ke any other voice c a l l  ; 

r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q The data, once i t  i s  s p l i t  o f f  from the  voice, i s  

then going t o  be packetized by t h a t  DSLAM a t  the  remote 

termi nal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Once i t ' s  packetized, i t ' s  going t o  be sent over the 

f iber  back t o  the co l l oca t i on  space; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And a t  the co l l oca t i on  space t h a t  packetized data i s  

then going t o  be sent back up t o  your packet switch, and i t ' s  

going t o  be terminated j u s t  l i k e  any other data t r a f f i c ;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Now, j u s t  as an aside, do you have your d i r e c t  

Iestimony i n  f r o n t  o f  you? 
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A Yes, I do. 

Q Go w i t h  me t o  Page 6 ,  Lines 11 through 14. 

A Yes. 

Q Mr. Gallagher, you d i d  a 
before I d i d .  In Lines 11 through 
quarter-century, as Florida's popu 

bad t h i n g ,  you got  there 
14, you say, "In the past 
a t ion  grew explosively, 

BellSouth deployed a tremendous number of DLCs a t  remote 
terminals i n  i t s  distribution network;" right? 

A Correct. 

Q Now, there where you're saying "DLCs i n  i t s  rem1 te 
terminal , " you ' re t a l  k i  ng about t h i  s s i tuat ion we ' ve d i  agramed 
here on Exhibit  8 where you have fiber from the central office 
t o  the remote terminal; right? 

A No, I d o n ' t  necessarily mean fiber i n  every case. I 

mean there's a d i g i t a l  loop carrier time div is ion  multiplex 
device o u t  there. 

Q Okay. And we can agree, can't we, t h a t  t h a t  time 
division multiplex device i s  generally going t o  take place when 
you've got  t h a t  fiber loop, right, the fiber fed loop? 

A No. I t  can be served by copper T-carrier. 

Q I understand t h a t ,  b u t  when you have fiber going i n t o  
a remote terminal, then copper, you are going t o  have a DLC; 

right? 
A Probably, yes. Yes. 

Q And we can agree, can't we, t h a t  BellSouth has been 
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deploying t h a t  DLC type technology long before the 1996 Act 

came i n t o  place; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And BellSouth had been deploying t h a t  DLC technology 

long before FDN came i n t o  business; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Go back w i t h  me t o  Number 8. We have agreed, haven't 

Ne, t h a t  i n  order f o r  any c a r r i e r  t o  provide voice and data 

service over the same loop t o  t h i s  end user, a DSLAM i s  going 

t o  have t o  placed i n  a remote terminal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q I t ' s  f a i r  t o  say then, i s n ' t  it, t h a t  wherever 

BellSouth today i s  serving both voice and DSL type data 

services t o  an end user i n  F lo r ida  t h a t  i s  served out o f  t h i s  

type o f  remote terminal arrangement, BellSouth has had t o  place 

a DSLAM a t  the remote terminal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yep, yes. 

Q And i n  each o f  those instances where BellSouth has 

placed a DSLAM i n  a remote terminal i n  order t o  provide t h a t  

type o f  service t o  an end user, we can agree t h a t  BellSouth has 

had t o  purchase a DSLAM; r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q And a f t e r  i t ' s  purchased the DSLAM, i t ' s  had t o  

i n s t a l l  t h a t  DSLAM a t  the remote terminal ;  r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 
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Q And i f  there wasn't space a t  t h a t  remote terminal ,  

3ellSouth would have t o  have augmented the space i n  the remote 

:erminal before i t  put  the  DSLAM i n ;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And i f  there wasn't s u f f i c i e n t  power a t  the  remote 

zerminal, BellSouth would have had t o  augment t h e  power a t  t h a t  

'emote terminal before i t  placed the DSLAM; r igh t?  

A Yes. 

Q I f  there were any zoning issues or  r i g h t - o f - w a y  

issues involved i n  p lac ing  t h a t  DSLAM i n  the remote terminal ,  

3ellSouth would have had t o  resolve those issues; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Gallagher, do you know 

;hrough your discovery i n  t h i s  proceeding where these 

; i tuat ions are i n  F lo r ida ,  where t h i s  s o r t  o f  a rch i tec tu re  

i n  place and where BellSouth has already placed the  DSLAMs 

'emote terminal s? 

S 

n 

THE WITNESS: I do not  know. No, I d o n ' t  know where 

I have been t o l d  t h a t  I could have access t o  t h a t  :hey are. 

information by BellSouth, bu t  I - -  and where we have t r i e d  

Iefore, we don ' t  know where the  remotes are o r  how they 

:orrespond t o  addresses and which ones have been - - 
COMMISSIONER JABER: So t o  the  degree you can get  

;his information, though, you could also request the  use o f  t he  

ISLAM i n  these remote terminals so t h a t  you can provide DSL 
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service. 

THE WITNESS: Absolutely. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I s  t h a t  - -  i f  BellSouth provided 

you t h a t  informat ion - -  
THE WITNESS: Right. And we so r t  o f  do tha t  now 

because we buy what they c a l l  t h e i r  wholesale product, our I S P ,  

and we t r y  t o  r e s e l l  it. And they have t h i s  a v a i l a b i l i t y  on 

t h e i r  Web page where you can go and say, i s  t h i s  place DSL 

capable. you know, punch i n  a phone number and they'  11 - - 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. So t o  the  degree t h i s  

exi s t s ,  you don ' t have d i  sagreement? 

THE WITNESS: What i s  i t  - -  
COMMISSIONER JABER: To the  degree t h i s  so r t  o f  

arch i tecture i s  already i n  place and BellSouth has DSLAMs i n  

some remote terminals.  you don ' t  have an issue there a t  a l l ?  

THE WITNESS: No. I have an issue i n  tha t  my voice 

service doesn' t  work when the customer buys - -  you know, wants 

Bel 1 South DSL. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. This i s  a BellSouth 

customer i n  Exh ib i t  Number 8. For you t o  use the  DSLAM i n  t h i s  

remote terminal t o  provide DSL service t o  your po ten t ia l  

customer, t h a t  would k i ck  voice service o f f ?  

THE WITNESS: Right, but  I would not  get t o  quote, 

unquote use the  DSLAM. I ' d  have t o  buy t h e i r  f in ished product, 

and i f  I bought t h e i r  f in ished product, which, you know, they 
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c a l l  t h e i r  F a s t  Access, and I put i t  on a l i n e ,  I ' v e  got t o  put  

i t  on a BellSouth l i n e .  I can ' t  put  i t  on an FDN l i n e .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: I see. So i t ' s  an addi t ional  

service tha t  you have t o  buy t o  be able t o  use t h i s  DSLAM t o  

provide DSL service t o  a customer - - 
THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: - - and t h a t ' s  ca l l ed  Fast 

Access. 

THE WITNESS: That 's  correct .  I buy the Fast Access, 

and then I ' v e  got t o  buy a phone l i n e .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : You can buy Bel 1 South Fast 

Access? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  I have an I S P ,  FDN.com, 

t h a t  - -  
COMMISSIONER PALECKI: And i f  you buy BellSouth Fast 

Access, do your voice l i n e s  s t i l l  work? 

THE WITNESS: No, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: So bas i ca l l y  i f  your end user 

customer wants DSL service, there i s  no way the  customer can 

get t ha t  DSL service and your copper l i n e s  w i l l  s t i l l  work 

unless you i n s t a l  1 your own DSLAM - - 
THE WITNESS: That 's  exac t l y  r i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: - -  o r  unless the issue 

docket i s  resolved t h a t  would requ i re  BellSouth t o  a l low 

use t h e i r  DSLAM. 
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THE WITNESS: That 's  exac t ly  r i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I f  you used t h e i r  DSLAM, are 

you t a l k i n g  about providing t h a t  BellSouth DSL service, o r  

would you provide your own brand o f  DSL service? 

THE WITNESS: I f  I got unbundled access t o  the  DSLAM 

as i n  a UNE, I would have my own brand. 

rese l l  it, I would have my own brand. Even r i g h t  now when we 

wholesale it, we t r y  t o  brand i t  ourselves, bu t  see, the 

wholesale r a t e  t h a t  we buy from them, i t ' s  l i k e  35 bucks. 

Their r e t a i l  r a t e  i s  45 bucks. So there 's  not much arb i t rage 

i n  there, espec ia l l y  when we've got t o  put i n  a phone l i n e  

underneath it. 

I f  I were able t o  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : We1 1 , there are r e a l l y  two 

solut ions t o  your problem, i s  there not? One would be i f  

Bel lSouth created - - and I ' m  not a technician, so cor rec t  me i f  

I ' m  wrong, bu t  i f  BellSouth created a s i t u a t i o n  where your 

voice l i n e s  would s t i l l  work even though they ' re  prov id ing DSL 

service - - 
THE WITNESS: Right. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: - -  and you would be s a t i s f i e d  

w i th  tha t ;  correct? 

THE WITNESS: I ' v e  been asking f o r  t h a t  f o r  two 

years. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: O r  where they would provide 

you w i th  access t o  the DSLAM and you could provide your own DSL 
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service. 

THE WITNESS: Correct. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: One - - e i t he r  o f  those 

so lut ions would be sa t i s fac to ry  t o  you? 

THE WITNESS: I n  the f i r s t  case what I would a lso ask 

f o r  i s  a - -  so r t  o f  a be t te r  p r i c e  than the  $35, c a l l  i t 

resale,  c a l l  i t  whatever, and t h a t ' s  what we've t r i e d  t o  work 

out. You know, keep my voice working underneath, and w e ' l l  

keep buying - -  w e ' l l  be one o f  your biggest customers. We' l l  

buy t h i s  Fas t  Access a1 1 day long, but  we want a be t te r  - - we 

need a be t te r  ra te .  We need a resale l i k e  r a t e  on it. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: You want t o  be able t o  make 

some margin on s e l l  i ng Bel 1 South's Fas t  Access. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: But you agree t h a t ' s  not w i t h i n  

our j u r i s d i c t i o n  t o  t e l l  BellSouth what t h e i r  r a t e  has t o  be 

f o r  t h a t  service.  

THE WITNESS: I bel ieve the  F a s t  Access service i s  a 

r e t a i l  service t h a t  they s e l l  t o  customers. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So you ' re  saying you th ink  t h a t  

i t  should be p a r t  o f  the resale requirement under the  

Tel ecommuni cat ions Act? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r ,  I do. The customers th ink  - -  
they d o n ' t  understand the re ' s  a d i f ference,  .net  and Fas t  

Access. They get i t  sold t o  them by BellSouth. You can - -  you 
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mow, the re ' s  b i l lboards  advert is ing.  

)ill. I t ' s  bundled, you know, i n  some o f  the  win-back cases 

I t ' s  pu t  on t h e i r  phone 

delve had t o  dea 

these customers. 

3Y MR. TURNER: 

Q Mr. Ga 

A Okay. 

wi th .  It i s  absolutely marketed out there t o  

lagher, l e t ' s  explore t h a t  a b i t  - -  

Q - -  because we're using the term "Fast Access." I 

vant t o  make t h a t  we're d is t ingu ish ing  and understanding what 

ve're t a l k i n g  about. You understand t h a t  Bel lSouth has a 

t a r i f f e d  telecommunications service, a DSL o f fe r i ng ,  t h a t  i t  

irovides t o  In te rne t  service providers; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And t h a t  i s  - -  do you understand t h a t  t h a t  tariff 

i f f e r i n g ,  t h a t  telecommunications tariff o f f e r i n g ,  i s  d i f f e r e n t  

than Fast Access service t h a t  BellSouth provides t o  i t s  end 

Asers? 

A You know, t o  me, i t ' s  a l l  the same. 

Q Well, l e t ' s  t a l k  about tha t .  You've got  an e n t i t y  

c a l l  ed FDN. net; correct? 

A . com . 
Q . com? 

A Right. 

Q And there are occasions, I bel ieve, from your 

deposit ion testimony, a r e n ' t  there,  where FDN.com purchases the 
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ISL telecommunications o f f e r i n g  from Bel lSouth; r i g h t ?  

A Yes, they do. 

Q And then i t  adds - - i t  uses t h a t  telecommunication 

service as the  vehic le by which i t  gives us In te rne t  service t o  

i t s  end users; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q So y o u ' l l  agree w i t h  me, won't you, t h a t  the DSL 

i roduct t h a t  FDN.com i s  buying from BellSouth i s  not  the same 

thing as the In te rne t  service o f f e r i n g  t h a t  FDN.com i s  s e l l i n g  

;o i t s  end users, i s  it? 

A It competes d i r e c t l y  w i t h  BellSouth.net buying Fast 

kcess  from BellSouth, the phone company. Tha t ' s  why i t ' s  not  

1 very v iab le  - -  but  i t ' s  not  a very la rge  percentage o f  our 

-evenue, and i t ' s  not  a very a t t r a c t i v e  product t h a t  has a l o t  

i f  t r a c t i o n .  

Q 
A Okay. 

Q My question i s :  L e t ' s  t h i n k  about a car, okay? Ford 

M r .  Gallagher, t h a t  wasn't q u i t e  my question. 

d i l l  s e l l  me a Taurus; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q And Ford can go out and buy the  seats i n  t h a t  Taurus 

from some other company; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q 

A Right. 

Put i t  i n  the  Taurus and I buy the  Taurus; r i g h t ?  
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That doesn't  mean tha t  I am buying my seats from Q 
whoever made them; r i g h t ?  The t h i n g  I ' m  buying i s  a f in ished 

car from Ford; r i g h t ?  

A 

Q Okay. Now, l e t ' s  go back and t a l k  about what FDN.com 

Right. I 1 i ked your water example ear l  i e r .  

i s  s e l l i n g  t o  i t s  end users. FDN.com i s  s e l l i n g  t o  i t s  end 

users an In te rne t  service; r i g h t ?  

A The end users th ink  they ' re  buying DSL. They 

don ' t  - - you know, I want DSL. They' r e  not saying, "I want an 

In te rne t  service. I' 

Q Well , when an end user wants a telephone service, he 

doesn't  spec i fy  t o  you t h a t  he wants a UNE combination o r  a 

UNE-P o r  resold, he j u s t  wants telephone service; r i g h t ?  

A Well, yeah. 

Q Okay. So l e t ' s  set  aside f o r  a minute what the  end 

user i s  asking f o r ,  and I want t o  focus on what FDN.com i s  

providing t h a t  end user. 

A Okay. 

Q What FDN.com i s  prov id ing the  end user i s  the 

In te rne t  service as a package; r i g h t ?  

A Right, h igh speed. 

Q And p a r t  o f  t h a t  I n te rne t  service i s  the 

telecommunications pipe; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q And what FDN.com has done i s ,  i t  has bought t h a t  
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telecommunications pipe from Bel 1South; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q I t ' s  then pu t  i t s  In te rne t  water through the pipe, 

and i t  s e l l s  the  end user the pipe w i t h  the  water i n  it; r i g h t ?  

Right, bu t  we d o n ' t  own the water company. The water 

company and the  p ipe company a r e n ' t  the  same company i n  our 

A 

case. 

Q I understand t h a t .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : 

nat ter .  I f  a customer wants t o  

Let me ask a question on t h i s  

rder  DSL service from 

3ellSouth, can they order j u s t  the  DSL and provide t h e i r  own 

In ternet  c a r r i e r ,  o r  do they have t o  order the  Fast Access? 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s  my understanding they c a n ' t  j u s t  

r d e r  the Fast Access, bu t  most o f  them don ' t  - - they j u s t  want 

In ternet  access - -  
COMMISSIONER PALECKI : We1 1 , i t  ' s my understanding 

tha t  Fast Access i s  bundled. 

THE WITNESS: Right. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I t ' s  the DSL service and the 

In te rne t  service as w e l l .  But l e t ' s  say a customer does no t  

dant the In te rne t  service. They want t o  go through somebody 

e l  se. 

THE WITNESS: L ike AOL or  somebody. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: L ike  AOL. Can a customer j u s t  

say, I only want t he  DSL service t h a t ' s  being of fered i n  the  
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tariff from BellSouth, and I'll go ahead and get my own 

In te rne t  provider? 

THE WITNESS: Here's how t h a t  works. What they say 

i s  exact ly  what you said. And the way t o  do t h a t  i s ,  they j u s t  

c a l l  AOL and say, I want Fast Access, and AOL w i l l  then j u s t  

order it. So the customers c a n ' t  order it, t h a t  Fast Access 

piece, separately from B e l l .  They w i l l  j u s t  go t o  t h e i r  ISP 

and say, j u s t  get BellSouth DSL. I know I q u a l i f y .  You know, 

I got a s o l i c i t a t i o n  from them i n  the m a i l  or  something, so get 

me DSL t o  t h i s  locat ion.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Bel lSouth t e l l  s t he  end use 

customer, c a l l  AOL and l e t  them order the DSL f o r  you? 

THE WITNESS: I n  t h a t  case, I don ' t  know i f  i t  would 

be BellSouth t e l l i n g  the customer, or  the customer doing i t  on 

t h e i r  i n i t i a t i v e ,  or  AOL t e l l i n g  the  customer, bu t  the  customer 

would eventual ly have t o  get - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, how does AOL get i n  the 

1 oop? 
THE WITNESS: Well, i n  t h i s  case i t  could be, I am a 

d i a l - u p  guy; I ' v e  got AOL. I ' v e  had i t  f o r  l i f e ;  I love AOL. 

Now, I j u s t  found out I ' m  q u a l i f i e d  f o r  DSL. I got some s o r t  

o f  marketing l i t e r a t u r e ,  something - -  you know, my buddy got 

it, my neighbor got it. I f  I c a l l e d  BellSouth, they would t r y  

t o  s e l l  me the  whole Fast Access t h i n g  where I ' d  have to ,  you 

know, change t o  the I S P ,  the BellSouth I S P .  But I ' d  say, no, I 
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dant t o  keep AOL, so then I ' d  have t o  c a l l  AOL and say, you 

guys, I know I ' m  q u a l i f i e d  f o r  DSL; now go get t h a t  BellSouth 

service i n t o  my house. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: So what you are t e l l i n g  me i s  

that  the customer cannot get the DSL service from BellSouth 

d i rec t l y .  The DSL service i s  on ly  being of fered t o  the 

In te rne t  provider, so the only  way the customer can get the  

tariff DSL service i s  through an In te rne t  provider.  

THE WITNESS: Correct. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And t h i s  service, t h i s  DSL 

service, wholesale service i s  t a r i f f e d  a t  the FCC? 

THE WITNESS: You know, I don ' t  know. I t h i n k  t h a t  

i t  i s .  

so i t  would have t o  be federal .  

a - -  we go t o  t h e i r  Web s i t e  and order i t  t h a t  way. 

I don' t  know i f  i t ' s  a s ta te  - -  I guess i t ' s  not state,  

I know we j u s t  buy i t  out o f  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do you know how - -  what the 

pr ices t h a t  are of fered t o  customers i f  they buy the whole 

package from BellSouth, t h a t  being the pipe and the  water, as 

opposed t o  i f  they j u s t  get t h e i r  I S P  t o  buy the pipe, how much 

t h e i r  I S P  i s  having t o  pay f o r  the - -  
THE WITNESS: I know t h a t  - -  yeah, t h e r e ' s  a term i n  

volume deal. Like, i f  you buy a whole bunch o f  Fast - - i f  you 

are an I S P  and you commit t o  BellSouth tha t  you are going t o  

buy, you know, a thousand o f  these things a month, you get a 
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~olume deal t ha t  could get you down as low as, say, $30 a 

nonth. I th ink  i t ' s  32, and I ' m  not  exac t ly  sure, but 

somewhere around there. 

j o n ' t  have a b i g  volume commitment, you are going t o  pay more, 

l i ke ,  35, 36 bucks f o r  t h a t  F a s t  Access. BellSouth.net, 

though, o f fe rs  i t  f o r  45 w i t h  the In te rne t  included. 

I f  you ' re  a Regular Joe I S P  and you 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: F o r t y - f i v e  w i t h  the  In te rne t  

i nc l  uded? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And you're saying the most 

i t t r a c t i v e  ra te  f o r  high-volume purchasers, wholesale 

iurchasers i s  around 32? 

THE WITNESS: 

r e a ,  $30 t o  $32, yes. 

I bel ieve i t ' s  approximately i n  t h a t  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And you ' re  t a l k i n g  about a $13 

j i  f ference then, approximately. 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Thank you. 

3Y MR. TURNER: 

Q Mr. Gallagher, we're going t o  get i n t o  t h i s  resale 

s t u f f  some more i n  a few minutes, but f o r  now, l e t ' s  go back t o  

Exh ib i t  Number 8. And l e t ' s  j u s t  c l a r i f y ,  t he  DSLAM t h a t ' s  

s i t t i n g  there i n  the remote terminal ;  r i g h t ?  L e t ' s  assume f o r  

now t h a t  t h i s  i s  the  way t h a t  BellSouth i s  prov id ing both voice 

and data service t o  the  end user, okay? BellSouth has put i t s  
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DSLAM i n  tha t  remote terminal .  W i l l  you assume t h a t  w i th  me? 

A Yes. 

Q The issue i n  t h i s  case i s ,  FDN wants t o  use t h a t  

DSLAM tha t  BellSouth has purchased and i n s t a l l e d  i n  t h a t  remote 

terminal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And FDN, you are not suggesting t h a t  you want t o  s i t  

down and negotiate a commercial market r a t e  f o r  doing so; 

r i g h t ?  You are here asking t h i s  Commission t o  requi re  

3ellSouth t o  provide you access t o  t h a t  DSLAM a t  TELRIC ra tes  

as a UNE. That 's what you are asking; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Okay. We've ta l ked  about what BellSouth does t o  go 

and i n s t a l l  the DSLAM. L e t ' s  look f o r  a minute about what FDN 

:an do t o  place a DSLAM i n  t h a t  remote terminal .  Now, f i r s t  o f  

311, you w i l l  agree w i th  me, won't you, t h a t  FDN can purchase a 

ISLAM from one o f  several vendors? 

A Yes. 

Q And FDN already has several quotes from stand-alone 

ISLAM providers, doesn I t it? 

A Yes. 

Q I n  fac t ,  you ' re  even looking a t  buying DSLAMs from 

i t he r  ca r r i e rs  who have recen t l y  declared bankruptcy, a r e n ' t  

jou? 

A We have looked a t  the  equipment. 
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Q So FDN i s  not having any problems f i nd ing  vendors who 

are w i l l i n g  t o  s e l l  FDN a DSLAM? 

A Correct. 

Q And based on your experience, FDN i s  ge t t i ng  

f o r  the p r i c i n g  o f  those DSLAMs; r i g h t ?  competi t i ve o f f e r s  

A I hope. 

Q Well, i n  

deposition, you t o  

compet i ti ve o f f e r s  

your testimony, d i d n ' t  - -  o r  i n  your 

d me t h a t  you thought you were ge t t i ng  

and competit ive p r i c i n g  f o r  DSLAMs; r i g h t ?  

A Yes, yes. 

Q And i t ' s  t rue ,  i s n ' t  it, t h a t  you f i l e d  - -  we l l ,  I ' m  

sorry,  l e t ' s  go back. Now, l e t ' s  assume t h a t  you ac tua l l y  

purchased a DSLAM from one o f  these vendors a t  these 

competit ive pr ices,  okay? 

A Yes. 

Q Now, you've got t o  put the DSLAM i n  the remote 

terminal ; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And t h i s  i s  the co l loca t ion  process t h a t  you were 

discussing w i t h  the  Commission; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And i n  your testimony, your p r e f i l e d  testimony, you 

say a l o t  o f  th ings about t h i s  co l loca t ion  process. Let me ask 

you t h i s .  I s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  you f i l e d  a l l  t h a t  testimony 

before you read Mr. Wil l iams' rebut ta l  testimony? 
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A Yes. 

Q And i t ' s  t rue ,  i s n ' t  it, t h a t  FDN's never submitted 

an appl icat ion t o  co l locate a DSLAM a t  a s ing le remote terminal 

i n  Bel 1 South I s t e r r i t o r y ?  

A That 's  correct .  

Q Now, on Page 25 o f  your d i r e c t  testimony, I ' m  going 

t o  look a t  Lines 3 through 6. 

MR. FEIL: 

MR. TURNER: Yes, s i r .  I t ' s  Page 25. 

MR. FEIL: Yes. 

MR. TURNER: 

I ' m  sorry, could you repeat tha t ,  Counsel? 

I t ' s  Lines 3 through 6. 

3Y MR. TURNER: 

Q You state,  "Furthermore, i t ' s  my understanding t h a t  

i n  one o f  the  few instances where a CLEC attempted t o  co l loca te  

3 DSLAM a t  an ILEC remote terminal ,  cross-connection and 

Zonstruction issues remained unresolved f o r  more than a year 

j f t e r  the i n i t i a l  co l loca t ion  request was made;" r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And you w i l l  agree w i t h  me, won't you, t h a t  you d o n ' t  

mow the  ILEC who was involved? 

A I do now. 

Q 
A Right, I forgot .  

Q 

But you d i d n ' t  a t  your deposit ion? 

Well, i n  your deposit ion, you d i d n ' t  t e l l  me you 

'orgot, d i d  you? 
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A No. I said t h a t  I d o n ' t  remember who - - I don ' t  know 

2xactly what I said. What d i d  I say? 

Q Well, i n  the deposit ion, and I ' v e  got t he  t r a n s c r i p t  

i f  we need t o  look a t  it, but i n  the deposit ion, d i d n ' t  you 

:e l l  us t h a t  those were rumors t h a t  you could not substantiate? 

A Right. 

Q Okay. 

A But I ' v e  since invest igated it, and I understand 

low. 

Q Well, I asked you e a r l i e r ,  though, i f  you had 

t 

mything - -  i f  your answers would be d i f f e r e n t .  I ' m  assuming 

{ou' r e  now t e l l  i n g  me your answer would be d i f f e r e n t .  

A 

Q 

My answers t o  the deposit ion, you mean? 

Well, you are saying t h a t  they are no longer based on 

insubstanti ated rumors? 

A 

ne, I went back and, you know, I was in terested i n  exact ly  the 

zase, and I have since researched it. 

I ' m  j u s t  saying t h a t  a f t e r  you c l a r i f i e d  t h a t  w i t h  

Q 
3el l  South? 

And d i d  your research ind ica te  t h a t  t h a t  ILEC was 

A No. 

Q Did t h i s  instance t h a t  you t a l k  about occur i n  

3ellSouth's t e r r i t o r y ?  

A No, i t  d i d  not.  

Q Did the ILEC t h a t  was involved i n  t h i s  instance have 
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p o l i c i e s  on co l loca t ion  t h a t  are s i m i l a r  t o  what Mr. W i l l i a m s  

t e s t i f i e s  t o  i n  h i s  testimony? 

A I ' m  unfami l iar  w i t h  what 

Q So t h e i r  p o l i c y  may have 

d i f f e r e n t  than what Bel lSouth's PO 

A That 's  correct .  

t h e i r  p o l i c y  i s .  

been something t o t a l l y  

i c y  i s ;  r i g h t ?  

A 

i n  now, 

year. 

Q 

Q You t e s t i f i e d  i n  your summary t h a t  there  are 12,000 

or so remote terminals i n  Bel 1South's t e r r i t o r y ;  r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q You w i l l  agree w i t h  me, though, won't you, t h a t  

BellSouth has not  col located a DSLAM i n  each o f  those 12,000 

remote terminal s; r i g h t ?  

A Not ye t ,  no. 

Q We1 1, based on Bel lSouth's discovery responses, can 

you t e l l  me how many remote terminals BellSouth th inks  i t  w i l l  

have i n s t a l  l e d  a remote - - a DSLAM i n  by the end o f  t h i s  year? 

I t ' s  my understanding t h a t  y o u - a l l  have about 3,700 

and you estimate being around 4,000 by the  end o f  the 

Okay. And we can agree, c a n ' t  we, t h a t  most o f  those 

DSLAMs ,lave been i n s t a l l e d  by BellSouth i n  the  past couple o f  

years? 

A Yes. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Counsel, when you get t o  a good 

take a recess. breaking po in t ,  l e t  me know, and we' l  
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MR. TURNER: Now i s  probably a good t ime .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very w e l l .  We w i l l  take a 

15 -minute recess. 

(B r ie f  recess. 1 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Go back on the  record. 

3Y MR. TURNER: 

Q Mr. Gallagher, I don ' t  t h ink  we have too very much 

l e f t .  We so r t  o f  walked through what i t  would take f o r  FDN t o  

iuy  a DSLAM. We so r t  o f  walked through the co l l oca t i on  aspect 

i f  things. Now, assume w i t h  me t h a t  FDN has bought a DSLAM and 

ias i n s t a l l e d  the DSLAM i n  a BellSouth remote terminal ,  okay? 

A Uh-huh, yes. 

Q Now, once you have the DSLAM i n  a remote terminal ,  

3ellSouth w i l l  s e l l  you a UNE subloop between the  remote 

terminal and the customer premises; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And BellSouth a lso w i l l  s e l l  you a UNE subloop from 

the remote terminal back t o  the  CO; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Te l l  me i f  I ' m  wrong, but  d i d  I hear you t e s t i f y  t h a t  

the - - we1 1, hold on a second, I want t o  make sure I 've got 

t h i s  r i g h t  - -  t ha t  a DS-3 subloop would cost FDN around $1,500 

3 month? 

A Yes. I estimated t h a t  per our current  arrangement 

rJith you -a l l  where we buy UNE D S - ~ S ,  t ha t  i t  would be about 
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tha t  much. 

Q 

A Yes, I th ink .  

Q 
A Okay. 

Q 

Do you s t i l l  have Exh ib i t  Number 5 up there w i t h  you? 

Go w i th  me t o  Item Number 56. 

One o f  the th ings t h a t  FDN asked i s ,  i d e n t i f y  these 

UNEs and the respective rates and charges; r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Go w i th  me t o  the  second - - i t  ' s  Page 2 o f  3 o f  the  

response t o  Item Number 56. The number on the  bottom f the  

page tha t  was typewr i t ten i s  7, and the re ' s  a Bates stamp 

lumber 08. 

A Right. 

Q 

there? 

Do you see the DS-3 f a c i l i t y  terminat ion charge down 

A Yes. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

* igh t?  

The recur r ing  charge on t h a t  i s  $347.59; r i g h t ?  

And then you've got a per m i le  charge o f  about $15; 

A Right. 

Q That 's  going t o  be a p r e t t y  long loop t o  get you up 

bo $1,500 a month, i s n ' t  it? 

A 

Zermination? 

Do you th ink  t h a t  we on ly  need one f a c i l i t y  
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Q Wel l ,  I ' m  saying per f a c i l i t y  termination, i t ' s  going 

t o  have t o  be a b ig ,  long loop t o  get you up t o  $1,500 a month; 

r i g h t ?  

A 

l i k e  t h i s ,  are you t e l l i n g  me t h a t  I only  need one f a c i l i t y  

termination? 

Q 

Well, i n  a c i r c u i t  l i k e  t h i s ,  when you order a UNE 

S i r ,  I ' m  j u s t  asking you t h a t  i f  you've got one 

f a c i l i t y  termination, t h a t ' s  going t o  be one heck o f  a long 

loop t o  get you up t o  1,500 a month recurr ing;  r i g h t ?  

A I f  you only  charge me one f a c i l i t y  termination, but  

you don ' t .  You charge one on each end. So i t ' s  double t h a t  

number t o  get s tar ted,  so i t ' s  347.59 times 2. That 's how we 

buy UNEs r i g h t  now, i t ' s  my understanding. 

Q 
A 

Q 
A 

Q 
month. 

A 

Q 
r i g h t ?  

A 

Q 

So t h a t ' s  $700; r i g h t ?  

Plus $3,386 times 2. 

But t h a t ' s  a nonrecurring charge. 

Right, but  t h a t ' s  s t i l l  s i x  grand. 

I was t a l k i n g  about recur r ing  now, your $1,500 

Right . 

a 

And y o u ' l l  agree wiLh me t h a t  t h i s  i s  a UNE raLe; 

Right. 

And there are other UNE ra tes  avai lab le f o r  FDN t o  

choose from? 
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A Right. 

Q FDN recent ly  pa r t i c i pa ted  i n  the generic UNE docket 

i n  which UNE rates were established; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q So we can agree, won't we, t h a t  BellSouth i s  going t o  

provide these UNEs t h a t  were establ ished by t h i s  Commission a t  

the rates establ ished by the  Commission; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q And i f  FDN was wanting d i f f e r e n t  UNEs o r  d i f f e r e n t  

c docket, i t  had an opportuni ty t o  ask 

ght? 

rates dur ing the gener 

f o r  d i f f e r e n t  rates:  r 

A Right. 

Q Okay. While 

and again, I know you 

ahead and get the r i g  

many remote terminals 

i n s t a l l e d  DSLAM i n  by 

A Yes, s i r .  

you've got Exh ib i t  5 i n  f r o n t  o f  you, 

were going from memory, but  l e t ' s  go 

It s t u f f  i n  the record. I asked you how 

you an t ic ipa ted  Bel 1 South havi ng 

the end o f  the  year. 

Q I bel ieve you gave me a number around the  $4,000, I 

mean, the 4,000 mark. Go w i th  me t o  BellSouth's response t o  

Item Number 63. I t ' s  i n  t h a t  same Exh ib i t  5. The page number 

a t  the bottom middle i s  15, and the  Bates stamp number i s  16. 

Let me know when you get there. 

A Okay. 

Q Doesn't Bel 1 South's response say t h a t  Bel 1 South 
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cur ren t ly  plans t o  have deployed DSLAM equipment i n  a t o t a l  o f  

3,249 remote terminals i n  F lo r ida  by the  end o f  2001? 

A Yes, s i r .  I was incor rec t  w i t h  my 3,700 estimate. 

Q And t h a t ' s  f ine .  I j u s t  wanted t o  make sure. This 

i s  the number you meant t o  r e f e r  t o ;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes, s i r .  

Q Okay. Thank you. I want t o  c l a r i f y  one th ing  on 

your resale request t o  the Commission. I w i l l  admit I ' m  

confused as t o  which product FDN i s  wanting t o  r e s e l l .  

wanting t o  r e s e l l  the In te rne t  service t h a t  Bel lSouth provides 

t o  i t s  I n te rne t  service end users? I n  other words, the  pipe 

and the water. O r  does FDN on ly  want t o  r e s e l l  the  pipe 

i t s e l f ,  the  DSL telecommunications t ranspor t? 

I s  i t  

A The pipe. 

Q Okay. So you are not asking the Commission t o  al low 

FDN t o  r e s e l l  the  In te rne t  service as a package; r i g h t ?  

A Correct. 

Q Okay. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Let  me ask one question on 

tha t .  I r e a l i z e  you a re  not asking the Commission t o  s e l l  the 

In te rne t  service as we l l .  Would you be w i l l i n g  through an 

agreement w i t h  BellSouth t o  s e l l  both the  pipe and the  water? 

Because I thought t h a t ' s  what you had t o l d  me e a r l i e r ,  t ha t  you 

would love t o  be able t o  s e l l  the,  was i t  ca l l ed  Fas t  Net o r  

whatever the  name i s ?  
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THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  What I would ra ther  s e l l  are 

the pipes. That 's what I meant t o  - -  you know, I 

miscommunicated. I ' d  want t o  s e l l  those pipes. 

already got my own water company b u i l t ,  so - - 
I ' m  sure I 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: You want t o  s e l l  the  DSL 

service wi thout the In te rne t  service attached t o  it? 

THE WITNESS: Yes, s i r .  

BY MR. TURNER: 

Q Okay. The - -  I hope, my f i n a l  l i n e  o f  questioning. 

So back w i th  me t o  - - what we have marked as Exh ib i t  8. And 

again, t h i s  i s  the scenario where you have f i b e r  from the  

central o f f i c e  t o  the remote terminal and copper from the  

remote terminal t o  the end user, okay? 

A Yes. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  And assume w i t h  me f o r  the  purpose o f  

t h i s  f i r s t  group o f  questions t h a t ,  again, t h i s  i s  an e x i s t i n g  

remote terminal w i th  an e x i s t i n g  BellSouth DSLAM i n  it, okay? 

A Uh-huh, yes. 

Q And assume w i th  me t h a t  the  Commission were t o  grant 

you access t o  tha t  DSLAM as a UNE, okay? 

A Yes. 

Q And assume w i th  me t h a t  once t h a t  was granted, t h a t  

IDN went i n ,  used t h a t  UNE access t o  the  DSLAM and s ta r ted  

i rov id ing  voice and data services t o  customers served from t h a t  

memote terminal ,  okay? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

154 

A Yes. 

Q Okay. Under t h a t  scenario, i t ' s  t rue ,  i s n ' t  i t , t h a t  

you would on ly  be able t o  provide tha t  service t o  fo l ks  who 

31ready could get voice and data from BellSouth on the same 

l i ne ;  r i g h t ?  

A Yes, who theo re t i ca l l y  could get i t . They may not 

mow o f  i t  or  may not have been marketed. 

Q And the po in t  i s ,  by doing tha t ,  you are not 

2xpanding the universe o f  end users who are able t o  get voice 

md  data over the same l i n e ;  r i g h t ?  

A 

-ephrase it? 

I ' m  not expanding the universe o f  - - could you 

Q Yeah. I n  other words, again, the  people who could 

get voice and data over the  same l i n e  from FDN under tha t  

Scenario - -  
A Right. 

Q - - are the  people who already could get  voice and 

j a t a  over the same l i n e  from BellSouth; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q Now, assume w i t h  me t h a t  FDN instead o f  - -  the 

:ommission d i d  not order the  r e l i e f  you request. Instead, FDN 

i s  going t o  have t o  place i t s  own DSLAM i n  the  remote terminal 

i f  i t  wants t o  provide voice and data over the  same l i n e  i n  

th i s  f i b e r  fed copper loop scenario, okay? 

A Okay. 
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And l e t ' s  assume t h a t  FDN f inds  a remote terminal Q 
t h a t  BellSouth has not col located a DSLAM i n ,  okay? 

A Okay. 

Q Today, BellSouth cannot provide voice and data over 

the  same loop t o  a s ing le customer, r i g h t ,  out  o f  t ha t  remote 

terminal because there 's  no DSLAM i n  it? 

A Right. 

Q Assume w i th  me t h a t  FDN puts i t s  DSLAM i n  t h a t  remote 

terminal tomorrow, okay? 

A Okay. 

Q Tomorrow, customers who today cou ldn ' t  get voice and 

data  over the same l i n e  could then get voice and data over the  

same l i n e  from FDN; r i g h t ?  

A Right. They could be voice customers already, but 

they would now be voice and data. 

Q Now, l e t ' s  say t h a t  FDN d i d  exac t ly  t ha t .  It placed 

a DSLAM i n  a remote terminal where BellSouth d i d  not have one, 

and FDN s ta r ted  prov id ing voice and data t o  end users 

from t h a t  remote terminal ,  okay? 

A Right. 

served 

Q Would FDN be w i l l i n g  t o  provide access t o  b a t  DSL 

to other ca r r i e rs  l i k e  BellSouth o r  other ALECs a t  the same 

[ELRIC rates t h a t  you are asking t h i s  Commission t o  requi re  

3el lSouth t o  charge you f o r  t h a t  access? 

A I f  we prevai 
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know, get what we are asking f o r ,  I don ' t  see why we wouldn' t  

consider tha t .  

Q Well, I ' m  not r e a l l y  asking i f  you'd consider t h a t ,  

because dur ing your deposit ion, you t o l d  me you would have t o  

run some f inanc ia l  numbers; r i g h t ?  

A Right. 

Q And you would have t o  determine whether i t  was 

f i nanc ia l l y  more v iab le  f o r  FDN t o  provide tha t  wholesale o r  

j u s t  t o  provide r e t a i l  only; r i g h t ?  

Right. 

So you are not  committing t o  t h i s  Commission t h a t  FDN 

n every scenario be w i l l i n g  t o  provide TELRIC-based 

t o  a DSLAM t h a t  i t  placed i n  a remote terminal , are you? 

No. 

But you ' re  asking t h i s  Commission t o  order Be 

t o  provide FDN and other ALECs TELRIC-based access t o  a 

t ha t  BellSouth puts i n  a remote terminal ,  a ren ' t  you? 

A Right. 

MR. TURNER: Commissioner Deason, thank you. 

nothing fu r ther .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. S t a f f .  

MS. BANKS: S t a f f  j u s t  has a few questions. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MS. BANKS: 

Q Good morning, M r .  Gallagher. 
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ng * 

a Banks, and I have j u s t  a few questions t o  

isk you on behal f  o f  the Commission S t a f f .  There were some 

li scussion ear l  i e r  regarding end users ' abi 1 i t y  t o  purchase 

ISL. Do you r e c a l l  t ha t?  

A Yes. 

Q Okay. I n  your opinion, o r  from your experience, when 

in  end user purchases BellSouth Fast Access o r  t he  FDN version 

if DSL, i s  the  customer requesting a spec i f i c  I n te rne t  content 

service, o r  are they requesting the DSL service? 

A I n  my experience, customers, once they get i n t o  the  I 

vant DSL mind-set, they want DSL, you know, and t h a t ' s  what 

:heir primary focus i s .  

Q Okay. So the customer requests, as you j u s t  

indicated, DSL and bas i ca l l y  they take whatever the  In te rne t  

:ontent service t h a t  goes along w i th  it? 

A You know, unless they are very, very loya l  t o  a 

)a r t i cu la r  I S P ,  I would th ink  i n  most cases they - -  you know, 

LO get the  DSL they would take whatever content goes w i th  it, 

yes. I bel ieve  t h a t  so r t  o f  leads - -  t h a t ' s  t he  dog, and the 

t a i l  i s  t he  content. 

Q Okay. Changing j u s t  a l i t t l e  b i t  on focus. I n  the 

ipening statements, Mr. F e i l  mentioned t h a t  e f f o r t s  had been 

nade t o  s e t t l e  t h i s  one remaining issue; i s  t h a t  correct? 

A That 's  correct .  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q Okay. Did FDN propose a pa r t i cu la r  reso lu t i on  t o  

Bel 1 South? 

A Yes, we d id .  

Q Okay. Can you j u s t  b r i e f l y  describe what FDN's 

proposal was? 

A Am I allowed t o  do tha t?  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Excuse me. I ' m  not  sure 

tha t  - -  t h a t ' s  probably conf ident ia l  negot iat ions,  and I ' m  not 

sure t h a t  t h a t ' s  r e a l l y  appropriate t o  be a i red  i n  a pub l i c  

se t t ing .  

MS. BANKS: That 's  f i n e .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It could undermi ne fu tu re  

negotiat ions, and we don ' t  want t o  do tha t .  

MS. BANKS: Okay. That ' s  f i ne .  Thank you, 

qr. Gal 1 agher. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Fe l i c i a .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Commissioners, any 

fu r ther  quest i ons? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: NO. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : NO. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Redi r e c t  . 
MR. FEIL: Thank you. 

RED1 RECT EXAM1 NATION 

3Y MR. FEIL: 

Q Just  a few questions, M r .  Gallagher. Ear 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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your - -  the summary t h a t  turned out t o  be a r e l a t i v e l y  long 

colloquy, you were t a l k i n g  about cards t h a t  one would p lug i n t o  

the DSLAM and the  p r i c i n g  o f  those cards. Could you describe 

the p r i c i n g  o f  the  cards a l i t t l e  b i t  more f u l l y ,  please. 

A Yes. When I have done an analysis on the  - -  
MR. TURNER: I ' m  sorry,  I turned i t  o f f  and thought I 

turned i t  on. 

anything - -  
I bel ieve t h a t  goes wel l  beyond the  scope o f  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It goes beyond the  scope, but 

i t  i s  response t o  a question t h a t  I asked, and t h i s  i s  

something I have an i n t e r e s t  i n ,  so I w i l l  a l low the  question. 

When I d i d  research on the DSLAMs, I came about w i th  

a rough cost o f  roughly $20,000 f o r  the chassis and the  common 

cards and the power supply and whatnot. Then each 24-por t  

blade was around $7,000. So i f  you look a t  it, you know, the 

f i r s t  24 por ts  are going t o  cost you the cost o f  t he  $20,000 

plus the  $7,000 p o r t  card, but  then as you keep adding 

subscribers, your marginal cost o f  cap i ta l  i s  cheaper and 

cheaper and cheaper because you've already got the  base common 

cards and equipment. So when I say " f a i r l y  cheap" t o  add 

subscribers, t h a t ' s  what I mean. I t ' s  less  cap i ta l  cost per 

incremental user. 

A 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: I thought we had heard 

testimony tha t  there was used equipment t h a t  might be avai lab le 

from f a i l i n g  DSL providers t h a t  have gone bankrupt. What k ind  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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o f  p r ices  have you received i n  your negot iat ions f o r  used 

equipment? 

THE WITNESS: I have not successful ly engaged i n  t h a t  

process ye t .  We have looked a t  some. We have not  had luck i n  

en ter ing  i n t o  the negot iat ions w i t h  anybody, b u t  I intend t o .  

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Let  me ask a question. I t h i n k  

e a r l i e r  you had ind icated t h a t  a 48-por t  DSLAM was about 

$52,000, but  i f  you take the  $20,000 f o r  the  chassis plus 

$7,000 per 24-port  capab i l i t y ,  t h a t  according t o  my ca lcu la t i on  

then would be 20,000 p lus 7,000 p lus 7,000 o r  $34,000. 

THE WITNESS: Right.  Then I add another roughly 

$7,000 t o  $8,000 o f  engineering and i n s t a l l a t i o n  costs, and 

then I add $15,000 o f  space prep co l l oca t i on  charges, and then 

I add another $3,000 o f  c o l l o  app because i t ' s  my understanding 

i t  costs $3,000 t o ,  you know, do the co l l oca t i on  appl icat ion.  

That 's  what my people have t o l d  me based on t h e  informat ion we 

have. I know t h a t  I was t o l d  t h a t ' s  a d i f f e r e n t  number. I 

haven't seen t h a t  new number. That ' s  where I get  t h a t  52. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: To the  degree, though, t h a t  t he  

discovery response i s  cor rec t  and the  testimony col  1 aborates 

t h a t ,  you would agree t h a t  the estimate should be adjusted t o  

r e f l e c t  t ha t?  

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

BY MR. FEIL: 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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Q While Mr. Gallagher i s  on the subject, do you know 

dhether or  not the BellSouth negot iator t o l d  you about the 

appl icat ion fee f o r  remote terminals? 

A No, I have not been t o l d  tha t .  

Q Do you know whether or  not the co l loca t ion  attachment 

t o  the interconnection agreement which was attached t o  the 

a lower co l loca t ion  r a t e  f o r  p e t i t i o n  i n  t h i s  case r e f l e c t s  

remote terminal s? 

A No, I do not.  

Q I bel ieve Commission r Palecki o r  maybe i t  was 

Commi ss i  oner Jaber were aski ng you questions regardi ng 

ta rge t ing  spec i f i c  remotes f o r  the i n s t a l l a t i o n  o f  DSLAMs, and 

I bel ieve your testimony was t h a t  BellSouth had, i n  your view, 

probably already h i t  the  remotes from which you can get the 

most customers w i t h  a DSLAM o f  t h e i r  own. 

spec i f i c  remotes f o r  co l loca t ing  your DSLAM, would you have the  

ub iqu i t y  o f  service t h a t  you have f o r  voice service? 

I f  you targeted 

A No. 

Q Would i t  be p rac t i ca l  f o r  you t o  ta rge t  j u s t  a few 

remotes? Why or  why not? 

A It would be d i f f i c u l t  from the marketing side. It 

would probably, you know, make sense from the engineering and 

network side, but  from the  marketing side, i f  you were only  

going t o  do several, then you would have t o  have a more 

surgical marketing arm. And I don ' t  know - -  I haven't qu i te  
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f igured out how I would do t h a t  on a cos t -e f fec t i ve  basis.  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, l e t  me ask you t h i s .  

ipparent ly ,  BellSouth has - - they have i n s t a l l e d  DSLAMs, 

depending on which numbers, somewhere, 3,400 t o  3,700, 

somewhere - -  l ess  than 4,000 a t  t h i s  po in t .  

THE WITNESS: 3,200 I th ink  i s  the  number. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: 3,200 out  o f  12,000 remote 

termina s. Do they have t o  su rg i ca l l y  market t h e i r  services, 

o r  have they - -  do they have a la rge  enough f o o t p r i n t  w i t h i n  

cer ta in  metropol i tan areas tha t  they can market w i t h i n  a 

general metropol i tan  area? 

THE WITNESS: I t ' s  my understanding t h a t  they go t o  a 

general metropol i tan area and t r y  t o  blanket t h a t  f i r s t  and 

then market t ha t ,  and they also make ava i lab le  v i a  t h e i r  Web 

s i t e .  You know, they have a p r e t t y  neat t o o l  where you can put  

i n  the phone number, and i t  sp i t s  back r i g h t  away whether the  

l i n e  i s  qua l i f i ed .  

t h a t ' s  - -  our Bel lSouth representatives t h a t  we t a l k  t o  when we 

order the Fast Access service, they s o r t  o f  t e l l  us, hey, we're 

going t o  do Jacksonvi l le,  and we're going t o  get  t h a t  c i t y  up 

and mostly done, and then we're going t o  move t o  Orlando o r  

whatever, and then go on t o  t h e i r  - - 
COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Turner, do you have a 

So t h a t ' s  so r t  o f  how i t ' s  done. And 

witness tha t  could describe Bel lSouth's marketing, o r  i s  t h a t  

outside the scope o f  - -  i t ' s  outside the  scope? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. TURNER: I bel ieve i t ' s  outside the scope, 

:ommi ssioner Deason. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. 

THE WITNESS: 

quickly. There i s  almost nobody l e f t  prov id ing DSL, so the  

iressure i s  o f f  so r t  o f  on the  marketing side o f  it. 

wgue tha t ,  you know, i t ' s  - -  everybody i s  dying a t  the  r a t e  

they ' re  dying. I f  you are maybe the one guy standing, you can 

sort  o f  upgrade a t  your l e i su re  because you know you are going 

I would j u s t  l i k e  t o  add t o  t h a t  rea l  

I would 

to get 90 percent market share. 

3Y MR. FEIL: 

Q On t h a t  re la ted  subject, 

:ompare the  r i sked cap i ta l  t h a t  Be 

Q 
mbund 

A 

Mr. Gallagher, could you 

lSouth experiences versus 

-DN experiences when i t  comes t o  i n s t a l l a t i o n  o f  DSLAM and 

i rov is ioned DSL service? 

A I would j u s t  imagine my business model would have a 

lower take r a t e  because I have a lower, you know, market - - I 
lave less  customers. So I would have t o  p ro jec t  a lower take 

rate,  and therefore,  my r i s k  on the  investment i s  going t o  be 

nuch higher. 

Do you know whether o r  not  FDN i s  an ILEC w i t h  

i ng ob1 i g a t i  ons under the  Tel ecom Act? 

I don ' t  t h ink  t h a t  we are. 

MR. FEIL: Can I have a moment? 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: Let  me ask a question. I s  
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your primary mot ivat ion here t o  be able t o  s e l l  DSL service,  or 

i s  i t  t o  be able t o  continue t o  serve voice customers i f  they 

want DSL service from BellSouth or  any other provider? 

THE WITNESS: I would have t o  p r i o r i t i z e  t h a t .  I 

I want both, but  I have t o  have the  l a t t e r ,  what you said. 

have got t o  get i t  t o  where I can s t i l l  s e l l  my voice because 

t h a t ' s  my core business, and I ' m  being blocked out  because 

there 's  more BellSouth DSL customers. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: So i f  you could get  everyth 

you wanted, you'd get the a b i l i t y  t o  provide the  DSL serv ice 

v i thout  having t o  i n s t a l l  the  DSLAMs i n  each remote loca t ion? 

THE WITNESS: Yes. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI: As wel l  as the  a b i l i t y  t o  

continue t o  serve your voice customers whether o r  no t  they have 

BellSouth DSL service, which I t h i n k  you t o l d  me accounted f o r  

a very, very high percentage o f  a l l  DSL service. 

THE WITNESS: That 's  exac t ly  what I would l i k e ,  yes. 

COMMISSIONER PALECKI : And you are more concerned 

about l os ing  your voice customers, bu t  you would a lso  l i k e  t o  

get the a b i l i t y  t o  provide DSL through Bel lSouth's system. 

THE WITNESS: That 's  exac t ly  r i g h t .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: How much o f  t h a t  i s  because - - 
t o  be able f o r  your company t o  have venture c a p i t a l  and t o  do 

de l l  i n  the technology market, how much o f  t h a t  i s  a re l iance 

3n DSL? I t ' s  my understanding t h a t  Wal l  S t ree t  and some o f  the 
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venture c a p i t a l i s t s  have an expectat ion t h a t  these new 

companies w i l l  be able t o  provide DSL. 

THE WITNESS: On Wal l  St reet  they are expecting me t o  

have the  bundle f o r  the small business: Local, long distance, 

and In te rne t  product. That 's  what they ' re  expecting. I f  they 

see me blocked o f f  i n  any way from any one o f  those three 

th ings,  I ' v e  got a fund r a i s i n g  problem. That ' s  why I need 

what I need. I 

don ' t  know how we d i d  it, but,  you know, we jus t  ra ised a bunch 

o f  money i n ,  you know, absolute nuclear winter  o f  CLEC 

f inancing. And i t  was because we have decent t rac t i on .  We're 

ge t t i ng  l o t s  o f  customers. We're ge t t i ng  fac i l i t i es -based ,  no 

resale.  Wa l l  St reet  hates resale and even UNE-P, f o r  t h a t  

matter. They don ' t  see i t  as a v iab le  business model. So we 

keep using these UNE copper - -  you -a l l  lowering the UNE copper 

ra tes  helped. So we ra ised the  money. But we're going t o  need 

t o  go back and get more a t  some po in t ,  and we're going t o  need 

t o  be able t o  s e l l  the bundle. 

I mean, we j u s t  pu l l ed  o f f  a fund ra i s ing .  

MR. FEIL: Nothing fu r the r .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Mr. Turner, we ra ised some 

questions from the  bench dur ing the  red i rec t  phase. 

anything you need t o  fo l l ow  up on? 

I s  there 

MR. TURNER: Just  one. 

RECROSS EXAM1 NATION 

BY MR. TURNER: 
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Q Mr. Gallagher, there's been references about there's 
IO one - -  or you've suggest t h a t  there i s  relatively no one 
ither t h a n  BellSouth who can provide DSL service; right? 

A Yes. 
Q Let me ask you this. My neighbor, and granted, 

;hat's i n  A t l a n t a ,  no t  here, but  my neighbor has this service 
vhere his cable modem i s  hooked t o  his computer, and he gets 
-ea1 fast Internet access. Are you aware of t h a t  kind of 

techno1 ogy? 

A Yes. 
Q Now, you d o n ' t  consider t h a t  DSL technology, do you? 

A Right.  No, i t ' s  not .  

Q So when you were saying t h a t  there's no DSL 

:ompetition i n  Florida, you're t a l k i n g  about specif cally over 
this DSL type telecommunications facil i ty BellSouth provides; 
- igh t?  

A I'm t a l k i n g  about DSL as a technology. 

Q You weren't t a l k i n g  about high-speed Internet access 
i n  general, were you? 

A For businesses, I was. For residential, I was not .  

Q So you will agree w i t h  me t h a t  there are cable 
zompanies i n  particular from whom customers can go and get 
iigh-speed Internet access; right? 

A Mostly residential customers; correct. 
Q And by "mostly," I assume you wil l  agree w i t h  me 
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there are some business customers who can get t he  cable type 

In te rne t  access? 

A I bel ieve there i s  a small amount 

customers t h a t  can get cable, yes. 

MR. TURNER: That was a l l .  Thank 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Further red 

o f  business 

you. 

r e c t .  

FURTHER RED1 RECT EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. FEIL: 

Q Mr. Gallagher, does cable genera l ly  support on ly  

tha t  telephony one-way service, no t  two-way telecommunications 

requires? 

A For voice, yes. 

Q I meant f o r  I n te rne t  access services 

pipe, the cable service pipe. 

- we l l ,  the  

A It i s  - -  I bel ieve i t ' s  two-way i f  i t ' s  been 

Apgraded, bu t  i t ' s  more o f  a bus fashion versus an ind iv idua l  

Drivate home run as i n  DSL. 

MR. FEIL: That 's  a l l .  

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. Exh ib i ts .  I 

ie l i eve  p r e f i l e d  E x h i b i t  MPG-1 was i d e n t i f i e d  as Exh ib i t  6. 

MR. FEIL: And FDN moves t h a t  i n t o  t h e  record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Without object ion,  

iear ing no object ion,  show Exh ib i t  6 as admitted. 

(Exh ib i t  6 admitted i n t o  the  record. 1 

MR. TURNER: Commissioner Deason, we would a lso move 
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7 and 8, please. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without object ion,  hearing no 

objection, show then Exhib i ts  7 and 8 are also admitted. 

(Exhib i ts  7 and 8 admitted i n t o  the record. 1 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you, Mr . Gal  1 agher . 
THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

(Witness excused. ) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We w i l l  take a recess f o r  

lunch, and we w i l l  reconvene a t  1:15. 

(Lunch recess. ) 

(Transcr ipt  continues i n  sequence w i t h  Volume 2.) 
- I - - -  
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